
TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

2017 BUDGET DELIBERATIONS

Monday, January 9, 2017
5:00 PM

Council Chambers
271 Sandwich Street South, Amherstburg, ON, N9V 2A5

For information pertaining to this agenda or to arrange for any additional accessibility needs please
contact Tammy Fowkes, Deputy Clerk at tfowkes@amherstburg.ca

Information will be gathered in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection
of Privacy Act (MFIPPA). All comments and communications received will become part of the public
record unless you expressly request the Town to remove it. If you want to learn more about why and
how the Town collects your information, write to the Town Clerk's Office, 271 Sandwich Street South,

Amherstburg, ON N9V 2A5 or call 519-736-0012.

Pages

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF

mailto:tfowkes@amherstburg.ca


3. PRESENTATIONS - 2017 BUDGET

3.1 Audit and Finance Advisory Committee Report and Presentation- John
Purdie, Chair

3.2 Amherstburg Community Services – Grant Request – Kathy
DiBartolomeo, Executive Director

3.3 Amherstburg Food and Fellowship Mission – Grant Request – Tim
McAllister

3.4 House of Shalom – Grant Request – Rebecca Vander Vaart, Events Co-
ordinator

3.5 Amherstburg Freedom Museum – Grant Request - Mary-Katherine
Whelan, Curator/Administrator

3.6 Amherstburg Historic Sites Association – Grant Request - Stephanie
Pouget-Papak, Curator, Administrator

3.7 Cat Assistance Team – Grant Request - Carla Leardi

3.8 Christ Church  Anglican – Grant Request – Reverend Bill Strang

It is recommended that:

The presentations BE RECEIVED.



4. REPORTS - 2017 BUDGET

4.1 Audit and Finance Advisory Committee 2017 Budget Review 6

It is recommended that:

1. The report from the Audit and Finance Advisory Committee
dated November 22, 2016, regarding Audit and Finance Advisory
Committee 2017 Budget Review BE RECEIVED.

4.2 2017 Grants to Community Groups and Organizations 13

It is recommended that:

1. The report from the Municipal Clerk dated November 14, 2016,
regarding 2017 Grants to Community Groups and Organizations BE
RECEIVED; and,

2. The requested funding for Grants to Community Groups and
Organizations BE APPROVED to BE FUNDED from the 2017
Global Operating Budget.

4.3 Libro Centre Financial Update 74

It is recommended that:

1. The report from the CAO, Manager of Facilities and Manager of
Recreation Services dated November 15, 2016, regarding Libro
Centre Financial Update BE TABLED until Libro Budget discussions.

5. 2017 BUDGET DELIBERATIONS 199



6. 2017 FINAL APPROVED BUDGET

It is recommended that: (9 recommendations)

1.  The report from the Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer, dated
November 7, 2016, regarding 2017 Final Approved Budget BE
RECEIVED;

2.  A municipal tax increase of 1.99 % BE APPROVED;

3.  The 2017 Town Gross Operating Budget of $25,799,253 and a net tax
levy of $20,132,837 BE APPROVED;

4.  The 2017 Town Gross Capital Budget of $8,248,581 (as can be seen
in the appendices) to BE APPROVED and FUNDED from:

$1,000,000 - 2017 Gas Tax
$806,205 - Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund
$1,700,000 - Tax Levy through Operations
$149,630 - Police Operations
$123,000 - IT Operations
$469,946- Working Capital Reserve
$75,000- Fleet Reserve Transfer
$50,000- LED Reserve Transfer
$50,000- AODA Reserve Transfer
$2,200,000- Grants and Other Subsidies
$1,624,800- Debentures

5.  A pre-commitment of $412,300 to the 2018 Town Capital Budget BE
APPROVED for reconstruction of the traffic signals and intersection at
Pickering and Sandwich Street;

6.  A pre-commitment of $35,000 to the 2018 Town Capital Budget BE
APPROVED for construction of the new sidewalk from Seasons
Retirement Home to Lowes Side Road;

7.  The Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer BE AUTHORIZED to
make the necessary transfers to fund capital projects as required from
operations and reserves as per the 2017 Capital Budget;

8.  The Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer BE AUTHORIZED to
transfer the funds collected from the 2% Capital Replacement Levy to the
Capital Replacement Reserve; and,



9.  The Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer BE AUTHORIZED to
transfer the funds collected from the 2% Capital Reserve Levy to the
Capital Reserve.

7. ADJOURNMENT

That Council rise and adjourn the 2017 Budget deliberations at      p.m.



1 of 7 

 
 

    
         THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

           AUDIT AND FINANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

MISSION STATEMENT: Committed to delivering cost-effective and efficient services for the 
residents of the Town of Amherstburg with a view to improve and enhance their quality of life. 

 

Author’s Name:  John Purdie, Chair Report Date:  November 22, 2016 

Author’s Phone: N/A Date to Council:  November 29, 2016 

Author’s E-mail: 
johnpurdie@cdpwise.net   

Resolution #: N/A 

 
To: Mayor and Members of Town Council  
 
Subject:     Audit and Finance Advisory Committee 2017 Budget Review 
 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION:     
 
It is recommended that:  
 

1. Report from the Audit and Finance Advisory Committee dated 11/29/2017 
regarding Audit and Finance Advisory Committee 2017 Budget Review BE 
RECEIVED. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND: 
 
The Audit and Advisory Committee (Committee) was established in 2015 by the Town 
of Amherstburg (Town).  The seven member committee is comprised of professionals 
with accounting (2) and legal (2) designations in addition to two members of Town of 
Amherstburg Council and a representative from the Amherstburg Chamber of 
Commerce.  Per the terms of reference the committee mandate is “to consider matters 
related to the Town of Amherstburg financial affairs and report its findings, opinions and 
recommendations to Council.” 
 
Town of Amherstburg Council (Council) has requested the Committee to provide input 
regarding the 2017 proposed budget.  Council has been provided with a 2017 
Operational and Capital Budget. 
 
The report by the Committee comprised an analysis of the above noted documents 
along with supplemental information provided by the Director of Corporate Services.  As 
part of the analysis, the Committee utilized historical data from the Town as well as a 
sample set of historical data from comparable municipalities along with their publicly 
proposed 2017 budget.  The information was referenced with current economic trends, 
the effect of which impact residential and commercial rate payers.   

Page5

mailto:johnpurdie@cdpwise.net


2 of 7 

 
3. DISCUSSION: 
 
The 2017 Operational and Capital Budget recommends the following: 
 

A 1.99% increase which equates to the approximate current 1.5% rate of inflation.  That 

would increase the total Municipal assessment from $903 per $100,000 in 2016 to $922 

for 2017.  This would be combined with a forecasted .5% increase to the County / 

Education assessment bringing a total combined effective tax rate of 1.49% 

 
The Municipal position paper recommends the following staffing compliments: 

1. Committee Coordinator (PT) 
2. Health and Safety Officer (1 year contract) 
3. Director of Parks, Recreation and Tourism 
4. Fire Clerk (PT to FT) 
5. Planner (PT) 
6. Service and Support Technologist (PT to FT) 
7. Firefighter/ Training Officer 

 
 
4.   RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
As mentioned in the prior report, municipalities of Essex County are continuing to face   
stagnation within the industrial and commercial base.   The Windsor Essex Economic 
and Development Corporation efforts have yet to materialize in new industry for the 
region. Amherstburg is impacted by a lack of diversification in the industrial and 
commercial sector and a diminishing base of residential development opportunities. The 
Town is in a transition period adopting a new strategic plan and implementing new 
procedures and strategies to support the pillars identified in the community based 
strategic plan. Consistent with the prior years report, municipalities have rebranded 
themselves in order to compete.  Federal and Provincial infrastructure programs have 
targeted economic development.  Municipalities face additional risk of addressing 
funding of their own infrastructure, capital replacement programs and operational 
challenges and balancing those cash flows through a competitive tax base while 
offering services to attract business and residential development. 
 
The Town continues to practice fiscal restraint as reflected in the current operating and 
capital budget. As recently as 2013, Amherstburg had the highest per capita debt in 
Essex County at $1,679 while having the lowest reserves per capita at $444. 
 
For 2014 & 2015, the debt per capita in Essex County has remained the highest in the 
region at $2073 & $1931 respectively. It should be noted that in 2013, the Town of 
Amherstburg had unfinanced capital of over 14 million dollars and this was final 
debentured in July 2014.  This is what caused the spike in debt per capita in 2014. Prior 
to final debenture this was short term capital funding. 
 
 
 
 

Page6



3 of 7 

With regards to reserves per capita the town has experienced progress in the region 
seeing improvements in 2014 & 2015 bringing that per capita total to $503 in 2014 & 
$632 in 2015. Amherstburg still remains the lowest in this regard in the region. 
 
The risk factor as perceived by the Committee is to provide reliable advice to address 
the organizational needs of Administration, capital and operational cash flows 
necessary for Finance, responsible governance by Council whilst providing an attractive 
tax base for rate payers not only in respect of the current budget but taking into 
consideration future requirements. 
 
 
5. FINANCIAL MATTERS: 
 
2017 Operational and Capital Budget 
 

The 1.99% increase in the 2017 budget is commensurate with other municipalities. 
Currently Tecumseh is presenting a 2.7% increase and LaSalle has proposed a .49% 
increase on increase on the municipal rate. 
 

CHART A– Actual & Proposed 2016/2017 tax increase 
 

 
 
 
Factors taken into consideration by the Committee were the 2016 tax assessment of 
$1,590 per $100K of the Town which places them as the third highest within 
comparable communities as per Chart B below: 
 
 

Page7



4 of 7 

CHART B – 2016 Tax paid per $100,000 - Update 
 

 
 
The overall trend of taxes by the Town has risen from approximately $1,400 in 2011 
which is a cumulative 13.6% over the last five years.   
 
Municipal positions 
The strategic plan has been presented which provided Council with direction on where 
the Town should position its vision, mission, objectives and the implementation plan.  
Many of the new positions are tied to the delivery of objectives in the strategic plan or 
the reorganization report dated 11/26/2015. 
 
Fundamental to the committee’s priorities are cost containment measures, 
replenishment of reserves and to closing the infrastructure funding gap. 
 
With this philosophy in mind the Committee has reviewed the business cases for each 
position in the budget and has the following overview. 
 
 
Committee Coordinator Part-time ($27,543 (Salary 22,827+ Statutory Deductions 
4,716)) is a position that is new to the organization, the Committee supports the position 
in order to help the municipality ensure compliance with the Municipal Act and aid the 
town committees to ensure they are delivering effective advice to Council in a timely 
manner.  The committee also notes that this position is a cost effective way to mitigate 
overtime cost. 
 
Health and Safety Officer 1 Year Contract ($88,531 (Salary 78,000+ Statutory 
Deductions 10,531)) is a recommended Contract extension.  In 2016, Council 
approved the part time position in response to additional orders from the Ministry of 
Labour with regards to health and safety.  The Committee supports the position for a 1 
year period, with the hope that once the gaps identified in the health and safety program 
have been mitigated that the contract position is no longer needed and maintenance of 
health and safety can return to the Manager of Human Resources. 
 

 $-  $500.00  $1,000.00  $1,500.00  $2,000.00  $2,500.00

Leamington

Windsor

LaSalle

Amherstburg

Essex

Tecumseh

Kingsville

Lakeshore

 $2,011.03  

 $1,836.45  

 $1,591.21  

 $1,590.62  

 $1,534.91  

 $1,391.16  

 $1,293.45  

 $1,223.90  

Taxes per $100,000 in 2016 

Page8



5 of 7 

Fire Clerk Full time from Part-time ($38,134 (Incremental Salary 21,643 + Benefits 
& Statutory Deductions 4,716)) is an existing position within the organization that is 
recommended to be transitioned to a full time position.  The Committee supports the 
position given the added responsibilities added of the role since 2014. 
 
Firefighter/Training Officer ($130,122 (Salary 21,643 + Benefits & Statutory 
Deductions 4,716)) is a position that is new to the organization as a result of 
operational challenges and the need to mitigate overtime cost and risk exposure for the 
municipality.  The Committee is in support of this position as well as the offsetting 
reduction in the proposed budget of $49,908.   
 
IT Service and Support Technologist Full time from Part-time ($25,775 
(Incremental Salary 13,764 + Benefits & Statutory Deductions 12,011)) the current 
part time position is recommended to be transitioned to a full time position.  The 
Committee supports the position given the added projects in the future and review of 
municipal comparators. 
 
Planner Part-time ($67,561 (Salary 58,500 + Statutory Deductions $9061)) is a 
newly created part time position that is being recommended.  The Committee supports 
the position given the added demands on the department and review of municipal 
comparators. In addition it ties to the goals of the strategic plan.  
 
Director of Parks, Recreation, Facilities and Cultural Services ($159,090 (Salary 
122,015+ Benefits & Statutory Deductions 37,075)) the areas of tourism, parks and 
as well as sports tourism have been identified as key functions in the strategic plan.  
The Committee does not support the recommendation unless the position is created 
through the realignment of the managerial staff the budget increase should not exceed 
$60,000. 
 
Contractual & Salary and Admin Policy Increases these are negotiated increases 
from the new union contract as well as inflationary increases based on Council policy. 
The Committee supports these increases. 
 
The following is a table to summarize the above: 
 

POSITIONS  SUPPORTED  All IN AMOUNT SUPPORT 

   

Committee Coordinator $27,543 Support 

Health and Safety Officer 88,531 Support 

Firefighter /Training officer and offsetting 
deductions 80,214 Support 

Fire Administrator 38,134 Support 

IT Technologist 25,775 Support 

Planner 67,561 Support  

Director of Parks Facilities Recreation 
and Culture  

60,000 Conditional** 

Contractual & Salary and Admin Policy 
Increases 97,081 Support 

Total budget dollars $484,839  

Page9



6 of 7 

 
** The committee would support $60,000 increase to budget contingent on realignment 
of managerial staff. 
 
 
6. CONSULTATIONS: 
 
The Town of Amherstburg Strategic Plan, and Proposed 2017 Budget dated 11/7/16 
from the office of Financial Services.  Proposed 2017 publicly posted budget information 
for the following municipalities; Town of LaSalle, Town of Tecumseh, and the Town of 
Amherstburg.  Information provided by the Treasurer, Town of Amherstburg. 
 
 
7. CONCLUSION: 

 
The budget continues to promote fiscal restraint. The Committee believes incorporating 
the strategic plan and the asset management plan to incorporate a multiyear forecast of 
three, five and ten year targets prior to Council supporting all recommendations is 
prudent in order to minimize risk factors. 
 
The Committee does support a 1.99% increase to the budget as submitted.  The Town’s 
overall tax per $100,000 continues to place the municipality in a position of strength in 
the competitive environment to attract commercial, industrial and residential growth. 
Although trends have indicated that the cumulative rate of increase of the tax rate has 
increased incrementally at a higher rate in the Town, our overall rate remains 
competitive. While the operational budget addresses more immediate concerns, the 
capital budget has been identified as a higher risk area.  A long term plan has not been 
finalized within the scope of the asset management plan to address underfunded 
reserves.  The current budget should take into consideration a stronger emphasis on 
Capital where projects have the potential for extensive cost overruns if an emergency 
situation exists. 
  
The recommendation of the Committee is to revaluate the methodology of applying the 
capital reserves. Currently, Reserves are used on a dollar for dollar basis to fund capital 
projects. An alternative philosophy is using a percentage of the reserves to service 
capital spending and internally finance the town’s capital projects.  
 
The advantage of the philosophy is the reserve pools will increase, while the 
infrastructure funding gap will reduce.  This strategy will under current interest rate 
conditions will result in reduced weighted average capital borrowing cost currently a 
weighted average of 4.1%. Risk mitigation factors include avoidance of increased CPI, 
increased in borrowing rates and construction cost increases.   
 
This philosophy addresses the risk factor while availing Council of advantageous 
interest rates.   This approach would allow Council to prioritize projects identified and 
delayed in past budgets while avoiding the increase in construction costs.  The 
recommendation provides for a proactive approach to preliminary funding of the long 
term asset management plan while minimizing the potential fluctuations in tax 
increases. The Committee believes this approach balances the funding of projects 
through the tax base as it relates to the enjoyment of the asset. 
 

Page10



7 of 7 

As indicated above, the committee supports the 1.99% increase and the ideology of 
reallocating any operational budget reduction into further capital spending to deal with 
infrastructure.  The committee also supports the ideology of increased capital borrowing 
due to the nature of interest rates at this time, this should be considered in order to 
reduce the infrastructure funding gap.    
 
 
 
 
 

John G Purdie 

______________________________    
John G Purdie CPA, CMA 
AFAC Committee, Chair  
    
 
jp 
 

 

Page11



1 of 5 

 
 

    
      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 
 

MISSION STATEMENT: Committed to delivering cost-effective and efficient services for the 
residents of the Town of Amherstburg with a view to improve and enhance their quality of life. 

 

Author’s Name:  Paula Parker Report Date:  November 14, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-0012 ext. 
2238  

Date to Council:  November 29, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  
pparker@amherstburg.ca  

Resolution #: N/A 

 
To: Mayor and Members of Town Council  
 
Subject:     2017 Grants to Community Groups and Organizations 
 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION:     
 
It is recommended that:  
 

1. The report from the Municipal Clerk dated November 14, 2016, regarding 2017 
Grants to Community Groups and Organizations BE RECEIVED; and,  
 

2. The requested funding for Grants to Community Groups and Organizations BE 
APPROVED to BE FUNDED from the 2017 Global Operating Budget. 

 
  
2. BACKGROUND: 
 
In accordance with Town of Amherstburg Policy F10-Grants to Community Groups and 
Organizations, 5 applications for 2017 grants have been received.  At present the 2017 
budget has not  been approved by Council.A provision  for grant requests has been 
included in the 2017 Proposed Budget for Council’s consideration based on grant 
requests from 2016.   
 
As per Policy F10 - Grants to Community Groups and Organizations, to provide a grant, 
Council must consider the following: 
 

 Grants shall only be considered when Council is setting the annual operating 
budget 

 Council may provide grants for municipal services which shall include special 
events, community development, arts and culture, environment and related 
services 

 Council shall only provide grants to not-for-profit and charitable registered groups 

Page12

mailto:pparker@amherstburg.ca


2 of 5 

 
 
As per Policy F10 - Grants to Community Groups and Organizations, groups must meet 
the following criteria to qualify: 
 

 The Request for Annual Grant form shall be received no later than October 30th 
of the prior year 

 Any returning groups shall submit their Annual Report from the Community Grant 
Group form no later than October 30th of the prior year 

 They must be not-for-profit or charitable registered 

 Group/committee members must be in good community standing 

 They must disclose all budget and financial information to the Town of 
Amherstburg 

 
As per Policy F10 - Grants to Community Groups and Organizations, Council also has 
the following rights: 
 

 Council may, at any time, request to see the financial position of a grant group 

 Council may refuse to offer a grant if it is determined that the group does not 
meet the requirements of the policy 

 Council may refuse or rescind a grant or any promissory grants 
 
 
3. DISCUSSION: 
 
Administration has conducted a review of each requesting group.  It has been 
determined that each requesting group meets the criteria of the policy.  Christ Church 
Anglican’s grant request was received by the Clerk’s office on November 7, 2016, which 
is beyond the deadline date set by the policy, however the request is still being provided 
to Council for its consideration.  It should also be noted that returning requestors have 
submitted the required Post Report to the Town.  
 
Each group provides valued programs or services to various Amherstburg residents.  All 
organizations are requesting funds to continue with current offerings and to fund their 
cost of operations. 
 
The following table summarizes the requests to be considered (applications are also 
attached for reference): 
 

Organization Particulars Requested 
Amount 

Amherstburg 
Community Services 
(ACS) 

Continuation of services, which include: 

 acting as the local agent for 
Jumpstart Children’s 
Recreational Subsidy programs 
and within the last year for the 
Ontario Electricity Support 
Program  

 to run programs assisting low 
income families and providing 

$5,000.00 

Page13



3 of 5 

satellite office space for a variety 
of agencies (Teen Health, 
counseling, Hiatus House, legal 
aid and more) 

 income Tax clinics and computer 
classes 

 fill a backpack/Family Fun Day 

 Meals on Wheels, Care A Van 

 Income Tax clinics 

Amherstburg Food 
and Fellowship 
Mission 

Continuation of services, which include:  

 providing programs to 
economically disadvantaged 
residents through hot meals 

 emergency food baskets  

 clothing center programs 

 Baby program providing formula, 
diapers, etc. 

$1,500.00 

House of Shalom 
Youth Centre 

Continuation of services, which include:  

 expand cultural, educational, 
recreational and social activities 
for the benefit of young people in 
Amherstburg 

 launched R.E.C.E.S.S designed 
for Grade 8 students to focus on 
healthy relationships, decision 
making, effective communication, 
and peer pressure 

 partners with Canada Day 
festivities, Rotary Club of 
Amherstburg, Riverlights, Bright 
Child Montessori, the Chamber 
of Commerce, Fort Malden and 
Big Brothers Big Sisters 

 brought the Game On and Go 
Girls programs to public grade 
schools in the community 

 $8,000.00 
 
 
 
 
 

(2016 – 
requested 
$8,000.00 
Council 

approved 
$7,000.00) 

Amherstburg 
Freedom Museum 

Continuation of services, which include: 

 open year round to walk-in 
visitors 

 provide tours and educational 
programming regarding the 
preservation of the Black 
heritage of the region from 
African origins to the present day 
and to continue to draw visitors 
to Amherstburg 

 2017 cultural programming 
includes; Ribs & Ragtime, 
Emancipation Day Celebration, 
Annual Christmas at the 

$ 6,500.00 

Page14



4 of 5 

Museum, presentation of the Mac 
Simpson Award 

 Introduction of the Amherstburg 
Freedom Summit 

Amherstburg Historic 
Sites Association 

Continuation of services, which include: 

 preservation of artifacts that tell 
the history of Amherstburg and 
its people through exhibits, talks 
and written material 

 Women of Amherstburg: A 
Herstory – the role of women in 
society since the confederation 

$8,500.00 
 
 

(2016 – 
Council 

approved  
$6,500.00) 

Cat Assistance Team  Continuation of services, which include: 

 Trapping 2-3 days per week 

 Food to bait traps and feed 
existing colonies 

 Shelters for the winter to reduce 
human interaction with feral 
animals 

 Educational materials to keep the 
community informed  

$7,500.00 
 

(2016 – 
requested 
$15,000.00 

Council 
approved  
$5000.00) 

 

Christ Church 
Anglican 

Maintenance of the military cemetery 
dating to War of 1812 

 grave markers, beautification of 
the grounds 

$750.00 
 
 

 
 
4.   RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
The Community Grants Budget recommended for funding in the 2017 budget is based 
on the funding levels approved by Council in 2016. It should be noted that not all grant 
submissions were received prior to the budget preparation as per the policy and others 
may come forward seeking similar consideration.     
 
Should Council choose not to provide funding to these community groups, there may be 
a negative impact on the valued services delivered to the community resulting in 
hardship in some situations. This may result in the political criticism of Council should 
funding not be provided. 
 
 
5. FINANCIAL MATTERS: 
 
In 2016, Council approved a budget for Grants to Community Groups and Organizations 
of $32,500.  The 2017 Grants to Community Groups and Organizations budget line was 
projected prior to receiving all grant requests from community groups and was added to 
the 2017 budget as $32,500 based on the 2016 approval.  Should Council wish to 
approve the community grant applications as submitted for 2017, a total of $37,750 
would be required. As tabled, the 2017 operating budget is balanced, therefore should 
Council wish to provide the additional $5,250 of funding requested to support 
Community Groups, Council will have two options: 

Page15



5 of 5 

 
1. Reallocate funding from another program in the operating budget 

OR 
2. Collect additional funding from the general tax rate.  

 
 
6. CONSULTATIONS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
7. CONCLUSION: 
 
Community groups and organizations provide valuable services to the residents of this 
community.  They are a vital part of moving the Town forward.  The above listed groups 
have asked for financial assistance from Council to continue to provide valued 
community services at or above their current standards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________   
Paula Parker     
Municipal Clerk     
      
 
 
pp 
 

APPENDICES: 
Community Grant applications 

 
 

Page16



Page17



Page18



Page19



Page20



Page21



Page22



Page23



Page24



Page25



Page26



Page27



Page28



Page29



Page30



Page31



Page32



Page33



Page34



Page35



Page36



Page37



Page38



Page39



Page40



Page41



Page42



Page43



Page44



Page45



Page46



Page47



Page48



Page49



Page50



Page51



Page52



Page53



Page54



Page55



Page56



Page57



Page58



Page59



Page60



Page61



Page62



Page63



Page64



Page65



Page66



Page67



Page68



Page69



Page70



Page71



Page72



 

1 of 12 

 
 

    
       THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

           OFFICE OF PARKS, FACILITIES, RECREATION & CULTURE 
 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

 

Author’s Name:  Giovanni (John) Miceli, 
Sandy Lindsay & Rick Daly  

Report Date:  November 15, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-5712  ext. 2126  Date to Council:  November 29, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  jmiceli@amherstburg.ca  
slindsay@amherstburg.ca  
rdaly@amherstburg.ca 

Resolution #: N/A 

 
To: Mayor and Members of Town Council  
 
Subject:     Libro Centre Financial Update 
 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION:     
 
It is recommended that: 
 

1. The report from the CAO, Manager of Facilities and Manager of Recreation 
Services dated November 15, 2016, regarding Libro Centre Financial Update BE 
RECEIVED;  
 

2. The requested funding for the Libro Centre BE CONSIDERED during the 2017 
Operating Budget Deliberations; 
 

3. Administration BE DIRECTED to develop a programming plan to utilize the dry 
floor surface in both rinks between the months of May and July; 
 

4. The Treasurer BE AUTHORIZED to establish the Multiuse Complex Capital 
Reserve  
 

5. A facility surcharge BE APPROVED for the Libro Centre to fund the Multiuse 
Complex Capital Reserve; and,  
 

6. Savings realized in utility costs from dry programing BE TRANSFERRED to the 
Multiuse Complex Capital Reserve.  
 

7. Administration BE DIRECTED to consult with stakeholders and prepare a 
surcharge schedule for Council approval for all rentals at the Libro Centre. 

 
 

Page73

mailto:jmiceli@amherstburg.ca
mailto:slindsay@amherstburg.ca
mailto:rdaly@amherstburg.ca


 

2 of 12 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Libro Centre is a state-of-the-art facility that the Town and residents take great 
pride in.  The facility is well utilized and enjoyed by a large number of user groups and 
individuals.  However, since opening, the facility has been operating on a budget that 
does not adequately provide for a level of service that citizens have become 
accustomed to and expect.  
 
Avoiding timely maintenance and inspections in effort to stay on budget presents 
several risks such as loss of the facility LEED Certification, deferred and inflated 
“unbudgeted” repair and maintenance costs, further deterioration of the facility and most 
importantly citizen safety.  In an effort to avoid these risks, Administration has provided 
three alternative options that may assist in the reduction of the overall operating costs of 
the Libro Centre for Council’s consideration. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND: 
  
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) is a rating system devised to 
evaluate the environmental performance of a building and encourages market 
transformation towards sustainable design.  Projects earn points for environmentally 
friendly actions taken during construction and use of a building.   

To maintain LEED Certified accreditation, the facility requires re-certification every five 
years.  This requires demonstration of compliance for the entire period of time from the 
project’s previous certification and requires administration to continuously assess the 
environmental performance of their buildings.  Failure to comply with these 
requirements puts the LEED certification at risk. 

The Libro Credit Union Centre (Libro Centre) is a LEED-Silver certified, state-of-the-art 
building that opened in 2010.  Encompassing approximately 165,000 square feet, the 
Libro Centre provides a wide variety of amenities that suit the needs of our community. 

LEED is a voluntary program; however, prior to construction the Town committed to 
obtaining a LEED certification for the Libro Centre.  Obtaining a LEED certification 
projects a positive environmental image to the community.  Additionally, using many 
green building practices can result in better indoor air quality and energy and cost 
savings over the life of the structure.   

The Libro Centre Indoor features: 

 two NHL-sized ice pads 
 sledge hockey compatibility 
 goalie/shooting/training rink 
 16 dressing rooms (8 dressing rooms are AODA accessible) 
 indoor turf regulation soccer field 
 walking track 
 tournament room 
 concession facility with food court 
 meeting and banquet facilities  

Page74



 

3 of 12 

 leasing space 
 community kitchen 
 recreation zone 
 On-site sports shop with skate sharpening 

 The Libro Centre Outdoor features: 

 premier baseball diamond 
 Miracle League diamond - specially designed to make mobility easier for children 

with walkers and wheelchairs  
 20 soccer fields - festival ready for all age categories 
 turf field for football or soccer 
 field house 
 horseshoe pits 
 outdoor concession facilities 
 dressing rooms and AODA accessible washrooms 

With a facility of this size and complexity, there is a constant need for preventative 
maintenance. There are also unexpected operational costs and pressures that will arise. 
As the building ages these needs and pressures only increase as major building 
components start to fail and require replacement. For example, much of the mechanical 
equipment used in such facilities are designed by manufacturers to meet American 
Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) standards 
and have a life cycle expectancy of 20 years. This life cycle is determined with 
established preventative maintenance occurring. With much of the budget reductions 
experienced at the Libro Centre since opening, preventative maintenance has been 
minimized and the Town has adopted a reactive method of maintenance.   
 
This is not a problem unique to Amherstburg.  A high level comparison of arena 
operating costs of other local Municipalities, that offer similar facilities and offer similar 
programming, confirmed the financial pressures and lack of capital reinvestment is a 
common factor. 
  
It should be noted that Lasalle recently completed a detailed review of their Recreation 
operations, which has resulted in a proposal to significantly increase their Recreation 
User Fees in 2017. Council may elect to take a similar path or address service levels or 
a combination thereof.  
 
 
3. DISCUSSION: 
 
On August 8th 2008, a special public meeting was held at the Verdi Club for a 
presentation from Nustadia, the Town engaged consultants.  Nustadia presented a 
feasibility study regarding the viability of a Multi-Use Recreation facility for the Town of 
Amherstburg. There were also presentations from the then Manager of Recreation 
Services and Supervisor of Budget Services, as well as many user groups and 
residents. (see Appendix A) 
 
This presentation included a financial estimate that showed projected revenues at 
$1,248,900 for the multi-pad-plus indoor facilities, with an estimated operating cost 

Page75



 

4 of 12 

before debt repayment of $938,250 and a projected surplus of $310,650 to service any 
debt repayment. This meeting began the process of the development of the building 
now known as the Libro Centre. 
 
From August 8th 2008 to its opening in December 2010, the community rallied behind 
the project and fundraising and grant efforts took place to make the new facility a reality 
for the citizens of Amherstburg. 
 
In 2011, the Town set a budget for the first year of operations of the new facility. The 
budgeted revenue was set at $1,239,800 which was consistent with the projections from 
Nustadia. The actual revenue recognized was $682,941; this created a revenue shortfall 
of ($556,859). From an expenditure standpoint 2011 had a proposed budget of 
$1,220,328; the actual costs came in at $1,532,657, a budget shortfall of ($312,329).  
The Libro Centre overall, year-end variance for 2011 was a deficit of ($869,188). 
 
 
 

 Nustadia 
Suggested 

Budget 
2011 Budget 

2011 YE 
Actuals 

2011 YE 
Variance 

Revenue $1,248,900 $  1,239,800 $      682,941   ($556,859) 

Expenses $   938,250 $  1,220,328 $   1,532,657   ($312,329) 

Year End: $   310,650    $       19,472 ($    849,716)   ($869,188) 

  
These results are significantly different than the projected operating surplus of 
$310,650, originally presented by Nustadia. This resulted in change net in position from 
budget to actual of ($1,179,838). It is also important to note that no provision was made 
in the operating budget for the future replacement of major equipment or major facility 
capital replacements going forward into a reserve. The purpose of such a contribution 
would be to mitigate the impact on future rate payers for the facility. Typically, such 
contributions are 1% to 2% of the construction cost of such a facility. The cost of the 
facility was $24,770,418 and therefore the range of the annual contribution would be 
$247,704 to $495,408 and would have increased the operating deficit accordingly to 
$1,116,892 and $1,364,596.    
  
This was the town’s first indication that the revenue and expense projections presented 
during the business case for the arena would not be a realistic outcome to expect with 
this new facility.  Accordingly, decisions were made by Council (both current and future) 
and managers of municipal facilities to endeavor to run the facility as lean as possible 
and minimize the impact on ratepayers. It appears that all involved believed that running 
the facility as lean as possible was the most appropriate solution and decisions were 
made to support such an outcome. 
 
After 2011, budgets were significantly adjusted, specifically on the revenue side. Budget 
to actuals figures stabilized in 2012-2015 without significant variances to the 
organization, however in the years 2014 and 2015 as financial constraints became a 
concern for the organization, the Libro Centre budget was reduced in an effort to reduce 
spending.  The reduced budget makes it difficult to effectively maintain the building at 
an appropriate level of standard without producing a deficit variance at year end. 

Page76



 

5 of 12 

 
Going forward, this issue must be addressed. There are challenges that are being 
experienced in the operation of the Libro Centre, affecting the mechanical and 
refrigeration systems of the facilities. User groups such as the seniors have come 
before Council with complaints regarding inadequate heating/cooling issues that have 
been present since inception. As a result, Council has earmarked $25,000 for 
administration to address the issue. Other user groups such as the Amherstburg 
Admirals and AMHA have had concerns with the quality of ice.  
 
As a result of the mechanical and refrigeration concerns of the facility, Administration 
has engaged the services of Mechanical Engineer Mark Kurzuk of Fieldcraft 
Engineering Ltd to review the performance and operation of the facility’s mechanical 
systems and return the building to its LEED status operation when previously 
commissioned.  Fieldcraft has advised that this process will take several months to 
complete.  
 
In an effort to provide Council options for consideration that may assist in the reduction 
of the overall operating costs of the Libro, Administration has reviewed the following 
options: 

1. Do nothing and continue operation as is resulting in status quo budget request. 
 

2. Increase revenues through increased user fees and/or alternative programming, 
resulting in either reduced operating costs or the development of a reserve to 
address future facility requirements.  
 

Administration supports the development of a reserve to ensure that the current and 
future users of the facility are contributing to funding the future replacements. It should 
be noted that ice rentals account for approximately 82% of the rental revenue. For 
illustrative purposes the report will only address the ice rental component of the facility 
however, Council may wish to apply a surcharge to all rentals at the facility including 
indoor soccer and outdoor sports field rentals.  The following chart summarizes ice 
hours rented at the Libro Centre for each full year.   

 

Year 
Movati Rink 
Rental Hours 

Rink A 
Rental Hours 

Goalie Rink 
Rental Hours 

Total  
Rental Hours 

2013 2,458.5  2,020.5  547  5,026 

2014 1,920  2,428  711  5,059 

2015 2,254.25  2,286.25  706  5,246.5 

2016 2,198.75  2,058.75  705  4,962.5 

Average 2,207.875 2,198.375 667.25 5,073.5 

 
For illustrative purposes, the following chart indicates the impact a surcharge will have 
on revenue generation for total hours rented at the facility: 
 

Total Average 
Hours 

$5.00 
Surcharge 

$10.00 
Surcharge 

$15.00 
Surcharge 

5,074 $25,370 $50,740 $76,110 

 

Page77



 

6 of 12 

Should Council adopt the surcharge model, all revenues will be collected to fund the 
Multiuse Complex Capital Reserve. The purpose of the reserve is to provide funding for 
capital expenditures and the future replacement of the facility.  
  

3. Reduce service levels and hours of operation thus reducing operating costs 
resulting in reduced budget request. 
 

In this option Administration believes that Council may wish to consider the time period 
ice is offered to users.  It should be noted that Ice Rentals include Goalie Pad rentals 
and rentals during the summer months when ice is removed from the rinks and replaced 
with a dry floor rental opportunity.  Of the $575,000 projected to be gained through ice 
rental for the year, the following is a breakdown of summer ice rental (April – August) for 
2016, not including dry floor rentals: 
 
 
 Movati Rink Rink A Goalie Pad Rink Totals 

 

Rental 
Hours 

Revenue 
@ 

$132.53/hr 
Rental 
Hours 

Revenue 
@ 

$132.53/hr 

Rent
al 

Hour
s 

Revenue 
@ 

$32.10/hr 
Rental 
Hours Revenue 

April 0* $  0 145.5 $19,283.12 65 $  2,086.50 210.5 $  21,369.62 

May 0* $  0 95.5 $12,656.62 53 $  1,701.30 148.5 $  14,357.92 

June 13* $  1,722.89 9** $  1,192.77 28 $     898.80 50 $    3,814.46 

July 75 $  9,939.75 0** $              0 36 $  1,155.60 111 $  11,095.35 

August 209 $27,698.77 10** $  1,325.30 56 $  1,797.60 275*** $  30,821.67 

Totals 297 $39,361.41 260 $34,457.81 238 $  7,639.80 795 $  81,459.02 
* ice was removed beginning of April and put back in on week of June 14

th
 

** ice was removed week of June 5
th

 and put back in week of August 15
th
  

*** majority of ice rented in August for resident hockey camp and AMHA and Admirals tryouts. 

 
As indicated, ice rentals are low during the months of May to July.  Revenue generated 
during this period is calculated at $29,267.73.  With all three ice surfaces running, along 
with all other activity within the Libro Centre, the average cost of utilities is $49,000 per 
month + HST for a utility cost of $147,000 +HST.  When one ice surface is removed and 
a dry floor is substituted in as a rental opportunity, the average cost of utilities is 
reduced to $40,000.00 per month + HST. It is estimated utilities for the Libro Centre 
without any ice production would cost approximately $20,000.00 +HST per month 
resulting an estimated savings of $29,000 per month.  
 
For illustrative purposes, a review of the last four years’ May-July Rental Hours 
demonstrates a downward trend.  

May-July for the 
Year 

Movati Rink 
Rental Hours 

Rink A 
Rental Hours 

Goalie Pad 
Rental Hours 

2013 308  43  85  

2014 16  331  152  

2015 154.5  12  143  

2016 88  104.5  117  

 
If the Town was to shut down the ice making plant between the months of May and July, 
an estimated cost savings on utilities alone would be approximately $87,000.00. 
Administration further recommends that any savings in utilities should be used as an 

Page78



 

7 of 12 

additional funding source to fund the Multiuse Facility Capital Reserve. In addition, other 
savings or benefits that may be realized are: 
 

 Reduced staffing levels or repurposing staff for other municipal purposes 

 Reduced wear and tear on refrigeration system and pumps therefore extending 
the useful life of the equipment  

 Opportunity for annual maintenance and inspections outside of operating hours 
 
Should Council choose to move forward with this option, Administration will explore new 
recreation programming opportunities utilizing the second dry floor surface. Possible 
opportunities include: 
 

 Ball Hockey Leagues and tournaments (adult and youth) 

 In Line Hockey Leagues 

 Added Pickleball courts (would now have ability to run tournaments and leagues) 

 Parent/Tot Activity Centre 

 Basketball/Dodgeball Leagues 

 Indoor Tennis Camps/Leagues 

 Other rentals e.g. home shows, auctions, etc 
 
Revenue would be generated from these new opportunities that would offset the loss of 
revenue that is generated from ice rentals, while at the same time adding to the overall 
cost savings in the operation of the Libro Centre in the summer months and maximizing 
use of the facilities. 

 
 
4.   RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
As discussed, LEED re-certification for the Libro Centre is at risk should the building not 
be maintained at the level of standards required. Over the past several years, decisions 
have been made independent of the system design and performance requirements that 
were driven primarily from a financial perspective which have now impacted the 
systems performance.  As a result, a re-commissioning and rebalancing of the building 
system is necessary to return the facility to the LEED certified and commissioned 
design.  Failure to do will result in loss of the LEED certification and accordingly will 
impact the performance of the building’s mechanical system and result in increased 
operating and capital costs.  
 
Financial risks exist should the Municipality run into a scenario in which town-wide 
budgetary dollars cannot sustain a departmental variance of this size. In other words, 
annually, the other departments will collectively need to produce a surplus at year end 
which is large enough to cover the deficit produced at the Libro Centre.  Should this not 
occur, the tax stabilization account may be required as a funding source in order to 
prevent increases to the tax rate. This practice is not sustainable and will eventually 
deplete the reserve, thus the need to create a self-sustaining reserve for the Libro 
Centre. The reserve should be funded by users of the facility to ensure the ongoing 
sustainability of the facility. 
 

Page79



 

8 of 12 

Future Libro Centre budgets should be adjusted to prevent this scenario and to ensure 
proper preventative maintenance programs are being done to prolong the life of this 
significant asset.  
 
Preventative maintenance is a mitigation measure not only used to ensure the longevity 
of municipal infrastructure; it is also used to ensure the safety of facility users.  If the 
facility is allowed to further deteriorate, the risk of personal injury increases.  Both the 
facility and the safety of its users are of the utmost importance to the organization. 
 
  
5. FINANCIAL MATTERS: 
 
The 2016 expense budget for Libro Centre is $329,258 lower than it was in 2013 and 
2016 projected costs have increased by $13,484, for the same period.  This would 
indicate that the budget has been adjusted to a level below what the service levels and 
the facilities require to successfully operate. 
 
There are several factors that make developing the budget for a facility such as the 
Libro Centre challenging:  programing usage, utilities, staffing needs, etc.   
 
Budget to Actuals comparison of Total Expenses-Libro Centre, over the past 4 years 
are as follows: 
 

Year Budget 
Year End 
Actuals 

Year End 
Variance 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

*2017  $   1,622,666   

**2016 $   1,111,920 $   1,498,923 $   (387,003) 

2015 $   1,368,697 $   1,367,672 $         1,625 

2014 $   1,439,618 $   1,272,918 $     166,700 

2013 $   1,441,178 $   1,485,439 $     (44,261) 

*Proposed Budget 
**Projected YE Actuals and Variance 

 
 
2016 Budget to Actuals-By Category of Expenses-Libro Centre: 
 

Expense Category – Libro 
Centre 

Proposed 
2017 

Budget 

2016 
Budget 

Actual 
as at 

Sept 30, 
2016 

Projected 
Year End 
Actuals 

Projected 
Year End 
Variance 

Salaries, Wages & Benefits $  836,496 $  575,762 $  502,543 $ 657,414 $ (81,652) 

Benefits 253,470 171,950 118,764 180,891 (8,941) 

Allocation of Salaries and 
Benefits to Facilities (220,000) (149,542) (112,157) (149,542) - 

General Expenses 102,000 32,750 93,970 112,958 (80,208) 

Building 634,700  464,000 565,872 681,202 (217,202) 

Equipment and Vehicles 16,000 17,000 10,867 16,000 1,000 

Total Expenses – Libro 
Centre $1,622,666 $1,111,920 $1,179,859 $1,498,923 $(387,003) 

 

Page80



 

9 of 12 

The projected year-end variance for the Libro Centre expenses is ($387,003), due to 
unexpected repairs and rising utilities cost, as well as variances in staffing cost.   The 
projected deficit is broken down into two areas:  Salaries, Wages & Benefits which 
make up ($90,593) of the variance, and General Expenses, Building, Equipment and 
Vehicles – which make up the remaining ($296,410) deficit. 
 
Salaries & Wages, Benefits: ($ 90,593) 
 
The projected year end staffing costs are consistent with prior years; however there was 
a $107,235 decrease in the 2016 budget in this area from 2015, resulting in a projected 
year end deficit of ($90,593).  Both Libro Centre staff and Facilities Operations staff are 
combined in this data.  Facility staffing costs are re-allocated to Facility Operations each 
pay period at a fixed amount, which offsets the staffing costs and is factored into these 
calculations.  Unbudgeted, full-time positions were established in 2016 through 
Collective Bargaining.  Administration has adjusted the 2017 Proposed Budget for 
staffing costs accordingly. 
 
Moving forward, the staff will be doing some work in-house that was previously 
performed by outside contractors, as the Town is in the process of hiring skilled labour 
positions, a plumber and an electrician.  
 
 
General Expenses, Building, Equipment & Vehicles:  ($ 296,410) 
 

 
2016 Budget 

Projected YE 
Variance 

Utilities $   360,000 $   (130,000) 

Contracted Services 9,000 - 

Misc. Expenses (Training, Office Supplies, etc) 23,750 - 

Bldg Repairs & Maintenance & Programming 
Materials 

104,000 (167,410) 

Equipment & Vehicle Maintenance 17,000 1,000 

Totals: $   513,750 $   (296,410) 

 
 
 
Utilities 
There is a $513,750 operating budget relating to the costs of maintaining and operating 
the building and/or facilities.  Utilities make up the most of this budget at $360,000 and 
also contribute a ($130,000) deficit to this year-end projected ($296,410) variance, with 
a year-end projected total cost of $490,000, which is an approximately $10,000 increase 
over 2015. 
 
Contracted Services 
The $9,000 Contracted Services budget relates to routine contracts for pest control, 
mats throughout the building, drinking water, disposal services and telecommunications.  
The year-end cost for these contracted services will be within budget, with no variance 
projected.   
 

Page81



 

10 of 12 

Miscellaneous Expenses  
There are miscellaneous expenses such as clothing, health & safety, training, office 
supplies, etc. that are trending to be on budget with no variance projected. 
 
 
 
Building Repairs and Maintenance & Programming Materials 
The Libro Centre building and programming budget is $104,000.  The costs for building 
repairs, maintenance and programming materials are trending a year-end deficit of 
($160,202). 
 

 Expenses 
as at 

Sept 30, 2016 

Unexpected Repairs $    66,823 

Miscellaneous Building Maintenance 52,132 

Programming Materials:  Sportsfields & Ice 29,130 

Fire Protection/Sprinkler System 16,883 

Total as at Sept 30, 2016: $ 164,968 

 
Unexpected Repairs:  $66,823 

These repairs are not routine in nature and not considered routine maintenance repairs. 
 
There were a number of leaks in the system related to the association refrigeration 
piping that caused further leaks and eventually caused leakage to the glycol system, 
resulting in various pressure fluctuations.  A complete shut-down was necessary to 
complete the costly repair to the entire refrigeration system. 
 
In addition to the refrigeration issues, there was a costly repair required to the 
Fieldhouse electrical system. 
 
In early 2016, due to a significant rainfall, the ground was saturated causing damage to 
a previously repaired electrical line from the Libro Centre to the Fieldhouse, which 
houses the building management system.  This computerized system is used for the 
baseball, soccer/football field lighting and associated power and lighting to the 
Fieldhouse itself. 
 
The necessary repairs were completed.  However, the cost to replace the circuit boards 
of the building management system was estimated in excess of $10,000.  To mitigate 
some of these replacement costs, the decision was made to replace the system with a 
manual system at a lower expense.  
 

Miscellaneous Building Maintenance:  $52,132 
These costs relate to janitorial supplies, parking lot maintenance, entranceway repairs, 
and routine inspections, heating & cooling system, the boiler and the facility plumbing. 
These are costs that are to be expected on an annual basis. 

 
 
 

Page82



 

11 of 12 

Programming Materials:  $29,130 
These costs relate to the materials required for the program activities at the Libro 
Centre.  For example, the paint for the field lines and glass repairs to the arena boards. 
Again, these are expected annual costs related to the business of programming 
recreational activities. 
 
It should be noted, moving forward, the staff (where feasible) will be doing some work 
in-house that has typically been performed at a higher cost, by outside contractors, for 
example, painting the ice surfaces.   Painting and logo installation for the three ice pads 
could cost upwards of $8,000.  In 2016, the Libro Centre purchased ice painting 
equipment and staff is being trained to perform this work in-house, which will reduce the 
overall cost to the Town. 
 

Fire Protection/Sprinkler System:  $16,883 
Annual inspections of fire protections systems such as the sprinkler system at the Libro 
are required under the Ontario Fire Code.  
 
Several deficiencies were noted in the annual inspection from previous years and 
discussions with the Deputy Fire Chief took place. Administration from the Libro Centre 
was informed that the deficiencies noted required repair and there was no extension of 
time given to complete these repairs. 
 
These fire code deficiencies are a violation of the Ontario Fire Code and are also a 
health and safety concern for staff and the public who attend the Centre. Not completing 
these deficiencies was not an option and thus, they were completed in 2016. 
 
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance 
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance budget is $17,000.  This area is trending a slight 
surplus of $1,000 for year-end. 
 
 
6. CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Justin Rousseau, Director of Corporate Service/Treasurer 
Bobbi Reive, Financial Planning Administrator 
Lee Tome, Deputy Fire Chief 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This space left blank intentionally. 
 
 

Page83



 

12 of 12 

7. CONCLUSION: 
 
A full service delivery and cost analysis is required to continue to address operating 
costs of the Libro Centre; furthermore the establishment of a Multiuse Complex Capital 
Reserve is necessary to assist in the long term maintenance and replacement of capital 
items at the facility. This facility is a significant community asset that if not maintained 
will continue to experience operational and capital challenges in the future.     
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Giovanni (John) Miceli 
C.A.O. & Acting Director Parks, Facilities, Recreation & Culture 
 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Rick Daly 
Manager, Recreation Services 
 
 
 
_______________________________  
Sandy Lindsay 
Manager, Municipal Facilities 
 
br 
 

Page84



Page85



Page86



suggested that the Town not include a banquet facility within the new complex. 11r.

Leardi also advised that there is substantial lands available on either side of the Verdi

Club location and proposed that the Town consider these lands as an altemate site; the

Town could enter into a joint facility with the Verdi Club and the 1Iulti-Use Recreation

Facility

3. Bill \ Vark. resident of Amherstbuf2. 1\lember of Amherstbuf2 Accessibilitv Advisorv

Committee. . Mr Wark indicated that he was pleased to hear the comments regarding
accessibility and inclusive initiatives. 1Ir. \Vark also stated that moving forward with any

facility would require full implementation with respect to Accessibility and Inclusiveness.

1Ir. \Vark spoke to the " Big Pichlre" and the need to look to the future by attracting
recreation tourism, health care facilities and other amenities. Mr Wark was confident a

Facility of this scope would attract these amenities. 1\1r. Wark indicated the Tmvn must

move forward responsibly and efficiently.

4. Allan Rogers. A1\1HA. 1Ir Rogers stated the following statistics from A1H-IA: Last

year' s season we had enrolment of 529. : tvtr. Rogers indicated that to date A1\1HA have

500 registered, not including Midget, House League and Travel Teams ( an additional 60

players). 1{r. Rogers stated that A1\1HA currently have 10 children in the 9- 10 age group
on the waiting list and further that A1\,ll-IA have approached all the arenas in the area

including LaSalle and Essex and have been told that these facilities are full. 1{r. Rogers
indicated that A1\1HA still have house league teams that will be going to Ice Park for ice

time. 1Ir. Rogers requested that Council look at the numbers because the community
needs a twin pad. 1\1r Rogers stated that the Complex would be a source of community
pride for years to corne and something that will accommodate community needs.

5. Diane P01.l2et. resident of Amherstburg. 11s. Pouget thanked the presenters for a job well

done. 1Is. Pouget asked Council if Amherstburg could afford a complex like this. 1,ls.

Pouget asked the Budget Supervisor to confinn the possibility that the debt level over the

next 3 years could reach the $ 25 million mark and the figures presented here did not

include the waste water treatment plant that Amherstburg must build. The Budget
Supervisor confinued this statement is correct. The Budget Supervisor added that the

debt of $25 million is fimded by general tax and by water and \vastewater user fees. 1\'1s.

Pouget asked if the $ 45. 00 per household quoted is only v.ith regard to the 1\fulti-use

Recreation Facility. TIle Budget Supervisor indicated that was correct. 1{ s. Pouget
posed the question to Council weather or not the TO\\-lI can get a guarantee regarding the

federal and provincial grants before construction? 1vfayor Hurst stated that Council will

deliberate on all of these concems and have a decision some time this fall. 1Is. Pouget
asked that Council consider the current economic climate in their decision.

6. Joe Laframboise. Resident of Amherstbuf2. Mr. Laframboise stated his support for

t\\inning the existing arena and his belief that the cost estimate with respect to this option
as presented tonight was inflated. 11r. Laframboise asked if the current arena was paid
for. The Budget Supervisor confinned that it is paid for. 1\1r. Laframboise said that

public is voicing a need for additional ice and further that Amherstburg does not need all

the additional features. 1fr. Laframboise suggested the Town obtain grant money for an

addition to the existing arena.

7. Diane Freeman. Resident of Amherstburg. 1Irs. Freeman asked about the option for

Nustadia partial financing mId mmmgement for the new facility. Ed Pavao from Nustadia

responded that private sector financing is available however; the Town could receive a

better rate through the govemment. The rate differential is approximately 2 - 3 %.

8. 11arc Renaud. AMRA. President read an email from Ron mId :tvfarissa Wismer. The

Vismer' s email indicated their strong support for this development mId expressed their

belief that the community requires a facility to meet the needs of families in Amherstburg.

9. \ Vendv Trvmbulak. Amherstbuf2 In- Line Hockev Association. 1\-15. Trymbulak indicated

that the association is 2 years old. : tvls. Trymbulak stated that Amherstburg In-Line

Hockey Assoc currently purchases limited floor time at the arena but are looking fOf\vard

to growth. 1tr. Trymbulak commented the current facility is not adequate mId poses

safety hazards; the roofleaks produce big puddles of water on the floor and tar drips from

the roof into the spectator seating. : tv1s. Trymbulak filrther stated that temperahlres reach

2008 08 13 Special Council Public Meeting
Nustadia ~ Minutes

Page 3 of 113Page87



85 - 90 degrees and children experience vomiting and passing out due to heat exhaustion.
Ms. Trymbulak is unsure weather the organization will survive with this inadequate
facility. Ms. Trymbulak spoke about the adult and senior ice allocation requirements
stating her belief that if Amherstburg does not have 2 pads of ice the adult and senior

programs will not be accommodated. Ms Tryrnbulak works in a long term care facility in

Amherstburg and has seen the effects of lack of exercise in adults. Ms. Trymbulak stated

that the proposed facility would provide opportunities for all age groups to partake in

recreational activities which would produce health benefits.

J

10. Ken Grant. Resident of Amherstbun!. Recreation Committee Member. Mr. Grand stated
his involvement with the arena project has spanned the past 10 years and ht.:. feels enough
is enough with studies. Mr. Grant indicated that Amherstburg user groups have already
fundraised for a facility. Mr. Grant quoted the following estimates: AMHA has

fundraised approx. $ 100,000.00, Skate Amherslburg $ 35,000.00 and Individuals have

raised $63, 000.00. Mr Grant asked council to move forward and " make it happen".

11. Unidentified Particioant: A Gentleman asked what happened to the option of Nustadia

operating the new facility and financing the project. Ed Pavao from Nustadia responded
that the Town is currently at Phase I of the process which called for a Feasibility Study
only. Mayor Hurst added that the next step will provide pricing, location and operation
model options to the Town. Nustadia has only been commissioned for Phase 1, the

Feasibility Study

12. Tonv DiBartolomeo. AMHA Member. Mr. DiBartolomeo asked that Council look at the

Strathroy Complex which was built for approximately $ 5 million dollars. Mr.

DiBartolomeo suggested that Amherstburg look at the options in Strathroy facility as

compared to this proposal.

13. Dave Cozens. Resident ofAmherstburlr. Mr Cozens asked if the constroction will be open
to public tender and competitive bids. Ed Pavao from Nustadia responded that Stage 2 of

the process will include a design build model with guaranteed pricing. Mr. Pavao stated

further that there will be one General Contractor and all of the trades will be tendered

allowing for competitive bids.

14. Debbie Woods. Resident of Amherstbure:. Ms Woods indicated her support for Option B

and questioned what would happen to the old facility, Mayor Hurst responded that

Council has not made a decision at this point Ms. Wood voiced her concern that the old

facility would become an eyesore in the middle of Town. Mayor Hurst advised that

Council would make a decision regarding the disposition of the facility when the time

comes and further that it is premature at this stage. Mayor Hurst indicated that this would

be a factor that Council considers.

Mayor Hurst thanked the residents and presenters for coming out and providing their input into

the process. Mayor Hurst stated that this exercise was very important and all that was said had

been docmnented. Mayor Hurst stated that Council will review all of the information and come to

a decision in the fall of 2008 at which time a public announcement will be made in order that the

public can be present to hear the decision.

ADJOURNMENT: 8: 15 P.M.

J

2008 08 13 Special Council Public Meeting
Nusladia- Milll.ltf:ls

Page 4 of 113Page88



Pameia Maiott, CAO & Cierk, Town of Amherstburg
Opening Remarks Nustadia Pubiic Meeting Aug i3, 2008

I would like to welcome all of you this evening. We are here to discuss a new Inclusive

Multi- Use Community Recreation Complex, in promotion of a healthier community;
inclusive sports for persons with disabilities; commitment to the additional needs of the

current user groups; equal access to programming for women' s groups; opportunities for

Sports Tourism; and growth of recreational and leisure programming.

Nustadia Recreation Inc. ( NRI) and EllisDon Construction made a joint presentation to

council in November 2007 on a proposed Inclusive Recreation Complex. NRI was retained

by the Town to complete Phase 1 of the project - a Feasibility Study to determine the need

and the financial viability of this project. NRI has completed the Council approved study with

recommendations contained herein.

The Feasibility Study clearly shows a demonstrated need in the community and the ability for

a multi- use complex to be financially viable and sustainable. The flexible facility shown in

Option B allows the market to influence future development and expand with optional
amenities.

Amherstburg has the least inventory and likely the oldest public recreation facilities of the

communities surveyed in the report. Amherstburg falls short of the industry standard in

meeting the leisure needs of the community due to limited recreation facility space and

programming requiring families to travel to other areas to meet their recreation needs. A

new twin pad would only satisfy the need for ice related sports. A multi-use complex
containing an indoor playing field and multi-use Community Hall would provide new and

expanded leisure programs. The indoor playing field is cost effective and would provide
revenues to make the project economically sustainable.

All current user groups have contributed to the feasibility study conducted by Nustadia

Recreation and have indicated their needs moving forward.

We look forward to receiving your comments this evening.

20080813 Special Council Public Meeting
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 5 of 113Page89



Page90



Page91



Table of Contents
1. 0 Introduction...........01

2.0 Methodology..............03

3.0 Demographics..............05

4.0 Needs
Analysis..............

07

4.1 Inter-Municipal Planning Consultation Committee for the

Windsor-Essex Region

4.2 Creating Healthy Community

4.3 Developing SportTourism Industry

4.4 Current Recreation Facility Infra-structure

4.5 Recreation Facility Infra-strudure with Similar Size

Municipalities in Ontario

4.6 Recreation Facility Infra-strudure Bench- marking Analysis

4.7 Ice Time Needs - Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association

4.8 Ice Time Needs - Amherstburg Skating Club

4.9 Ice Time Adult Hockey

4.10 Other Ice Related Programs

4.11 Summer Ice

4.12 Summer Floor Rentals

4.13 Ice HockeyTournaments and Figure Skating Competitions

4.14 Current and Projected Ice Sales with NewTwin Pad Arena

4.15 Indoor Playing Field

5.0 CurrentTrends in Canadian Recreation
Facilities............

19

6.0 Proposed Facility
Components...................

21

7.0 Financial Analysis..................23

7. 1 Current Program vs. NewTwin Pad

7.2 Preliminary Capital Investment Analysis

8.0 Funding
Options..............

27

8. 1 Infra-structure Ontario Grants/ Special Loans Program

8.2 Ontario Ministry of Health Promotions - Community in

Actions Fund

8.3 Federal Government - Building Canada Fund

8.4 Other Government Funding Options

8.5 Community Fund Raising

8.6 Facility Naming Rights

8.7 Selling Property from Decommissioned Facilities

9.0 Summary and
Recommendations...........

33

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 5 of 73

Page 8 of 113Page92



Page93



1. 0 Introduction

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

C

ENustadia Recreation Inc.(NRI) and EllisDon Construction made a joint presentation to council on November 13, 2007 on a

proposed recreation complex for the Town of Amherstburg. As a result of this presentation, NRI was retained by the Town to

complete the first phase of the project - a feasibility study to determine the need and the financial viability of this project.

This report analyzed multiple factors to conclude that the Town of Amherstburg should consider a new multi-use recreation

complex for the community. These factors included the following:

Past and projected growth patterns for the community

Using recreation facilities to attract and attain a skilled workforce that is necessary for developing a strong regional
economy

Utilizing quality community recreation facilities to help build a healthy community

The need and benefits of developing a sport tourism industryfor the local economy.

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

The existing ice arena is over 38 years old and has out-lived its life expectancy. This is coupled with a demonstrated need for

a new twin pad ice arena to meet the growing needs of the community. Currently, Amherstburg residents have to travel to

outside communities to participate in ice related sports. In addition, programs like girls and women's hockey program that

are offered in communities of comparable size, are not available in this community because of the lack of available ice time.

A new twin pad for the community will only alleviate the need for ice related sports in the community. Compared to several

other communities of similar size, Amherstburg is below the industry standard in meeting the overall leisure needs of the

community due to a limited recreation facility inventory in the community. A multi-use recreation complex consisting of

the recommended indoor playing field and a large multi- use community hall will provide opportunity for new and expanded

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 7 of 73

Page 10 of 113Page94



Page95



2. 0 Methodology
On November 13, 2008, Nustadia Recreation Inc. ( NRI), EllisDon

Construction, and Triamco Developments conducted a joint
presented to the Amherstburg Town Council on a proposed
Recreation Complex. From this presentation, NRI, in January
10, 2008, NRI was awarded a phase one feasibility on the

proposed recreation complex.

As part of this study, NRI reviewed the following documents

that had some potential impact on this project:

Windsor-Essex County Development Commission

2006 - Amherstburg Report

Smart Choices for the Windsor-Essex Region: Inter-

Municipal Planning Consultation Committee - 2007

Annual Report

Windsor, Essex County and Pelee Island: A Premier-

Ranked Tourist Destination Evaluation

Facilities Management Plan conducted by Dillion

Consultants - November 2007

In addition to the above reports, NRI also researched other

published documents that are available in the endnotes of

this document.

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

NRI also conducted open information meeting on February l'
28, 2008, for all potential user groups for the proposed ~
recreation complex. This was followed up with private
meetings with the actual user groups representatives that ~

took place over two different dates. These user groups were: ..

Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association

Skate Amherstburg

Amherstburg Minor Baseball Association

Amherstburg Minor Soccer Association

Amherstburg In- line

Amherstburg Wednesday and Sunday Adult Hockey
Leagues

Amherstburg Recreation Committee ( Chair Cathy
Robertson)

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

There was also an information meeting forthe general public
that was held on March 6, 2008, scheduled information

meetings with Frank Pizzuto, Chief Administrative Officer

and Ron Dzombak, Manager of Recreation Services.

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 9 of 73

Page 12 of 113Page96



Page97



Page98



Page99



Page100



Solving this growing health problem related to physical inactivity will be a major societal problem that has to be addressed

by all, including all three levels of government. In a study through the Ontario's Action Plan for Healthy and Active Living
by the Ontario Ministry of Health Promotions, one of the main challenges for good health is the lack of recreation facilities.J2

Municipalities, including the Town of Amherstburg have a role in providing adequate sport and recreation facilities in their

communities. The proposed multi-use recreation complex would provide increased physical participation opportunities for

all Town of Amherstburg residents, young and old alike for many years to come.s

0

1:
2'

i!

c

E

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

4. 3 Developing Sport Tourism Industry

for at least one overnight stay at local hotels and motels; six

meals at a variety of restaurants; one tank ofgas per family;
at least one pizza for late night bite and a souvenir of their

stay in Brantford... The Gretzky Hockey Tournament hosted

by Brantford Minor Hockey was estimated to generate $ 7.3

million... (Brant New, 7996) 13

From the Canadian Tourism Commission - 2004 Report.
states that there are over 200,000 sporting events held each

year in Canada which generates $ 2.4 billion in total tourism

spending annually.14 In Ontario alone, sport tourism is a

7.3 billion industry. On average. the over-night visitor will

spend $ 7BO per day and the day visitor will spend $50 per

day in your community through sport travel."

With the recent decline in the auto industry and the effects

this has had on the entire Windsor-Essex Region including
the Town of Amherstburg, there will be a need to diversify
the local economy. Developing sport tourism for the Town

of Amherstburg could be a viable option that would bring
increased economic spin- off to the community. The Premier-

RankedTourist Destination Evaluation ReportfortheWindsor,
Essex County & Pelee Island area also recommended attention

and funding towards developing sport tourism. The report

goes on to say that investment in existing or new sporting
facilities may prove beneficial to the entire region.

Developing a sport tourism industry for the community
requires suitable sport and recreation facility infrastructure.

The proposed multi-use recreation facility with twin pad
arena and indoor playing field could provide a venue for

hosting various sports tourism events and provide the

initiative for developing a sport tourism industry for the

Town of Amherstburg.

The proposed multi-use recreation complex could also be a

driving force for the development of a mid size hotel for this

community. In the communities of Fort Erie and Napanee ,
the recent development of a multi-use recreation complex
spurred on the development of mid size hotel adjacent to

both recreation complex properties.

With suitable recreation facility infra-structure, and given the

Town of Amherstburg's geographical location, this would

lend favorably to developing a sport tourism industry in this

community. Approximately 4.6 million people reside within

a one-hour drive; 25 million people live within three hours.

In fact, SO percent of North America's population lives within

a one- day drive of the region. Windsor, Essex County and

Pelee Island is also readily accessible through a variety of

transportation options. 16

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 14 of 73

Page 17 of 113Page101



1ftI.

I

4.4 Current Recreation Facility Infra-structure

The Mayor ofFort Nelson, Christine Morey says the signs were there, butche collapse of the arena was still disturbing "Of

course we are deeply saddened" says Morey. "the Fort Nelson Recreation Centre is the core ofour community and has served

citizens and visitors for 35 years." J 7

People in Springhill, N.S. want to know how the roofofan arena collapsed, narrowly missing nearly 150 people during a

peewee hockey game". 
18

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

The current arena facility in the Town of Amherstburg was built in 1970 and has served the community for 38 plus years.

According to industry standards, the average life expectancy for an arena is about 32 years. In a recent facility condition

assessment conducted by Dillon Consulting, $ 1, 009,684 would have to be spent on this facility between 2008 and 2012 in

order for it to continue meet current operating standards. With this investment, the community would still have an outdated

facilityt hat has out- lived its usefulness and no longer meets the needs of the growing municipality . In addition, as with older

and outdated facilities, there is limited control over structural or mechanical deficiencies that could cause it to be temporarily
or permanently inoperable as other communities in Canada have recently experienced. _

The Amherstburg Recreation and Cultural Centre and Scout Hall are two municipal properties that were also built around

1970. These are two smaller facilities that have been relatively well maintained over the years, and hence do not have the

same replacement urgency. However, should the Town consider a new facility to replace the current arena; it may make

financial sense for all three facilities and programs to be combined into one larger multi- use facility.

New Tecumseth, Ontario - population 27,701

New Tecum seth Recreation Centre (twin pad arena with 200x85 indoor playing field and full service restaurant)

3 other single pad arena facilities (total of 5 ice pads in the community)

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

4. S Recreation Facility Infra-structure with Similar Size Municipalities in Ontario

Brockville, Ontario - population 21 ,957

Memorial Centre (single pad arena) and, 300 seat Auditorium

Centennial Youth Centre (single pad arena - in the process of $8m development to add a second ice surface and a

large community hall and multi-use room to this existing facility)

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 15 of 73

Page 18 of 113Page102



s

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

P"",-
iI-

Clarence Rockland - population 21, 624

Two ice pads

5 community centres

Napanee, Ontario - population 15,400

Multi- use complex with twin pad arena and

community room that accommodates 400 people,

Three other small community halls

East Gwillimbury, Ontario - population 21 ,069

East Gwillimbury Sports Complex (2 ice surfaces wi

Auditorium)

North Grenville, Ontario - population 15, 380

Twin pad arena one pad 2,000 seats, multi-purpose
hall, and 300 seat theatre - opened in 2005

16 million project

Essex, Ontario - population 20,000

Harrow (single pad arena)

Colchester South Arena (single pad arena)

Currently In the process of building a new twin pad
arena

Port Colborne, Ontario - population 18,000

Two single pad arenas

Thomas A. Lannan Sports Complex (indoor baseball

and soccer)

In the process of building recreation complex - twin

pad arena and indoor leisure pool
Huntsville, Ontario - population 18,280

Centennial Center 1 ice pad, 125m pool wi

Auditorium for 300-425 people
Tillsonburg, Ontario - population 14,822

Tillsonburg Community Centre Twin pad (twin pad,
meeting rooms, banquet halls, indoor pool, outdoor

water park, health club, squash and tennis courts,

senior centre, numerous sports fields, Mini practice
rink - 20' X 35')

Grimsby, Ontario - population 25,937

Multi- use recreation facility with twin pad arena

200 x85 Indoor soccer facility (owned and operated by
private sector)

Whitechurch- Stouffville, Ontario - population 24,390

Lebovic Leisure Centre (indoor pool, fitness centre,

library, and multipurpose rooms)

Currently in the process of building a new twin pad
arena

Stouffville Arena

Midland, Ontario - population 16,300

North Simcoe Sports and Recreation Centre (twin pad
arena with auditorium for 500 people)
Atlas Block Centennial Arena (single pad arena)

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 16 of 73

Page 19 of 113Page103



Tecumseh, Ontario - population 25, 105

Tecumseh Arena two regulation size ice surfaces

Tecumseh Leisure Pool

Trent Hills, Ontario - population 14,046

Three single pad arena facilities

Two seniors social centres

Partnership Township of Mahahide and Aylmer - combined

population 16,000

East Elgin Community Centre (opened in 2004 - twin

pad arena and large multi-purpose community hall)

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

c

E
Fort Erie, Ontario - population 29,000

Leisureplex (recently build twin pad arena and large
multi-purpose community hall and large multi-use

recreation/ fitness centre with indoor leisure pool,
gymnasium and other amenities)

Ridgeway Arena (single pad arena facility)

tit
u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

4.6 Recreation Facility Infrastructure Bench- marking Analysis

Based on the Town of Amherstburg's current recreation infra-structure, as compared to other Ontario municipalities of similar

size, the following conclusions can be made:

The Town of Amherstburg has the least inventory and likely the oldest public recreation facilities of the communities

surveyed.

Recreation facility inventory relates directly to the leisure programming opportunities. Amherstburg is below the industry
standard in terms of leisure programs that are available for its residents.

All communities bench- marked have a minimum oftwo ice surfaces in the community, compared to the Town of Amherstburg
with one ice surface which is below industry standards for a community of its size.

Of all the municipalities that were bench- marked, they have at least one major development or retrofit of a recreation facility,
or are in the process of doing so. Amherstburg has not had a new development or a major retrofit to an existing indoor

recreation facility for the past 35 years.

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 17 of 73

Page 20 of 113Page104



s

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

L

l~"
I

4. 7 Ice Time Needs-

e
Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

During the 2007-08 winter season, Amherstburg Minor

Hockey season used 45 hours of ice time per week as allocated

through the Town of Amherstburg at theAmherstburg Arena.

In addition to these 45 hours, Amherstburg Minor Hockey also

rents an additional' 0 hours at other local arenas throughout
the Windsor-Essex Regions. It is also estimated that

Amherstburg minor hockey teams privately book another

3 hours of ice time per week outside of Amherstburg. 50me

of these facilities are over half an hour away by car travel.

They travel to places like the Windsor Ice Park, , a privately
operated facility that charges over $200 per hour. Even with

the additional ice time booked at other arena facilities, rep
teams from the Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association still

have less ice time per week compared to rep teams from

other communities.

5hould the proposed Amherstburg Recreation Complex
became a reality for the 2009-' 0 winter season, the

Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association have committed to

an additional 23 hours per week to bring their ice total to 68

hours per week. This would be just enough ice time to meet

program demand based on current registration numbers,

and does not account for any future potential growth.

i Jj!.~~
M-_....._~

l/..';I) 'J}. 1,,:

Girls between the ages of 12 and 14 are least likely to

participate in structured recreational activities as self-

awareness decreases their interest in participating in

traditional competitive sports with boys.'"9

Girls' hockey has experienced tremendous growth in Canada

and Ontario over the past 15 years. Amherstburg is one of the

few communities in Ontario with a population of over 20,000

that does not have a minor hockey program specifically for

girls. There are currently 20female players registered with the

Amherstburg Minor Hockey Association. It is also estimated

there are 35 to 40 Amherstburg female residents playing
in girls minor hockey programs in outside communities -

namely Harrow and Windsor. The Amherstburg Minor Hockey
Association with the availability of additional ice time that

would come with the proposed recreation complex would

be interested in starting a girls minor hockey program. With

this proposed facility and program, many Amherstburg girls
could be offered the opportunity to play ice hockey within

their own community.

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadla - Minutes

Page 18 of 73

Page 21 of 113Page105



4.8 Ice Time Needs -

Amherstburg Skating
Club

During the 2007-08 winter season, the

Amherstburg Skating Club used 12

hours of ice time per week as allocated

through the Town of Amherstburg at

the Amherstburg Arena. Should the

proposed Amherstburg Recreation

Complex become a reality for the

2009- 1 Owinterseason, theAmherstburg
Figure Skating Club would commit to an

additional 6 hour per week - bringing
their total to 18 hours. Within the

second year, they would commit to an

additional 2 hours - bringing their total

to 20 hours. They would also require
about 10 hours from May to the end

of August. The Amherstburg Skating
Club would commit to addition hours

as they have the demand for it from

the community; their biggest problem
is having sufficient qualified coaches

because of the limited program. With

additional hours in the future, it will

be easier to attract more qualified
coaches as more teaching hours can be

offered. An off-ice training area is also

an identified need that could be met

with a new recreation complex.

In addition to this weekly ice time

requirement, with a new twin pad arena

facility, Amherstburg Skating Club

would also hosta regionalfigure skating
competition in Amherstburg. This type
of event requires a twin pad arena, and

it would run over a three day period
Friday to Sunday) - attracting several

hundred competitors, parents, coaches

and officials to the community.

4.9 Ice Time - Adult Hockey

Adult recreational hockey has

experienced relatively widespread
growth over the past five years and

currently includes an estimated 500,000

participants across Canada, according to

the Canadian Adult Recreational Hockey
Association. The CARHA indicates that

league activity among 19 to 30 year
olds has experienced the highest rate of

growth for men, while women's adult

hockey has also increased in the past
five years. The CARHA projects that

steady growth will continue because of

the strength of minor hockey in Canada

acting as a feeder system." (Canadian

Adult Recreational Hockey Association)

There are currently two different men's

hockey leagues playing out of the

existing Amherstburg Arena - the Tri-

County Men's Senior Hockey League
for men 40 plus years of age which uses

5 hours per week (4 hours on Sunday
mornings and 1 hour on Thursday
evenings). The majority of players in

this league are 40 to early 50 years of

age. With a new twin pad arena facility,
Tri- County Men's Senior Hockey League
would operate a yearly 40 plus men's

hockey tournament. This type of event

would attract 20 teams (300 players) to
the community from Friday to Sunday.

The other men's league - the

Amherstburg Men's Hockey League
currently uses

4 hours per
week ( 8 teams)

on Wednesday
evenings. To

participate in

this league,
prior hockey
experience at a

semi-skilled level

is required and

is geared for the 18 to 40 year olds.

With the availability of ice time, the

organizers of this league believe they
can easily expand this league to 16

teams from the present 8 teams. They
would form two divisions; a higher
and lower caliber division. Most of this

growth would come from the lower

caliber or less skilled players 18 to 40

years. At present, there is no program for

this level of participant in Amherstburg.
With the ability to have ice time in new

a twin pad arena, this program would

also host a men's hockey tournament.

This type of event would also attract 20

teams ( 300 players) to the community
from Friday to Sunday.

In the 2002- 03 season, a record 61, 000

females registered in the sport across

Canada, almost 7.000 more than the

season before and a near fivefold

increase from a decade before."2o

6'

0

The Canadian Adult Recreational . 1:

Hockey Association ( CARHA), which ~

governs more than 6,800 teams and ~

135,000 players across the country. l'
has recently seen a 200 percent growth ~
in its women's hockey program. More

women's teams and leagues arejoining ~
CARHAeachyear. Theorganizationhas ..,
responded by expanding its national

tournament program by offering
divisions exclusively for women."

Canadian Adult Recreational Hockey
Association)

With the growth of girls' hockey in

Canada over the past 15 years, it is

unlikely these players will stop playing
as they get older and beyond the age
of participating in organized girl's
minor hockey programs. As many
communities across Canada and

Ontario have already experienced,
there is an existing demand that will

continue growing rapidly for adequate
ice time for women's organized
hockey leagues. At the present time,

Amherstburg adult female residents

wanting to play in an organized

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 19 of 73

Page 22 of 113Page106



rr- scotiabonk
4 ......-..-..

JIll . .,.....
1' 1',...

l;

7
A

1"""-
V

s

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

women's ice hockey program are forced

to travel to other communities in the

Windsor-Essex Region. Without the

proposed Recreation Complex, playing
ice hockey in their own community for

many Amherstburg female residents

will never be a reality.

4. 10 Other Ice Related

Programs

Due to the popularity and the demand

traditional boys minor hockey
programs have placed on community
arenas for ice time, groups like

sledge hockey and girls hockey have

traditionally experienced difficulties

in acquiring sufficient ice time to

develop and expand their programs.
Should the proposed Amherstburg
Recreation Complex become a reality,
two Windsor-Essex Regional sports

organization have committed to taking
ice in this facility starting in the 2009-10

season. The Bullets Sledge Hockey
Program, committing to 4 hours per
week and the Sun Parlour Female

Hockey Association committing to 20

hours per week. Both programs are

currently based out of several different

arenas in the Windsor-Essex Region.

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

These two regional based programs
would be a good fit for the proposed
facility as it will provide an opportunity
for Amherstburg residents to

participate in these programs in their

own community. Both organizations
are also committed to bringing regional
tournaments to Amherstburg and

during the less busy shoulder seasons

of September and April when the ice

time would likely be available and not

cause major interruptions to existing
community programs.

In serving these two sports groups

regionally based programs that

have been disadvantaged in terms

of access equality compared to boys
minor hockey programs) the Town

of Amherstburg would have a better

opportunity of acquiring capital grant

funding for the proposed facility from

higher levels of government.

For the purpose of this feasibility study,
discussions were also held with the

Sun County Minor Hockey Association

a competitive 16 team Triple AAA/

AA Hockey Program. This program is

also regionally based in the Windsor-

Essex County and currently operates
out of several different arena facilities

through out the County. They would

not commit to taking any ice time at the

proposed Amherstburg facility unless

there was a guarantee the facility was

getting built and could accommodate

their entire program. Later in this

report, we will discuss in an option of an

indoor playing field with the ability for

future conversion to a third ice pad for

the Town of Amherstburg. Under this

scenario, accommodating this program
inthefuturecould bea possibility. Given

the current inventory of community
arenas in the Windsor-Essex Region, it

is highly unlikely any community in the

Windsor-Essex County will be able to

solely accommodate this organization.
It is likely that the Sun County Minor

Hockey Association would commit to

any ice time that m ig ht come avai lable a t

the proposed Amherstburg Recreation

Complex for both their regular program
or for hosting tournaments.

4. 11 Summer Ice

Given the present day demand for off-

season ice time (July and August), and

with commitments that have been

made through the Amherstbu rg Skat ing
Club and Power Point Hockey Program,
we believe that there is sufficient

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 20 of 73

Page 23 of 113Page107



Page108



s

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

II]

r-

II

4. 14 Current and Projected Ice Sales with New Twin Pad Arena

Current Arena Utilization 2007-08

30 Week Winter Season

Projected Arena Utilization 2009- 1 0

32 Week Winter Season

Prime Time

Minor Hockey 68

Skating Club 23

Essex Girls 20

Sledge Hockey 4

Wed. Men's Hockey 10

Sunday Senior Men 4

Private Rentals 2

Total 131

Total Winter Hours 4,096

Total Summer Hours 700

Total Annual Hours 4.796

Prime Time

Minor Hockey 45

Skating Club 12

Wed. Men's Hockey 5

Sunday Senior Men 4

Private Rentals 2

Total

Total Winter Hours

Total Summer Hours

Total Annual Hours

68

2, 040

480

2, 520

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 22 of 73

Page 25 of 113Page109



Page110



Page111



Current Trends in Canadian

Recreation Facilities

s. o

Health Is a priority for Canadians and all

three levels of government. Recreation

facilities are the integral vehicle to

getting the entire community actively
participating in physical activity.

Soccer participation is on the rise in

many communities. The Canadian

Soccer Association estimates that well

over one million Canadians are active

soccer players - surpassing the number

of Canadians who are registered ice

hockey players.

Despite the recent declines in birth

rates over the past few years, demand

for communities recreation facilities

and specifically arenas remains high
with increased participation in girls,
women, and men's hockey. In addition,

there continues to be increased

immigration into Canada, and this

wlil continue to place a demand for

community recreation facilities.

The recreation industry in Ontario

has seen significant change in the

basic design and compliment of

facilities. Aging facilities have placed
pressure on local governments to

renovate or replace facilities. Changing
demographic profiles with aging
communities as well as the expectation
of the user groups and spectators
alike have placed new and increased

demands on local facilities and

services.

Traditional one rink facilities are

being replaced with multi-pad, multi

disciplined complexes with increased

exposure to a retail component
including pro shops, enhanced food

and beverage programs as well as

commercial office components to

accommodate local users groups
and professional services such as

physiotherapy/sports therapy centres.

A single pad arena has 100% revenues

and 100% expenses. A twin pad arena

has 200% plus revenues and 150%

expenses.

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

c

E

Community recreation facilities need to .

be fiexible to provide a wide range of ...,

opportunities that is due in part to the

changes in community composition.
This means having multi-purpose
rooms that can be divided for different

programs uses and indoor playing
fields that can be used for several

different activities

Increase emphasis on user-pay

philosophy for the provision of

community recreation services. This

user-pay approach can been used to

pay for the day-to-day operating costs

of a community recreation facility, but

the long term debt financing of these

facilities stlil has to be absorbed by the

municipal tax payer or otherwise these

types of community facilities would

not be possible.

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadla - Minutes

Page 25 of 73

Page 28 of 113Page112



Page113



Page114



Page115



Page116



Page117



Page118



Page119



Page120



Page121



Page122



Page123



Page124



Page125



9.0 Summary & Recommendations

6'

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E
9. 1 Summary

This report analyzed multiple factors to conclude that the Town of Amherstburg should consider a new multi-use recreation

complex for the community. These factors included the following:

Past and projected growth patterns for the community

Using recreation facilities to attract and attain a skilled workforce that is necessary for developing a strong regional
economy

Utilizing quality community recreation facilities to help build a healthy community

The need and benefits of developing a sport tourism industry for the local economy.

The existing ice arena is over 38 years old and has out- lived its life expectancy. This is coupled with a demonstrated need for

a new twin pad ice arena to meet the growing needs of the community. Young and old Amherstburg residents have to travel

to outside communities to participate in ice related sports. In addition, programs like girls and women's hockey program that

are offered in communities of comparable size, are not available in this community because of the lack of available ice time.

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

A new twin pad for the community will only alleviate the need for ice related sports in the community. Compared to several

other communities ofsimilarsize, Amherstburg is also well below the industry standard in meeting the overall leisure needs of

the community due to a limited recreation facility inventory in the community. A multi-use recreation complex consisting of

the recommended indoor playing field and a large multi- use community hall will provide opportunity for new and expanded
leisure related programs. The indoor playing field, oneofthe most cost effective sport and recreation facilities when combined

with a twin pad arena, will also provide additional revenues to make the entire project economically sustainable. The new

community hall allows for programming needs currently at the Amherstburg Recreation and Culture Centre and the Scout

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 39 of 73

Page 42 of 113Page126



Page127



Endnotes
6'

0

1:
2'

i!

C

E

1 Windsor-Essex County Development Commission 2006 - Amherstburg Report
2 Ibid

3 The Randolph Group Management Consultants Inc. Emerging Issues in the Not-for-Profit Recreation Sector

4 Windsor-Essex County Development Commission 2006 - Amherstburg Report
S Ibid

6 IBid

7 Browne, G., C. Byrne, J. Roberts, A. Gafni, and S. Whittaker. 2001." When the Bough Breaks: Provider- Initiated

Comprehensive Care is More Effective and Less Expensive for Sole-Support Parents on Social Assistance:' Social

Sciences and Medicine, 53( 12) and Haldane, Scott. 2000. "Scientific Research Supports
8 Ibid

9 2007 Annual Report, Smart Choices for the Windsor-Essex Region, Inter-Municipal Planning Consultation

Committee

10 I bid

11 Ontario's Action Plan for Healthy Eating and Active Living, Printed in 2006 by the Queens Printer for Ontario,

12 Ibid

13 Leisure Trends Monitor - SportTourism "Ann Robins & Associates, Spring 2004

14 Canadian Tourism Commission - 2004 Report
15 Presentation by Paul Charbonneau of Sport Alliance Ontario on "Sport Tourism Development", presented on March

30, 2006 in Brantford, Ontario

16 Windsor, Essex County & Pelee Island: A Premirer-Ranked Tourist Destination Evaluation

17 Fort Nelson Arena Collapse", Opinion 250 - The Voice of the North, April 19, 2007

18 N.5. arena roof collapse examined" www.cbc.ca. Feb 03, 2001

19 National Heart, lung and Blood Institute, ( 2000). Trail of Activity for Adolescent Girls.

20 Maclean's Magazine March 8, 2004, Girls Give Hockey a Badly Needed Lift

21 Vander Ploeg, Casey. 2001. " Dollars and Sense: Big City Finances in the West, 1990-2000;'Canada

West Foundation, Calgary
22 Laidlaw Foundation, Municipal Funding for Recreation, By Enid Slack Consulting Inc., March 12, 2003

23 " User Groups Pledge Cash for Proposed Rec Complex" The Amherstburg Echo, April 22, 2008, by Ron Giofu

24 Businesses jumo to be attached to new four-pad arena

u
z

z
o

w

U
w

is

i'"
J
Z

20080813 Special Council Public MJWID8 08 13 Special Council Meeting - Nustadia
Nustadia - Minutes

Page 41 of 73

Page 44 of 113Page128



Page129



Page130



Page131



Page132



Page133



Page134



Page135



Page136



Page137



Page138



Page139



Page140



Page141



Page142



Page143



Page144



Page145



Page146



Page147



Page148



Page149



Page150



Page151



Page152



Page153



Page154



Page155



Page156



Page157



Page158



Page159



Page160



Page161



Page162



Page163



Page164



Page165



Page166



Page167



Page168



Page169



Page170



Page171



Page172



Page173



Page174



Page175



Page176



Page177



Page178



Page179



Page180



Page181



Page182



Page183



Page184



Page185



Page186



Page187



Page188



Page189



Page190



Page191



Page192



Page193



Page194



Page195



Page196



Page197



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

 
2017 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 

BUDGET 
 

“STRATEGIC FOCUS” 
 

 

MISSION STATMENT 

“Committed to delivering cost-effective and efficient services for the residents of the Town of Amherstburg 
with a view to improve and enhance their quality of life.” 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 1 of 105



 

2017 OPERATING BUDGET 

At the August 8, 2016 Council meeting Council adopted the following motion 
(Resolution # 20160808-323) for the 2017 Budget Direction: 

 
 That:  
 

1. The report from the Manager of Financial Services dated July 27, 2016, 
BE RECEIVED; 

 
2. The proposed timeline for adopting a 2017 Budget BE APPROVED; and, 

 
3. Administration BE DIRECTED to prepare a 2017 draft budget, to include 

up to a 2% increase to the general tax rate. 
 

In accordance with the motion adopted by Council, Administration is pleased to present 
a proposed budget for 2017, which meets the direction of Council. Presenting Council 
with an Operating and Capital Budgets in advance of the start of 2017 allows for Council 
to reaffirm the municipal services provided in advance of the next fiscal year of 
operation.  This practice provides Administration the opportunity to manage and deliver 
the results in accordance with Council direction while providing the Community 
improved accountability surrounding municipal services. 

The proposed municipal rate tax increase for 2017 is recommended by Administration 
at 1.99%. It is important to note that when combining the impact of the projected 
increases and decreases of the County and School Board, Administration estimates that 
the overall increase will be 1.49 % on a residents total property tax bill, well within the 
direction approved by Council.   

Most importantly, the projected 1.49% increase would result in an additional $45.31 for 
the average home valued at $191,000 in the Town of Amherstburg.  

In 2015 and 2016, Council took significant steps to move the Town forward by adopting 
and implementing the Capital Replacement Levy and the Capital Reserve Levy. 
Furthermore, Council also began to move the Town forward in a “pay as you go” 
manner through the establishment of a Capital Contribution from the Tax Rate, reducing 
the Town’s dependence on issuing municipal debt.  

In many areas, the Town lacked staffing resources to address challenges facing the 
municipality. In 2016, Council adopted an organizational structure and took the first 
steps to provide the staff and funding to address these areas of concern. The 2017 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 2 of 105



Operating Budget proposed by Administration provides Council with the opportunity to 
make further progress in this regard.   

On September 12, 2016, Council approved the Town of Amherstburg Community Based 
Strategic Plan 2016-2021, a guiding document that will assist Council and 
Administration in moving  the Town forward. Residents participated in a consultative 
exercise that promoted community input in charting the future direction of the Town.   
The collaborative plan emerged and was adopted with the following 4 priorities: 

1. Marketing and Promotion 
2. Economic Development 
3. Investment in Infrastructure 
4. Fiscal Sustainability 

Each priority has a group of actions that will define successful completion of the plan. 
The actions steps are as follows: 

Marketing and Promotion 

Actions  
1. Develop a strong online and social media presence to better inform residents and 

visitors of life in Amherstburg. 

2. Develop a marketing plan that supports the Town’s efforts to attract future 
residents, investment and business and grows our profile beyond Essex County. 

3. Effectively leverage the tourism marketing reach and product development efforts 
of the Southwest Ontario Tourism Corporation (SWOTC). 

4. Identify partnership opportunities with local businesses in the marketing and 
promotion of the Town.  

5. Promote local success stories that demonstrate the opportunity and potential of 
living and investing in Amherstburg.  

 

Economic Development 

Actions  
1. Prepare a pragmatic Economic Development Strategy for the Town of 

Amherstburg with a focus on business development, attraction and retention.  

2. Use incentives to encourage private sector development that supports our 
business attraction efforts.  

3. Support and facilitate adaptive reuse of heritage and cultural assets.  

4. Explore the potential opportunities for waterfront tourism including a dock that 
can accommodate ferries, tall ships etc.  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 3 of 105



5. Support the agricultural sector and the diversification of this industry.  

6. Complete a bi-annual review of the return of investment associated with the 
funding of Windsor-Essex Economic Development Corporation (WEEDC).  

7. Support the creation of new and improvements of existing Festivals and Events.  

8. Secure additional roofed accommodation to support the growth of tourism.  
 

Investment in Infrastructure 

Actions  
1. Complete an industrial land needs analysis.  

2. Initiate the necessary servicing plans to advance the development of the Town’s 
priority industrial lands.  

3. Complete a Parks and Recreation Master Plan that identifies the hierarchy of 
needs for Town residents and provides recommendations for the long term use 
of Navy Yard Park.  

4. Provide a ‘one stop’ experience for residents and business by consolidating 
municipal staff and services.  

5. Maintain and improve roadways and sidewalks.  

6. Facilitate the re-development of Bellevue House and property.  

7. Complete the servicing and development of the Kingsbridge Subdivision.  

8. Address the long term infrastructure requirements of Bois Blanc Island.  
 

Fiscal Sustainability 

Actions  
1. Prepare a Long-Term Financial Plan that provides funding strategies and 

adequate reserves while promoting stable taxes.  

2. Develop multiyear operating and capital budgets.  

3. Develop a funding strategy for the Asset Management Plan focused on 
maintaining core existing infrastructure and services.  

4. Plan for and fund major maintenance and replacement costs for new 
infrastructure and facility projects.  

5. Focus resources towards ensuring that the Town has the fundamental building 
blocks needed to successfully target and attract incremental business from 
existing sectors as well as from new sectors as identified in any economic 
development strategy to support the vision of a 90% residential and 10% non-
residential tax base by 2021.  

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 4 of 105



The 2017 Operational and Capital Budgets were developed by Administration to 
strategically focus on providing the desired results of the Town’s newly adopted 
Strategic Plan. 

Council has demonstrated  its commitment to this plan by undertaking the initiative to 
proceed with the capital purchases of the Bellevue and Duffy’s Tavern properties.  With 
such purchases, Council has reaffirmed to residents that the Town is committed to 
preserving those assets valued by residents and strengthening the Town’s position in 
culture and tourism.  

The 2017 Operational Budget includes for Council’s consideration, the additional 
resources required to improve and enhance the community’s quality of life.   

Through the results of the Community Strategic Plan residents have indicated that 
increased tourism is of importance, both recreationally and culturally, as well as the 
enhanced maintenance of parks and facilities. Currently, the Parks and Naturalized 
Areas, Tourism and Culture, Recreation and Libro Centre Departments lack the 
presence of a Director and those duties have been assumed by the CAO. These 
departments play a key role in the delivery of the strategic goals outlined in the newly 
adopted Strategic Plan.  In order to align the goals of the Town and foster growth in 
cultural and sports tourism, the Council approved Director of Parks, Facilities, 
Recreation and Culture has been included in the 2017 Operating Budget.      

In 2017, Administration also recommends additional resources in the Planning 
Department to help facilitate the expanded development in the primary settlement areas 
of Town, as well as the development of Kingsbridge, Bois Blanc Island and the south-
west quadrant. Fund requests are also included for required studies to help in the 
effective planning and development of Amherstburg’s Downtown Core. 

In 2016, Council took a progressive step towards dealing with health and safety in the 
organization by hiring of a part time Health and Safety Officer. In 2017, administration 
recommends that this contract be extended for a period of one year, as there is still 
work to be done in this area. 

In regards to Fiscal Sustainability and Investment in Infrastructure, the 2017 Budget 
focuses on expanding the concepts of increased reserve planning and funding for 
capital investment. 

The 2017 Budget introduces 2 new Reserve Funds for Council’s consideration, the Risk 
Management Reserve and the Litigation Reserve. The Risk Management Reserve is 
proposed as a risk mitigation measure to prevent injuries to staff and residents and to 
reduce claims and claim payouts. The Litigation Reserve is proposed for the potential 
risk of legal costs not covered by the Town’s insurer. These Reserve Funds will be 
established for use and funded annually from the operating budget to help Council 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 5 of 105



protect the Town against unexpected costs requiring adhoc tax increases to fund the 
expenditures.   

In addition to these proposed funds, administration has made a provision to increase 
the transfer of funds for the Fleet Reserve to deal with the Town’s aging fleet of 
vehicles. In 2017, capital funding from the general tax (operating budget) increases to  
$1,700,000 from $1,200,000, an increase of $500,000 or 41.6%, representing the most 
significant investment in infrastructure from the general tax rate in the past 10 years for 
the Town of Amherstburg.  

The budget presented by Administration improves and provides for additional reserves 
that reaffirm Council’s direction which began in the 2015 Budget to help reduce debt 
loads and increase reserves and financial stability.   

Outside of the focus of the strategic plan, there are additional pressures  that have 
presented themselves as operational challenges for the Town in 2016. Provisions have 
been made in the 2017 Budget  to address some of these issues as well.   

The most significant is the Libro Centre and the ongoing maintenance concerns at the 
Multi-use Recreational Complex. A separate report from the Manager of Operations and 
the CAO outlining this matter in detail will be presented to Council along with the 2017 
budget. Another significant challenge is Amherstburg Fire Services aging fleet.  Regular 
truck inspections are resulting in additional repairs that are becoming more costly. As a 
result, Administration has made a provision in the 2017 to mitigate this risk.  The Fire 
Service also has weekend scheduling and overtime concerns that have recently come 
to light. The Fire Chief has prepared a separate report outlining the details for Council’s 
consideration.   

The Clerk’s Department has identified a need for increased accountability and 
transparency in Council’s committee structure. With the additional pressures of 
legislative changes in 2016, the department requires additional resources to maintain a 
level of service that promotes Council’s commitment to the community as an open, 
accountable and transparent municipal government.  A report from the Municipal Clerk 
accompanies the 2017 budget to address these issues for Council’s consideration.  

On July 14, 2014, the Town adopted policy H09-01 Salary Administration for non-union 
employees.  The adopted policy recommends that non-union staff receive wage 
adjustments in accordance with annual inflation. It is important for Council to note that 
no inflationary adjustments have been made for 2015 & 2016 for the non-union staff. 
Unionized staff, fire services, and police services have all received negotiated increases 
during this time frame. The 2017 budget includes an increase  for non-union staff and 
Council in accordance with the adopted Salary Administration Policy. Administration will 
undertake a compensation review for 2017 and will provide Council a report with its 
findings.  
  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 6 of 105



2017 OP

Followin

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PERATIONA

ng is a brea

Financial Servi

Fire

Planning, Build

Global

Local Improve

Taxes

AL REVENU

kdown of th

ices & Clerks

ding, Licensing

ement

UES 

he $25,799

0

78%

Reve

g

9,253 total o

0%5%0% 1%

8%

enue

Communit

Police

Public Wor

Non Depar

Supplemen

operating b

% 2% 2

% 0%

ty Services, Tou

rks

rtmental

ntary Taxes

udget reve

2%
3%

1%

urism and Faci

nue for 201

lities

17:  

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 7 of 105



2017 OP

Followin

As the a
such as 
Benefits

 

 

2017 OP

The 201
limited c
1.99% in
factoring
1.5%, an

Council
Clerk
Human 
Plannin
Fire
Police
Global
Debt an

PERATIONA

ng is a brea

above graph
Police, Fire

s and Debt a

PERATIONS

7 Operatin
capital dolla
ncrease to 
g in the Cou
nd is fiscall

Resources
g , Building, Lic

nd Interest

AL EXPENS

kdown of th

h illustrates
e, Public W
and Interes

S BUDGET C

g Budget p
ars for the T
municipal t
unty and Ed
y responsib

15%

7%

1%

censing

SES 

he $25,799

s 58% of the
Works, Globa
st Payments

CONCLUSION

presents a p
Town of Am
axes, the re
ducation lev
ble to our re

23%

5% 7%

Expen

9,253 total o

e Town’s E
al Expendit
s.  

ON 

plan on man
mherstburg. 

esult is a pr
vies. This is
esidents.  

1%

2%

2%

0

2%

nditures
CAO Of
Crossin
Financi
Commu
IT
Public W
Retiree
Capital 

operating b

Expenditures
tures (insur

naging the 
This is ach
rojected inc
s in line wit

0%

4%
5%

17%

6%

4%

ffice
ng Guards
al Services
unity Services, 

Works
e Benefits
Transfer

udget expe

s are for pr
rance, etc.)

limited reso
hieved with 
crease of 1
th Canadian

Parks, Toursim

enses for 20

rimary servi
, Retiree 

ources and
a proposed
.49% when
n inflation o

m and Facilities

017:  

 

ices 

d 
d 
n 
of 

s

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 8 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
SUMMARY OF OPERATING EXPENSES ON TAX LEVY
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

DEPARTMENT
Division

COUNCIL 204,478             161,388              196,122             116,135            196,122              201,032               4,910                                  

CAO OFFICE 461,998             449,761              438,585             322,440            399,890              444,094               5,509                                  

CLERK 279,627             271,385              354,834             270,822            365,129              427,556               72,722                                

Crossing Guards 61,885               60,982                62,437               44,043              63,279                61,421                 (1,016)                                 

HUMAN RESOURCES 359,467             344,407              301,816             219,089            295,407              394,270               92,454                                

FIRE 1,276,645           1,704,209           1,435,268          1,122,014          1,576,956           1,617,312            182,044                              

CORPORATE SERVICES
Financial Serives 946,605             892,670              1,126,235          693,266            1,066,171           1,114,318            (11,917)                               

Information Technology (Includes GIS) 992,076             985,538              974,462             732,304            987,810              1,009,471            35,009                                

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
Economic and Community Development / Purchasing 315,860             235,857              -                         -                        -                                         

Licensing and Enforcement 320,229             308,713              230,620             243,993            330,797              326,622               96,002                                

Planning 277,135             266,158              434,289             301,031            429,566              557,949               123,660                              
Building 278,500             283,489              373,474             193,968            369,450              288,000               (85,474)                               

PARKS, FACILITIES, RECREATION AND CULTURE
Libro Centre 1,368,697           1,367,072           1,111,920          1,179,859          1,498,923           1,622,666            510,746                              

Facilities 388,500             425,486              605,292             427,137            544,342              599,000               (6,292)                                 

Parks 818,269             737,500              826,640             614,416            829,377              1,160,433            333,793                              
Recreation Services 500,107             455,388              606,599             349,919            617,784              691,004               84,405                                

Tourism and Culture 310,290             279,919              300,679             250,703            315,679              331,170               30,491                                

ENGINEERING & PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works 2,555,130           2,464,831           2,550,323          1,848,022          2,519,760           2,600,663            50,340                                
Environmental Services 1,186,048           1,146,907           1,227,500          836,137            1,225,000           1,247,120            19,620                                

POLICE 5,738,699           5,555,635           5,837,031          4,132,154          5,853,177           5,953,764            116,733                              

GLOBAL EXPENSES 1,346,309           1,306,066           1,675,492          1,176,116          1,708,493           1,695,925            20,433                                

RETIREE BENEFITS 323,090             353,606              384,626             314,806            382,012              382,727               (1,898)                                 

Subtotals 20,309,644         20,056,967         21,054,244        15,388,374        21,575,124         22,726,518          1,672,274                           

DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST 1,848,628           1,836,035           1,803,454          1,352,633          1,803,454           1,372,735            (430,719)                             

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ON TAX LEVY 22,158,272         21,893,002         - 22,857,698        16,741,008        23,378,578         24,099,253          1,241,556                           

NET CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,679,000           1,679,000           1,200,000          1,200,000          1,200,000           1,700,000            500,000                              

CAPITAL RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS 469,946             469,946            469,946              -                          (469,946)                             

23,837,272         23,572,002         24,527,644        18,410,954        25,048,524         25,799,253          1,271,610                       

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 9 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
SUMMARY OF REVENUES
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to Date 
Actuals, as at 
Sept 30, 2016 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

DEPARTMENT
Division

CLERKS (3,000)                  (7,619)                  (2,500)                   (8,844)                   (10,860)               (7,000)                   4,500                                

FINANCIAL SERVICES (48,000)                (55,336)                (48,000)                 (30,190)                 (48,000)               (43,000)                 (5,000)                               

FIRE (5,000)                  (6,856)                  (29,000)                 (46,826)                 (53,423)               (29,000)                 -                                   

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
Licensing and Enforcement (Previously By-Law) (56,600)                (62,633)                (66,600)                 (59,938)                 (64,000)               (58,600)                 (8,000)                               

Planning (39,000)                (49,765)                (42,000)                 (65,696)                 (75,000)               (70,000)                 28,000                              
Building (287,500)               (347,830)              (287,500)               (345,888)               (369,450)             (288,000)               500                                   

PARKS, FACILITIES, RECREATION AND CULTURE
Libro Centre (682,000)               (675,242)              (697,000)               (383,585)               (719,892)             (712,000)               15,000                              

Facilities (73,278)                (69,207)                (73,278)                 (51,644)                 (73,278)               (98,278)                 25,000                              

Parks (3,500)                  (5,461)                  (3,500)                   (4,869)                   (7,000)                 (7,000)                   3,500                                
Recreation Services (411,200)               (318,848)              (346,400)               (253,611)               (386,942)             (363,718)               17,318                              

Tourism and Culture (33,500)                (30,644)                (26,000)                 (39,893)                 (41,200)               (42,000)                 16,000                              

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works (512,361)               (516,620)              (506,861)               (567,985)               (572,575)             (512,186)               5,325                                

POLICE (443,797)               (459,107)              (345,797)               (281,773)               (395,797)             (361,797)               16,000                              

GLOBAL ADMINSTRATIVE (703,523)               (703,523)              (703,523)               (703,523)               (703,523)             (717,593)               14,070                              

NON-DEPARTMENTAL (1,791,100)            (1,930,797)           (1,908,301)            (1,407,030)            (2,151,069)          (2,089,305)            181,004                            

TOTAL NON TAX REVENUES (5,093,359)            (5,239,488)           (5,086,260)            (4,251,294)            (5,672,009)          (5,399,478)            313,218                        

LOCAL IMPROVEMENTS (20,000)                (50,661)                (16,800)                 (46,938)                 (46,938)               (46,938)                 30,138                              

SUPPLEMENTARY TAXES (150,000)               (189,411)              (150,000)               (142,297)               (250,000)             (220,000)               70,000                              

TAXES LEVIED (18,566,914)          (18,567,203)         (19,274,584)          (19,399,774)          (19,422,320)        (20,132,837)          858,253                            

TOTAL REVENUE (23,830,273)          (24,046,763)         (24,527,644)          (23,840,304)          (25,391,267)        (25,799,253)          1,271,609                      

-                            

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 10 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
TAX RATE CALCULATION
2017 Budget

Final
2016 Budget 2017 Budget

Budgeted Operating Expenditures 21,054,244          22,726,518            
Capital Expenditures 2,644,168            8,248,581              
Contributions to Capital Reserves 469,946               -                         
Debt Principle and Interest Payments 1,803,454            1,372,735              
Total General Rated Expenditures 25,971,812          32,347,834            

Less:
Capital Reserve Contributions 937,168               917,576                 
New Long Term Capital Financing -                           1,624,800              
Capital Contributions from Others 507,000               4,006,205              
Supplementary Revenues 150,000               220,000                 
Non Tax Revenues 5,086,260            5,399,478              
Local Improvements 16,800                 46,938                   

SubTotal 6,697,228            12,214,997            

Total Collectable (through tax rates) 19,274,584          20,132,837            

Tax Rate Calculation Data:
Taxable Assessment as provided by MPAC 2,169,946,198     2,226,860,874       1.5% growth estimate on 2016 roll return
Weighted Assessment 2,130,887,167     2,182,323,657       

(calculated using tax ratios provided by the County of Essex)

Average Tax Rate Calculation 0.0090453           0.0092254             1.99%
Total Collectable (through tax rates)/
  Weighted Assessment increase

from 2016

Total Municipal Taxes on a Single Family Residential Unit 
with an assessed value of $191,000 1,727.66$            1,762.05$              34.40$                        

Capital Replacement Levy 0.00018091         2% 34.55$    0.00018451           35.24$                        
Capital Reserve Levy 0.00018091         2% 34.55$    0.00018451           35.24$                        
Total Municipal Levies on a Single Family Residential Unit 
with an assessed value of $191,000 69.11$    70.48$                        

Municipal Tax Bill with Levies 1,796.76$            1,832.54$              35.77$                        1.99%

County 0.004619090       0.004688376         Projected increase of 1.5%
Education 0.00188               0.00186                 Projected decrease of 1%

County 882$                    895$                      
Education 359$                    355$                      

Total Tax Bill including Levies 3,038.09$            3,083.51$              45.41$                        1.49%

Funds Raised By Capital Replacement Levy 402,656.75            
Funds Raised By Capital Reserve Levy 402,439.97            

Notes:

The levies being proposed as part of this budget would be shown as separate line items on tax bills. 

Levies would not be blended in with the proposed tax rate.

The Capital Replacement Levy would be for the purpose of addressing the infrastructure funding gap

that exists in our municipality.  (This gap will be addressed in more detail when the capital budget
is presented).

The Capital Reserve Levy would be to build cash reserves to help mitigate the Town's need for 

future long term debt.

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 11 of 105



Budgetary Pressures and Additional Request

Budget Pressures Cost Percentage of Budget Department

20,000$      0.10% Clerks
30,000$      0.15% Fire
15,000$      0.07% Fire
25,000$      0.12% Planning
25,000$      0.12% Planning
66,000$      0.33% Libro
38,000$      0.19% Libro

120,000$    0.60% Libro
25,000$      0.12% PWD
35,000$      0.17% PWD
50,000$      0.25% PWD

Additional Professional Fees Clerks ( Integrity Commissioner) 
Increased Need for Fire Truck Maintenance
Increased Need for Emergency Operations Spending 
Additional Urban Design Study in Planning
Additional Community Improvement Plan
Increased Need in Refrigeration Expenditures at Libro 
Increased Need for Building Maintenance at Libro
Increase in Utilities Cost at Libro
Increase in Tree Maintenance Program
Increase in Drainage Program
Increase in Cost of LED Streetlights Program
Total 449,000$    2.23%

Budget Request & Pressures-Staffing Salary Benefits Salary and Benefits

Request for a Part Time Committee Coordinator in the Clerks Department 22,827$      4,716$  27,543$  0.14% Clerks

Extension of the Health and Safety Officer to a 1 year Contract 78,000$      10,531$  88,531$  0.44% HR

New Full Time Firefighter 95,972$      34,150$  130,122$  
Reduction of Over Time and Volunteer Hours (49,908)$     -$  (49,908)$  

46,064$      34,150$  80,214$  0.40% Fire

Request to bring on the Fire Administrator Full Time 21,643$      16,491$  38,134$  0.19% Fire

Request to bring on the IT Technician Full Time 13,764$      12,011$  25,775$  0.13% IT

Request for a Director of Parks, Facilities Recreation and Culture 122,015$    37,075$  159,090$  0.79% Libro

Request for a Part Time Planner 58,500$      9,061$  67,561$  0.34% Planning

Contractual & Salary and Admin Policy Increases 88,255$      8,826$  97,081$  0.48% Town Wide

Total 451,068$    132,861$  583,929$  2.90%

Budget Request-Other Cost

Creation of a Risk Management Reserve 25,000$      0.12% Global
Creation of a Litigation Reserve 25,000$      0.12% Global
Increase to the Fleet Reserve 25,000$      0.12% Global
Total 75,000$      0.37%

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 12 of 105



COUNCIL
Mayor Aldo DiCarlo

Deputy Mayor Bart DiPasquale
Councillor Joan Courtney

Councillor Rick Fryer
Councillor Jason Lavigne
Councillor Leo Meloche
Councillor Diane Pouget

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICER

POLICE 
SERVICES 

BOARD

POLICE CHIEF

Police 
Services Staff

(33)  

Executive Assistant 
to the CAO

COUNCIL COMMITTEES STRUCTURE
Audit and Finance Advisory Committee

Economic Development Advisory Comittee Amherstburg 
Accessibility Advisory Committee 

Co-An Park Board
Committee of Adjustment (COA)
Livestock Evaluator Commitee

Fence Viewers Committee
Heritage Advisory Committee

Parks Advisory Committee
Drainage Board

Property Standards Committee
Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee Traffic Committee

ORGANIZATIONAL 
CHART

September 2016

DIRECTOR, 
ENGINEERING AND 

PUBLIC WORKS

Municipal
Clerk/Risk 
Manager

Manager,
Human 

Resources

Human 
Resources 
Coordinator

Deputy Clerk

Manager,
Environmental 

Services

Water and 
Wastewater 
Equipment 
Operators

7

Manager, 
Municipal Facilities

Manager, 
Recreation 
Services

Manager,
Parks and 

Naturalized Areas

Manager, 
Tourism and 

Culture

Tourism 
Coordinator

DIRECTOR, 
PLANNING, 

DEVELOPMENT AND 
LEGISLATIVE 

SERVICES

Manager, 
Planning Services

DIRECTOR, 
CORPORATE 

SERVICES AND 
TREASURER

Manager,
Financial 
Services

Supervisor,
Accounting

Financial 
Services Clerks

2

Manager,
Roads and Fleet

Manager,
Engineering 

Drainage 
Superintendent

Roads Equipment 
Operators

6

Fleet Mechanic
1

Supervisor,
Revenue

Arena 
Attendants
(Full-Time)

3

General 
Labourers
(Part-Time)

12

Food and Beverage 
Services 

Coordinator 
(Part-Time)

1

Food and 
Beverage 

Services Staff
(Casual 

Part-Time)
(13)

Program 
Coordinator 
(Part-Time)

1

Program 
Instructors 

(Casual 
Part-Time)

(19)

Skate Patrols
(Casual 

Part-Time)
(2)

Landscape 
Technicians

7

Guest Services 
Town Hall
(Part Time)

Manager,
Licensing and 
Enforcement

By-law Enforcement 
Officer

1

Manager, 
Building Services 

and CBO

Building Inspector/
Plan Examiner 

(2)

(Vacant)

Public Works Clerks 
2

Facilities 
Scheduling Clerk

1

Guest Services 
Libro

6

Licensing Clerk
1

Planning Clerk
1

Building Clerk
1

Manager, 
Information 
Technology

Application 
and Network 

Analyst

GIS 
Coordinator/

Business 
Analyst

Service and 
Support 

Technologist
(PT to FT)

Financial 
Planning  

Administrator

FIRE CHIEF

Deputy Chief

Assistant Deputy 
Chief/Fire 

Prevention and 
Inspection Officer

Firefighters
3

(ADD 1 FT)

Volunteer 
Firefighters 

(58)

Financial 
Services 
Clerks

3

Administrative 
Clerk

1

Fire Clerk
(PT to FT)

Health and 
Safety Officer 

(1 Year 
Contract)

Plumber/Facility 
Attendant

1

Electrician/Facility 
Attendant

1

DIRECTOR, 
PARKS, 

RECREATION AND 
TOURISM

Committee 
Coordinator

PT

Planner
PT

Staffing changes requested are highlighted in green for presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 13 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget
2016 Year to Date Actuals, as 

at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:

Grants in Lieu
10-4-0000000-0540 Federal Government (37,000)            (25,353)             (37,000)             0 (37,000)            (26,729) (10,271)  
10-4-0000000-0545 PIL CBC Radio (3,600)              -  - - - - -  
10-4-0000000-0550 PIL Provincial (18,000)            (20,522)             (21,076)             (18,063) (21,076)            (22,039) 963 
10-4-0000000-0560 Municipal PILS (38,000)            (45,471)             (46,380)             (51,575) (46,380)            (49,147) 2,767 
10-4-0000000-0561 CF PIL not given to School Board (67,990)             (81,545)             (0) (81,545)            (70,632) (10,913)  
10-4-0000000-0570 PIL Essex Terminal (3,200)              (3,292)               (3,300) 0 (3,300)              (3,358) 58  

Total Grants in Lieu - Non Departmental (99,800)            (162,628)           (189,301)           (69,639) (189,301)          (171,905) (17,396)  

Other Grants
10-4-0000000-0607 Federal Employment Grant (15,000)            (12,894)             (14,000)             0 (12,000)            (12,000) (2,000)  
10-4-0000000-0624 Min. of Nat. Res. - Pits & Quarries (80,000)            (66,048)             (65,000)             (75,353)  (65,000)            (65,000) -  
10-4-0000000-0626 Drainage Superintendent (25,000)            (15,333)             (20,000)             (17,795)  (17,795)            (20,000) -  
10-4-0000000-0628 Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund (1,010,300)       (1,010,300)        (1,000,000)        (857,550) (1,143,400)       (1,143,400) 143,400 

Total Other Grants - Non Departmental (1,130,300)       (1,104,575)        (1,099,000)        (950,698) (1,238,195)       (1,240,400)                141,400 

Investment Income
10-4-0000000-6538 Interest on Essex Power Investment (210,000)          (226,927)           (220,000)           0 (220,000)          (227,000) 7,000 
10-4-0000000-7220 Interest on Bank Accounts (1,000)              (262) - (182) (250) - -  

Total Investment Income - Non Departmental (211,000)          (227,189)           (220,000)           (182) (220,250)          (227,000) 7,000 

Other Income
10-4-0000000-7110 Penalties and Interest on Taxes (300,000)          (384,788)           (350,000)           (283,189) (350,000)          (350,000) -  
10-4-0000000-6530 LAS Natural Gas Rebate (1,617)               - (3,323) (3,323)              - -  
10-4-0000000-6537 Greenshield Surplus (50,000)            (50,000)             (50,000)             (100,000)  (150,000)          (100,000) 50,000 

Total Other Income - Non Departmental (350,000)          (436,405)           (400,000)           (386,512) (503,323)          (450,000) 50,000 

Local Improvements
10-4-0000000-0240 Municipal Drains (3,029)               (3,000) (3,029)  (3,029)              (3,029) 29  
10-4-8030000-0210 Watermains on Taxes (30,078)             - (30,078)  (30,078)            (30,078) 30,078 
10-4-8058010-0220 Tile Loans (20,000)            (17,554)             (13,800)             (13,831)  (13,831)            (13,831) 31  

Total Local Improvements - Non Departmental (20,000)            (50,661)             (16,800)             (46,938) (46,938)            (46,938) 30,138 

Total Revenue - Non Departmental (1,811,100)       (1,981,458)        (1,925,101)      (1,453,968) (2,198,007)     (2,136,243)                211,142

Total Revenue - Non Departmental less Local Improvements (1,791,100)       (1,930,797)        (1,908,301)        (1,407,030) (2,151,069)       (2,089,305)                181,004 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 14 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
COUNCIL
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-1001010-0101 Salaries - Council 124,966       124,159         124,966           94,532 124,966       127,465           2,499 

10-5-1001011-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Mayor 4,500           787 2,500 104 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001012-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Deputy Mayor 4,500           1,216             2,500 0 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001013-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Coun. 1 4,500           2,136             2,500 727 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001014-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Coun. 2 4,500           863 2,500 727 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001016-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Coun. 3 4,500           1,096             2,500 104 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001017-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Coun. 4 4,500           1,823             2,500 831 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001018-0146 Salaries - Per Diem Coun. 5 4,500           1,278             2,500 831 2,500           2,500 - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Council 156,466       133,358         142,466           97,856               142,466       144,965           2,499 

Benefits:
10-5-1001010-0201 Benefits - CPP 3,982           3,669             4,186 2,438 4,186           6,310 2,124 

10-5-1001010-0203 Benefits - OMERS 6,393           6,393             7,423 4,795 7,423           7,571 148 

10-5-1001010-0204 Benefits - EHT 2,437           1,897             2,347 1,268 2,347           2,486 139 

10-5-1001010-0208 Benefits - WSIB 81 - - 

10-5-1001010-0214 Benefits - RRSP Contribution 1,105             - - 

Total Benefits - Council 12,812         13,145           13,956             8,501 13,956         16,367             2,411 

General Expenses:
10-5-1001010-0340 Public Receptions, Etc… 2,701             2,500 483 2,500           2,500 - 

10-5-1001011-0340 Public Receptions - Mayor 500 285 500 400 500 500 - 

10-5-1001012-0340 Public Receptions - Deputy Mayor 500 50 500 45 500 500 - 

10-5-1001013-0340 Public Receptions - Councillor 1 500 500 0 500 500 - 

10-5-1001014-0340 Public Receptions - Councillor 2 500 500 0 500 500 - 

10-5-1001016-0340 Public Receptions - Councillor 3 500 500 0 500 500 - 

10-5-1001017-0340 Public Receptions - Councillor 4 500 500 46 500 500 - 

10-5-1001018-0340 Public Receptions - Councillor 5 500 500 0 500 500 - 

10-5-1001010-0351 Council - General Training 149 2,000 0 2,000           2,000 - 

10-5-1001011-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Mayor 1,000           1,000 0 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001012-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Deputy Mayor 1,000           1,000 0 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001013-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Councillor 1 1,000           870 1,000 789 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001014-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Councillor 2 1,000           1,000 890 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001016-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Councillor 3 1,000           1,000 97 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001017-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Councillor 4 1,000           870 1,000 1,508 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001018-0351 Conventions and Seminars - Councillor 5 1,000           158 1,000 844 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-1001011-0352 Travel and Mileage - Mayor 2,000           26 2,000 557 2,000           2,000 - 

10-5-1001012-0352 Travel and Mileage - Deputy Mayor 1,500           409 1,500 111 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001013-0352 Travel and Mileage - Councillor 1 1,500           599 1,500 111 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001014-0352 Travel and Mileage - Councillor 2 1,500           1,500 111 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001016-0352 Travel and Mileage - Councillor 3 1,500           1,500 0 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001017-0352 Travel and Mileage - Councillor 4 1,500           594 1,500 861 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001018-0352 Travel and Mileage - Councillor 5 1,500           27 1,500 170 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001011-0140 Communication Allowance - Mayor 1,500           1,057             1,500 0 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001012-0140 Communication Allowance - Deputy Mayor 1,500           1,464             1,500 (99) 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001013-0140 Communication Allowance - Councillor 1 1,500           211 1,500 1,190 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001014-0140 Communication Allowance - Councillor 2 1,500           1,337             1,500 0 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001016-0140 Communication Allowance - Councillor 3 1,500           1,266             1,500 0 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001017-0140 Communication Allowance - Councillor 4 1,500           454 1,500 81 1,500           1,500 - 

10-5-1001018-0140 Communication Allowance - Councillor 5 1,500           1,358             1,500 953 1,500           1,500 - 

Total General Expenses - Council 32,000         13,885           36,500             9,147 36,500         36,500             - 

Other Expenses:
10-5-1001010-0325 Legal Fees - Council 1,200           1,200 0 1,200           1,200 - 

10-5-1001010-0348 Donations 2,000           1,000             2,000 630 2,000           2,000 - 

Total General Expenses - Council 3,200           1,000             3,200               630 3,200           3,200               - 

Total Expenses - Council 204,478       161,388         196,122           116,135             196,122       201,032           4,910 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 15 of 105



Staffing changes requested are 
highlighted in green for 
presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 16 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
CAO OFFICE
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-1001023-0101 Salaries - Full Time 304,605       249,725       248,694           185,387             248,694       252,294           3,600                                  

10-5-1001023-0112 Salaries - Part Time 24,140         26,967         22,204             17,746               22,204         25,762             3,558                                  

10-5-1001023-0102 Salaries - Overtime 2,000           1,333           2,000               0 2,000           -                       (2,000)                                 

Total Salaries and Wages - CAO 330,745       278,025       272,898           203,134             272,898       278,056           5,158                               

Benefits:
10-5-1001023-0201 Benefits - CPP 5,339           7,081           6,059               5,630                 6,059           6,235               176                                     

10-5-1001023-0202 Benefits - EI 3,500           3,363           2,637               2,696                 2,637           2,687               50                                       

10-5-1001023-0203 Benefits - OMERS 6,260           31,547         32,228             24,004               32,228         33,061             833                                     

10-5-1001023-0204 Benefits - EHT 3,020           5,556           5,322               3,958                 5,322           5,422               100                                     

10-5-1001023-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 12,000         18,139         12,338             14,030               12,338         11,421             (917)                                    

10-5-1001023-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 5,919           13,937         11,199             11,880               11,199         14,763             3,564                                  

10-5-1001023-0208 Benefits - WSIB 4,421           5,504           5,129               4,499                 5,129           5,174               45                                       

10-5-1001023-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994              808              975                  731                    975              975                  -                                          

Total Benefits - CAO 41,453         85,936         75,887             67,429               75,887         79,738             3,851                               

General Expenses:
10-5-1001023-0342 Meeting Expenses 3,000           1,361           3,000               945                    3,000           1,500               (1,500)                                 

10-5-1001023-0327 Professional Fees 70,000         10,248         70,000             90,754               95,000         70,000             -                                          

10-5-1001023-0251 Subscriptions and Publications 1,000           669              1,000               560                    560              800                  (200)                                    

10-5-1001023-0350 Memberships 10,800         9,813           10,800             7,545                 7,545           8,000               (2,800)                                 

10-5-1001023-0351 Training and Conferences 5,000           3,710           5,000               3,076                 5,000           6,000               1,000                                  

Total General Expenses - CAO 89,800         25,801         89,800             102,880             111,105       86,300             (3,500)                              

10-4-1001023-3000 Reserve Transfers - Strategic Plan 60,000         (51,003)              (60,000)        

Total Expenses - CAO Department 461,998       449,761       438,585           322,440             399,890       444,094           5,509                               

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 17 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
CLERK DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget Increase/(Decrease) 
2016 to 2017

REVENUE:

10-4-1001020-2163 Insurance Proceeds - Admin (8,360) (8,360)          (6,000)              6,000 

10-4-1001020-1015 Administrative Charges (3,000)          (7,619)          (2,500)              (484) (2,500)          (1,000)              (1,500) 

Total Revenue - Clerk Division (3,000)          (7,619)          (2,500)              (8,844) (10,860)        (7,000)              4,500 

EXPENSES:
Election:

10-5-1001020-0330 Election Expenses - 1,654            - - - - - 

Committees:
10-5-1001020-0150 Committee Honorarium - AAAC 2,300            112               1,500 300 1,500            1,500 - 

10-5-7037630-0368 Heritage Committee 1,500            1,072            6,600 2,482 6,600            6,600 - 

10-5-1001022-0151 Committee of Adjustment - honorarium 4,836            4,800            4,875 0 4,875            4,875 - 

10-5-1002000-0150 Committee Per Diems 1,973 4,500 4,500 

10-5-1002000-0560 Fence Viewer Committee 300               500 0 500               - (500) 

10-5-1002000-0561 Livestock Valuer Committee 400               250 (400) 250               250 - 

10-5-1002000-0562 Parks Advisory Committee 1,500 0 1,500            1,500 - 

10-5-1002000-0563 Recreation and Culture Committee 1,500 583 1,500            1,500 - 

10-5-1002000-0564 Economic Development Advisory committee 173               1,500 0 1,500            1,500 - 

10-5-1002000-0565 Drainage Board 2,060 1,510            2,100 2,100 

10-5-1002000-0360 Committee Meetings - Sundries 2,000 0 500               2,000 - 

Total Committees' Expenses - Clerk 8,636            6,857            20,225             6,998 20,235          26,325             6,100 

Salaries and Wages:
10-5-1001022-0101 Salaries - Full Time 174,911        130,613        201,748           154,738             201,748        211,049           9,301 

10-5-1001022-0102 Salaries - Overtime 5,000            2,344            5,000 2,618 5,000            5,000 - 

10-5-1001022-0107 Salaries - Temporary Personnel 42,200          - - 22,827             22,827 

Total Salaries and Wages - Clerk 179,911        175,157        206,748           157,356             206,748        238,876           32,128 

Benefits:
10-5-1001022-0201 Benefits - CPP 5,683            7,123            7,548 6,665 7,548            8,570 1,022 

10-5-1001022-0202 Benefits - EI 2,734            3,472            3,490 3,184 3,490            3,919 429 

10-5-1001022-0203 Benefits - OMERS 17,447          21,590          20,524             15,515 20,524          23,863             3,339 

10-5-1001022-0204 Benefits - EHT 3,508            3,958            4,032 3,092 4,032            4,658 626 

10-5-1001022-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 10,500          8,025            19,254             14,467 19,254          17,662             (1,592) 

10-5-1001022-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 9,848            5,113            9,029 7,390 9,029            12,392             3,363 

10-5-1001022-0208 Benefits - WSIB 5,122            5,770            5,744 4,590 5,744            6,616 872 

10-5-1001022-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 1,988            1,196            2,990 2,250 2,990            2,925 (65) 

Total Benefits - Clerk 56,830          56,247          72,611             57,153 72,611          80,605             7,994 

General Expenses:
10-5-1001022-0251 Subscriptions & Publications 500               1,118            500 247 500               500 - 

10-5-1001029-0317 Records Management 1,500            1,025            10,000             1,973 10,000          10,000             - 

10-5-1001022-0327 Professional Fees 3,647 6,200            20,000             20,000 

10-5-1001022-0350 Memberships 1,250            620               750 272 750               750 - 

10-5-1001022-0351 Training and Conferences 6,000            5,155            9,000 5,423 9,000            10,000             1,000 

10-5-1001022-0352 Travel & Mileage 2,000            87 2,000 1,169 2,000            4,000 2,000 

10-5-1001022-0342 Meeting 500               1,037            500 0 500               - (500) 

10-5-1001022-0402 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 1,500 1,500 

Total General Expenses - Clerk 11,750          9,042            22,750             12,731 28,950          46,750             24,000 

Reserve Transfers:
10-5-1001022-2002 Election Reserve 22,500          22,428          32,500             32,500               32,500          35,000             2,500 

10-5-1001022-2016 Insurance Reserve - Insurance claims 4,085 4,085            - 

Total Reserve Transfers - Clerk 22,500          22,428          32,500             36,585               36,585          35,000             2,500 

Total Expenses - Clerk Division 279,627        271,385        354,834           270,822             365,129        427,556           72,722 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 18 of 105



      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Paula Parker Report Date:  October 13, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-0012 ext. 2238 Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  

pparker@amherstburg.ca 
Resolution #: 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Part Time Committee Coordinator 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that: 

1. The report from the Municipal Clerk dated October 12, 2016 regarding Part Time

Committee Coordinator BE RECEIVED; and,

2. The Part Time Committee Coordinator proposed in the 2017 Clerks Budget BE

CONSIDERED as part of the overall 2017 Clerks Salaries/Wages and Benefits

Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

Council, as part of its governance model, has a committee structure in place which 

serves several functions. Committee functions vary within each mandate; however 

every committee provides advice and recommendations to Council, and assistance to 

external agencies and operating groups, as required by legislation. 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 19 of 105

mailto:pparker@amherstburg.ca


 

Council and the Town of Amherstburg are committed to community engagement 

through the participation of volunteers and appointees to boards and committees.  

Committees are required to adhere to the same rules of procedure that Council must 

follow in Procedural By-law 2014-91. This guarantees full accountability and 

transparency within the municipality. 

Although the Committee/Local Boards Terms of Reference indicates that committees 

will meet on a quarterly basis, the majority of the committees have elected to meet on a 

monthly or bi-monthly basis.  

3. DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to the Municipal Act, the Clerk’s office is responsible for carrying out the 

direction of Council with respect to committee structure.  The Clerk, or designate, 

provides guidance and advice with respect to appropriate legislation to all committees of 

Council, and is responsible for records and information management within the 

municipality.   

There are currently 17 Committee/Local Boards of Council, 10 of which are legislated.  

Fourteen members of administration assist either as liaison or as recording secretary for 

these committees and are responsible to liaise between committee members for the 

purpose of information sharing, providing advice and expertise and to create agendas 

and prepare minutes for each meeting.  In addition, they are currently expected to meet 

the notice requirements of the Procedural By-law with respect to publication of meetings 

and agendas, as well as minutes.  

Until April 2016, they were also expected to understand and assist the Chair with 

parliamentary procedure to ensure procedural rules are followed during meetings.  At 

the direction of the CAO, the Clerk and/or Deputy Clerk now attend most 

committee/board meetings for the purpose of providing procedural advice and to assess 

and address committee inconsistencies.  This equates to at least 7 additional evening 

meetings per month for the Clerk/Deputy to attend not including their regular duties at 

Regular and Special Council meetings.  

Since the attendance of the Clerk and/or Deputy at committee meetings has 

commenced, a number of procedural concerns have arisen.  It has also been noted that 

several committees have expressed concerns  regarding the timing of their agendas 

and supporting materials, as well as the return of previous minutes for review and 

adoption. 

It has been observed that there are a number of inequities throughout the committee 

structure, due to the large of number of individuals responsible.  Some of these 

inconsistencies include: 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 20 of 105



 Agendas not posted to meet notice requirements as per the Town’s approved

procedural by-law.

 Agenda templates are not consistent

 Agendas are not being published with supporting materials

 Chairs tend make motions

 Chairs tend to lead the meeting

 No disclosure of pecuniary interest asked at the start of meetings

 Procedural rules are not being followed for delegates

 No deferral motions

 Motions are too vague

 Minutes are not recorded as per Municipal Act requirements

 Minute templates are not consistent

 Recommendations/reports to Council are inconsistent

The Town has made significant progress in improving the openness and transparency 

of municipal government in Amherstburg. Administration believes that this part time 

Committee Coordinator position will be an extension of this progress, eliminating  

inconsistencies and ensuring that proper procedure is followed by performing the 

following job responsibilities: 

 Provide administrative support to all 17 Committee/Local Boards of Council

 Prepare, edit, copy and file minutes of meetings, reports, forms, memos,

advertisements, resource materials, and other correspondence.

 May be required to independently respond to letters and general correspondence

of a routine nature. Determine priorities and route correspondence.

 Prepare and distribute meeting agendas and supporting materials.

 Attend all Committee meetings as required.

 Vacancies, ads, resume collection, reports to Council.

 Maintain a high level of confidentiality in all interactions.

 Assist with report and presentation preparation.

 Maintain a professional image and demeanour with all employees, management,

executives, volunteers and visitors at all times.

 Maintain up to date knowledge of procedural by-law, Town policies and all

appropriate legislation, including but not limited to; Heritage Act, AODA, Line

Fences Act, Protection of Livestock and Poultry from Dogs Act, Planning Act,

Building Code Act, Highway Traffic Act, Tourism and Recreation Act, and

Drainage Act.

 Other duties, relevant to the position, shall be assigned as required.

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 21 of 105



4. RISK ANALYSIS:

This part time Committee Coordinator position is proposed to be responsible for all 

facets of Council Committee coordination and to alleviate the additional workload on all 

14 administrative liaisons by assuming responsibility for agenda preparation, public 

notice and minute preparation.  This individual will also provide consistency within the 

committee structure by ensuring that all committees are following the same procedures. 

It will ensure that the Town of Amherstburg continues to govern itself in an open and 

transparent manner and that the Town does not find itself in contravention of the 

Municipal Act or its own procedural by-law. A failure to do so may result in future 

investigations by the Ombudsman or the Integrity Commissioner which will, in turn 

increase public criticism of Council’s accountability and transparency.  

With the addition of Crossing Guards to the Clerks department in the 2015 budget 

deliberations, as well as increased responsibilities to records management with the 

recent changes to MFIPPA legislation, the Clerks department is running extremely lean.  

The Clerk is also responsible for the Insurance and Risk Management Program for the 

entire organization and cannot currently provide it the time and attention it requires.  

Preparation for the 2018 Municipal Election is also underway on the Clerks department.  

This additional part time Committee Coordinator is required to support the Clerks 

department and Council’s committee structure. 

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The part time Committee Coordinator is proposed for 24 hours a week and is reflected 

in the 2017 Clerks Salaries/Wages and Benefits Budget with a Salary of $22,827; when 

statutory deductions are added, the total cost is $27,543. 

There are 3 union recording secretaries currently receiving overtime pay to attend their 

respective meetings.  In addition, the Deputy Clerk receives overtime pay for attending 

the additional 7 meetings per month.  This equates to approximately $15,480 per year in 

overtime costs. This does not include the time taken away from the additional 11 

management liaisons for the regular day to day duties of their position.   

The 11 management liaisons will still be required to attend committee meetings to 

provide their specific expertise to each committee; however the addition of the 

Committee Coordinator will eliminate the current need for administrative preparation 

and committee coordination and allow all 14 staff members to refocus their attention to 

the specific duties of their job.  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 22 of 105



The 2017 Clerks Budget currently reflects the part time Committee Coordinator position. 

Should Council not approve this position additional overtime dollars will be required in 

the amount of $15,480.  Therefore the net effect of this position on the budget is  

$12,063. 

6. CONSULTATIONS:

The Deputy Clerk was consulted on this report and concurs with the recommendation. 

7. CONCLUSION:

The part time Committee Coordinator would serve as the Clerks designate, as per the 

Municipal Act, to coordinate Council’s committee structure ensuring consistency, 

accountability and transparency.  It will provide guidance and advice with respect to 

appropriate legislation to all committees of Council, and eliminate the inequities recently 

identified by the Clerk’s department.  As well, this position will be responsible for 

records and information management within the municipality with respect to committees 

and local boards.  This position will enhance communication between Council and its 

committees as it will provide Council with increased awareness of each committee’s 

annual progress.   

The addition of this part time position will allow staff to reallocate their time and attention 

to the specific duties of their job and will eliminate the need for overtime costs with 

respect to this particular function.  

______________________________ 

Paula Parker  

Municipal Clerk 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 23 of 105



Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Part Time Committee Coordinator.docx 

Attachments: 

Final Approval Date: Oct 27, 2016 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

Justin Rousseau - Oct 24, 2016 - 11:45 AM 

Mark Galvin - Oct 24, 2016 - 3:55 PM 

John Miceli - Oct 26, 2016 - 2:30 PM 

Paula Parker - Oct 27, 2016 - 4:09 PM 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 24 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
CROSSING GUARDS
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 

2016 to 2017

EXPENSES:
10-5-3250000-0116 Salaries - Crossing Guards 55,323         53,320         55,323             38,732               55,323         54,387             (936) 

10-5-3250000-0201 Benefits - CPP 1,258           709              1,356               565 1,356           925 (431) 

10-5-3250000-0202 Benefits - EI 1,456           1,403           1,456               1,020 1,456           1,419 (37) 

10-5-3250000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 430              406              430 289 430              385 (45) 

10-5-3250000-0204 Benefits - EHT 1,079           1,040           1,079               755 1,079           1,052 (27) 

10-5-3250000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 1,239           1,536           1,593               1,124 1,593           1,553 (40) 

10-5-3250000-0252 Uniforms 900              2,471           1,000               1,559 1,842           1,500 500 

10-5-3250000-0307 Advertising 200              97 200 0 200 200 - 

Total Expenses - Crossing Guards 61,885         60,982         62,437             44,043               63,279         61,421             (1,016) 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 25 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-1001024-0101 Salaries - Full Time 218,212       208,234       173,026           131,415             173,026       176,486           3,460                                    

10-5-1001024-0102 Salaries - Overtime 11,600         11,406         5,500               0 -                   -                       (5,500)                                  

10-5-1001024-0107 Salaries - Temporary Personnel 24,512               40,000         81,120             81,120                                  

Total Salaries and Wages - Human Resources 229,812       219,640       178,526           155,926             213,026       257,606           79,080                              

Benefits:
10-5-1001024-0201 Benefits - CPP 7,277           6,911           4,960               6,128                 6,940           7,440               2,480                                    

10-5-1001024-0202 Benefits - EI 3,403           3,228           2,327               2,974                 2,887           3,490               1,163                                    

10-5-1001024-0203 Benefits - OMERS 23,039         21,158         19,259             13,885               19,259         19,764             505                                       

10-5-1001024-0204 Benefits - EHT 4,481           4,126           3,481               2,948                 4,154           4,962               1,481                                    

10-5-1001024-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 18,000         15,413         12,338             9,354                 12,338         11,421             (917)                                     

10-5-1001024-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 11,794         7,661           7,784               6,210                 7,869           10,319             2,535                                    

10-5-1001024-0208 Benefits - WSIB 6,164           5,666           4,591               4,375                 5,584           6,718               2,127                                    

10-5-1001024-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 2,982           1,890           1,950               1,463                 1,950           1,950               -                                           

10-5-1001024-0213 Benefits - Orthodontic 4,500           2,000           -                       - -                   -                       -                                           

Total Benefits - Human Resources 81,640         68,052         56,690             47,338               60,981         66,064             9,374                                

General Expenses:
10-5-1001024-0240 Employee Recognition 6,000           4,284           6,000               2,721                 6,000           10,000             4,000                                    

10-5-1001024-0249 Corporate Training 6,000           5,571           12,000             0 12,000         12,000             -                                           

10-5-1001024-0250 Health and Safety 9,080           22,643         20,000             12,286               15,000         20,000             -                                           

10-5-1001024-0327 Professional Fees 20,000         16,881         22,000             24,050               22,000         22,000             -                                           

10-5-1001024-0342 Meeting Expenses 1,000           1,546           1,000               781                    1,000           1,000               -                                           

10-5-1001024-0350 Memberships 935              508              600                  0                        400              600                  -                                           

10-5-1001024-0351 Training and Conferences 4,000           4,937           4,000               2,572                 4,000           4,000               -                                           

10-5-1001024-0352 Travel and Mileage 1,000           346              1,000               902                    1,000           1,000               -                                           

Total General Expenses - Human Resources 48,015         56,715         66,600             43,312               61,400         70,600             4,000                                

Reserve Transfers:
10-4-1001024-3000 Transfer from Reserves - Health & Safety (27,487)              (40,000)        -                                           

Total Expenses - Human Resources Department 359,467       344,407       301,816           219,089             295,407       394,270           92,454                              

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 26 of 105



 

      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Michelle Rose Report Date:  October 21, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-0012 ext. 

2240 
Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  

mrose@amherstburg.ca 
Resolution #: 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Health and Safety Officer 1-Year Contract Extension 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that: 

1. The report from the Manager of Human Resources dated October 21, 2016 BE

RECEIVED; and,

2. The Health and Safety Officer 1 Year Contract Extension proposed in the 2017

Human Resources Budget BE CONSIDERED as part of the overall 2017 Human

Resources Salaries/Wages and Benefits Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

After several visits from the Ministry of Labour (MOL) in 2015 and 2016, the MOL 

expressed concern that the Town did not have a staff person in a Health and Safety 

Coordinator capacity dedicated to overseeing and monitoring the Health and Safety 

responsibilities of the Town.  The MOL further reminded staff that the employer’s 

responsibilities are to:  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 27 of 105

mailto:mrose@amherstburg.ca


 Comply with all regulations made under OHSA;

 Develop and implement an occupational health and safety program and policy;

 Take all reasonable precautions to protect the health and safety of workers;

 Ensure that equipment, materials and protective equipment are maintained in

good condition;

 Provide information, instruction and supervision to protect worker health and

safety; and

 Co-operate with the JHSC.

 Post a copy of the OHSA in the workplace; and any explanatory material

prepared by the Ministry of Labour in the workplace; and

 Provide health and safety reports to the JHSC.

Administration was advised as a result of MOL site visits in 2015 and 2016, that the 

Ministry will be closely monitoring the Town going forward. As a result, Council took a 

proactive position and granted approval to hire a Health and Safety Officer (HSO) for 

the Town of Amherstburg.  Adrien LeBlanc, a former inspector for the Ministry of 

Labour, was hired for the role.  

The intent was to ensure compliance with orders issued by the MOL, assess other 

workplace activities and ensure compliance with Occupational Health and Safety 

legislation, mitigate the risk of injury to workers, mitigate work stoppages from 

enforcement activities, mitigate negative press from publication of incidents and to 

reduce overall costs associated with workplace injuries. 

3. DISCUSSION:

Upon initial inspection and general overview of each worksite, the HSO has observed 

and assessed Town policies, procedures, workplaces, and practices, and has identified 

issues of varying risk levels, priority and feasibility. These observations are recorded as 

a gap analysis requiring corrective actions.  There are 75 items identified to date, 

however these are not representative of an in-depth analysis of the risks associated 

with each worksite or activity. 

For the remainder of 2016, the HSO has scheduled training sessions for topics that 

must be addressed with every employee in the Town. These sessions include WHMIS 

and changes to the Town's policies on workplace violence and harassment. In addition, 

certain groups of employees need hazard-specific training, such as the use of fall-

protection, proper operation of an elevating work platform, excavation and trenching 

hazards, as well as the proper use and care of personal protective equipment.   

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 28 of 105



In 2017 the HSO plans to provide training to staff, identify and close additional gaps in 

the health and safety program, and investigate deeper into each department to ensure 

worksites are in compliance under the OHSA.   The goal is that all of these actions will 

translate into better injury and incident prevention, a safer workplace for employees, 

and ultimately provide for a superior level of protection from prosecution for the Town.  

The savings from training costs and cost avoidance from reduced claims and work 

stoppages due to MOL orders should offset the demands on the budget.  

4. RISK ANALYSIS:

Ministry inspections will continue for the foreseeable future and the benefit of having an 

HSO is a proactive approach to health and safety with a focus on addressing issues at 

the earliest stage. The Town has moved to a centralized approach of dealing with health 

and safety matters and the human resources department has been provided with the 

resources to help ensure that all departments achieve and maintain compliance.   

Additional benefits of addressing health and safety in a proactive manner include, but 

are not limited to, the following:   

 Reduced risk of illness or injury to employees

 An overall safer workforce and workplace

 Lower employee absence and turnover rates

 Reduced risk of accidents

 Reduced threat of legal action and or fines imposed by the Ministry of Labour to

supervisors, the CAO or the Town

 Improved trust in the Employer by staff

 Improved reputation for the Town in the community and future investors

 Increased productivity

 Reduced operating costs

 Reduced WSIB claims

Should the Town elect not to move forward with the appropriate resources, the Town 

may be exposed to several risks.  These risks are not easily quantifiable; however they 

include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 Increase in the loss of working days due to work-related illness and injury

 Potential work place accident that may lead to an illness, critical injury or fatality

 Potential fines and penalties assessed by the Ministry of Labour for non-

compliance

 Damaged reputation of the Town in the community

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 29 of 105



5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The Town would continue to compensate the HSO at the current hourly wage of $40 

including 4% vacation pay as per the Employment Standards Act, 2000.  The total 

annual compensation would be a wage $78,000 plus statutory deductions of $10,531 for 

a total of $88,531.  

It should be highlighted that training delivered by the HSO in-house on certain topics is 

much more cost effective for the Town compared to engaging the services of an 

external training company. For example, the estimated cost of outsourcing WHMIS and 

WPVHD training is $10,000. For the hazard-specific training listed above, the cost 

savings to the Town are estimated at over $30,000.  

6. CONSULTATIONS:

The Chief Administrative Officer was consulted on the preparation of this report. 

7. CONCLUSION:

The Town will continue to mitigate risk associated with health and safety by the 

continued focus and diligence of the HSO.  The Town will evaluate the status of health 

and safety for the organization near the end of 2017. 

______________________________ 

Michelle Rose 

Manager, Human Resources 

mr 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 

Name:  Giovanni Miceli 

Phone #:  519  736-0012  ext.  2228 

NOTIFICATION : 

Name Address Email Address Telephone FAX 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 30 of 105



Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Health and Safety Officer 1-Year Contract Extension.docx 

Attachments: 

Final Approval Date: Oct 27, 2016 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

Justin Rousseau - Oct 26, 2016 - 10:16 AM 

Mark Galvin - Oct 26, 2016 - 10:38 AM 

John Miceli - Oct 26, 2016 - 2:01 PM 

Paula Parker - Oct 27, 2016 - 2:10 PM 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 31 of 105



Staffing changes requested 
are highlighted in green 
for presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 32 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
FIRE DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget
Budget Increase/(Decrease) 

2016 to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-2010000-0700 Fire Grant From Essex               (3,000)            (6,000)             (3,000) 0 (3,000)            (3,000)             -                                           

10-4-2010000-1020 Fire Reports               (2,000)               (856)             (1,000)                  (710) (1,000)            (1,000)             -                                           

10-4-2010000-6540 Fire - Miscellaneous Revenue             (21,693) (25,000)          -                                           

10-4-2010000-0800 EOC Grant           (25,000)             (24,423) (24,423)          (25,000)           -                                           

Total Revenues - Fire               (5,000)            (6,856)           (29,000)             (46,826)           (53,423)            (29,000)                                        - 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-2010000-0101 Salaries - Full Time             482,214         641,707           534,891            419,813 525,331          638,172          103,281                                

10-5-2010000-0102 Salaries - Overtime                        -         122,834             10,000              14,241 25,000            10,000            -                                           

10-5-2010000-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit          (20,644)           (58,000)                  (921) (921)               -                      58,000                                  

10-5-2010000-0112 Salaries - Part Time               37,847           37,169             37,909              32,743 47,000            -                      (37,909)                                

10-5-2010000-0120 Salaries - Volunteer             297,896         377,439           262,558            176,340 262,558          235,118          (27,440)                                

Total Salaries and Wages - Fire             817,957      1,158,505           787,358            642,216          858,968            883,290                              95,932 

Benefits:
10-5-2010000-0201 Benefits - CPP               16,006           21,414             19,236              17,479 18,315            22,165            2,929                                   

10-5-2010000-0202 Benefits - EI                 7,671           10,395               8,673                8,511 7,381              9,893              1,220                                   

10-5-2010000-0203 Benefits - OMERS               53,746           55,746             53,938              25,632 38,133            68,921            14,983                                  

10-5-2010000-0204 Benefits - EHT               15,828           21,467             18,300              13,112 17,985            21,046            2,746                                   

10-5-2010000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield               36,000           43,045             35,888              40,583 42,057            43,977            8,089                                   

10-5-2010000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability               25,690           21,395             25,631              16,625 20,494            40,173            14,542                                  

10-5-2010000-0208 Benefits - WSIB               29,393           33,324             20,909              25,422 18,288            22,562            1,653                                   

10-5-2010000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement                 5,804            (6,255)               5,135               (1,765) 5,135              7,085              1,950                                   

Total Benefits - Fire             190,138         200,531           187,710            145,598          167,788            235,822                              48,112 

General Expenses:
10-5-2010000-0251 Fire Prevention               11,000             6,693             11,000                4,443 11,000            11,000            -                                           

10-5-2010000-0252 Uniforms               10,300           11,463             19,000              17,256 19,000            10,000            (9,000)                                  

10-5-2010000-0254 Fire Fighter Training               13,000             6,578           112,000                9,185 112,000          129,000          17,000                                  

10-5-2010000-0301 Office Supplies                 1,500             1,955               1,500                1,482 1,500              1,500              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0307 Advertising                 1,000             1,039               1,000                1,084 1,000              1,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0318 Janitorial                 5,000             1,051               5,000                1,060 5,000              5,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0324 Dispatching               39,000           48,056             39,000              24,083 39,000            39,000            -                                           

10-5-2010000-0340 Receptions and Awards                 5,000             2,698               4,000                2,402 4,000              4,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0350 Memberships                 1,050             1,802               1,000                   713 1,000              1,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0351 Training and Conferences                        -             1,954               5,000                2,200 5,000              5,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0352 Travel and Mileage                 1,000                141               1,000                   815 1,000              1,000              -                                           

10-5-2010000-0360 OFM Investigation                    700                143                  700                     50 700                 700                 -                                           

10-5-2010000-0800 EOC Spending             25,000              22,168 25,000            40,000            15,000                                  

Total General Expenses - Fire               88,550           83,573           225,200              86,941          225,200            248,200                              23,000 

Equipment and Vehicle:
10-5-2010000-0319 Radio Maintenance               60,000           48,402             60,000              39,138 60,000            60,000            -                                           

10-5-2010000-0402 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance               35,000           45,464             40,000            121,871 130,000          70,000            30,000                                  

10-5-2010000-0420 Equipment               85,000         167,734             85,000              28,572 85,000            70,000            (15,000)                                

10-5-2010000-0423 Personal Protective Equipment                5,028 -                                           

Total Equipment and Vehicle - Fire             180,000         261,600           185,000            194,609          275,000            200,000                              15,000 

Reserve Transfers:
10-5-2010000-2002 Fire Reserve             50,000 52,650              50,000            50,000            -                                           

50,000          52,650            50,000           50,000            -                                      

Total Expenses - Fire Division          1,276,645      1,704,209        1,435,268         1,122,014       1,576,956         1,617,312                            182,044 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 33 of 105



      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Al Reaume Report Date:  October 12, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-6500 ext. 
2241 

Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  
areaume@amherstburg.ca 

Resolution #: n/a 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Conversion of Fire Clerk position from Part- time to Full-time 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that: 

1. The report from the Fire Chief dated October 12, 2016 regarding Conversion of
Fire Clerk position from  Part-time to Full-time BE RECEIVED; and,

2. The Full-time Fire Clerk position proposed in the 2017 Fire Budget BE
CONSIDERED as part of the overall 2017 Fire Salaries/Wages and Benefits
Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

In 2007, the Town of Amherstburg determined that a Master Fire Plan was required to 
guide the Fire Department through the next 10 years. At that time, one of the 
recommendations of the plan was to provide funding for a full-time clerk for the Fire 
Department. That recommendation remains outstanding in 2016. 

The Town currently provides funding for a part-time fire clerk for the Fire Department. In 
March 2014, the Town advertised for a part-time fire clerk for the Fire Department. The 
position was to be non-union working between 24 to 30 hours a week.  

The fire clerk’s specific responsibilities as stated in the current job description are: 

 Provide reception and clerical support to the Fire Chief and Fire
Department staff.

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 34 of 105



 Prepare and proofread forms, documents, and letters using a personal
computer

 Prepare, sort and distribute departmental mail

 Take minutes for various committee meetings

 Schedule appointments/meetings, arrange travel and hotel
accommodations, arrange conferences and catering as required, and
prepare expense forms

 Maintain departmental records and filing system

 Attend training sessions and occasional out-of-town or evening meetings

 Serve as a member of the Municipal Control Group for emergency
planning (as Scribe to CEMC)

 Ensure electronic reports are filed with the Office of the Fire Marshall on a
scheduled basis.

 Other duties as assigned

In June 2015, Council appointed a new Fire Chief. Near the end of 2015, the Fire 
Department was served with 23 orders from the Ministry of Labour (MOL) and 27 
recommendations from the Office of the Fire Marshall and Emergency Management 
(OFMEM). 

3. DISCUSSION:

As a result of these orders and recommendations, Fire Administration began 
restructuring the department. Restructuring the department has resulted in revised 
responsibilities assigned to the position of the fire clerk. 

Today the job description of the fire clerk includes the following specific responsibilities:  

 Provide administrative assistance to the Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief,
Assistant Deputy Fire Chief and Community Emergency Management
Coordinator (CEMC)

 Scribe for the CCG, EOC, and all other Emergency Committees

 Plan and aid in the organization of Fire department events. (e.g.
Retirement banquet, fundraisers, association events, funerals and training
exercises)

 Create and fill out Standard Incident Reports (SIRs) for the purpose of
reporting all emergencies to the Office of the Fire Marshall and
Emergency Management.

 Prepare and track payroll information on all part-time firefighters by
calculating hours and calls on a biannual basis and preparing a report to
be passed on to the payroll clerk.

 Meet OFM criteria as far as reporting incidents, Annual Maintenance
Checklists, and all other material as required by the province.

 Research and attempt to get grants for Fire Department initiatives and
projects.

 Provide administrative support to the Essex County Fire Chief’s
Association.

 Prepare and process departmental directives, such as: Notices, Orders,
Safety Alerts and Standard Operating Procedures.

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 35 of 105



 Reception for the Fire Department including in person and by phone.

 Assist the Fire Chief and/or his designate by researching and preparing
information and assembling data required by the department in the
execution of its duties. (e.g. attendance, emergency planning, budget,
labour relations, personnel matters and information covered under the
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.

 Process fire inspection reports under the direction of the Fire Prevention
Officer as well as any information/correspondence required for building
owners as related to fire prevention and public fire safety education.

 Schedule appointments/meetings, arrange travel and hotel
accommodations, arrange conferences and catering as required, and
prepare related expense forms.

 Create, proof read and edit documents, correspondence, reports, tenders,
advertisements, internal memos, fax memos, e-mails and other means of
communication.

 File Medical Assist Reports with the Windsor-Essex Health Unit.

 Represent the municipality and department professionally through
effective and courteous communication with clients and the public both
written and verbal.

 Assist in the maintenance of policy manuals, operation guideline manuals,
training manuals, the municipal emergency plan, Pre-incident surveys,
and the Firepro database including properties, contact, incidents, and
personnel files.

 Order all necessary equipment, office supplies and other fire department
related supplies for the department.

 Provide filing services as directed by the Fire Chief.

 Code and process fire department accounts for approval by the Fire Chief.

 Receive and direct business telephone calls and public inquiries to the
appropriate department personnel.

 Assist the Fire Chief in data management utilizing the fire department
software program in the areas of payroll, budget, fire reports, fire
department training, fire prevention and personnel records.

 Administer the Fire Department webpages as well as the Members only
page for Volunteer Firefighters.

 Attend and take minutes of meetings as directed by the Fire Chief.

 Assist in the production of fire department training materials such as
handouts, fact sheets and power point presentations.

 Assist in the maintenance of records, testing and repairs of fire
department apparatus and equipment.

 Track employee absences; create reports of same for Chief or designate.

 On call 24/7 for occasional emergency call-in to assist fire administration
in large-scale municipal emergency events.

 Respond to insurance companies, solicitors and any other agents legally
requesting information pertaining to specific fire incidents.

Given the added responsibilities placed on the Fire Clerk, it is impossible for him to 
meet the department’s expectations working 24 to 30 hours per week. 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 36 of 105



4. RISK ANALYSIS:

The job posting of March 2014, to hire a part-time Fire Clerk, identified 10 specific 
responsibilities. Today, the Fire Clerk services the needs of the Fire Chief, Deputy Fire 
Chief and the Assistant Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Prevention Officer. His responsibilities 
have increased to include 29 specific responsibilities. The department is also in the 
process of having the Fire Clerk certified as a public educator so can educate the 
community about fire safety and also teach at the Safety Village when area schools visit 
the Village.  

Given the added responsibilities placed on the Fire Clerk, it is impossible for him to 
perform his duties on a part-time schedule. Fire Administration strongly believes it is 
essential that the fire clerk position become a full-time position. Failure to do so could 
have a negative impact on the new processes the department has implemented.  As 
Council is aware, these processes are a result of the mitigating measures put in place 
by the Town to address the concerns of the OFMEM and MOL.  

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The current budget for the fire clerk position is a salary of $36,451. The budget, 
inclusive of statutory deductions,  is $42,147. Finance has forecasted that the 2016 year 
end projection for the fire clerk position will be  $54,000, inclusive of salary and statutory 
deductions, resulting in a variance of approximately $12,000. This variance is 
attributable to the extra hours required to perform the duties tasked to the Fire Clerk. It 
is important to note that many of these additional tasks were assigned subsequent to 
the OFMEM presentation on April 11, 2016, and the $12,000 cost has been incurred for 
approximately one half of the year.  

The projected additional overtime costs  of $24,000 annually and the additional 
responsibilities assigned to the Fire Clerk are a result of the OFMEM and MOL orders 
and recommendations.  Administration finds it prudent to convert the position from part-
time to full-time.  Converting the position into a full-time salaried position would cost the 
municipality $58,094 annually which is comparable to the current part-time position with 
the anticipated overtime. Statutory deductions and benefits are estimated to be $21,643 
for a full-time fire clerk resulting in an overall cost of  $80,134. The conversion 
represents  an estimated increase  of $21,643 from the annualized part-time position 
with overtime.   

6. CONSULTATIONS:

Wendy Dade, Manager Financial Services 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 37 of 105



7. CONCLUSION:

In order to meet the added responsibilities placed on the Fire Clerk, the need to work 
overtime  on a weekly basis is necessary. Converting the position to full-time will assist 
the Town in ensuring the fire department meets the requirements outlined in the reports 
of the OFMEM and MOL. In addition, administration believes that the increase in hours 
for this position will assist the Town by improving the overall function of the Fire 
Department. 

______________________________ 
Al Reaume  
Fire Chief 

DM 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 
Name:  Wendy Dade 
Phone #:  519  736-0012  ext.  2232 

NOTIFICATION : 

Name Address Email Address Telephone FAX 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 38 of 105



      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Al Reaume Report Date:  October 13, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-6500 ext. 

2241 
Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  

areaume@amherstburg.ca 
Resolution #: n/a 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Full-time Firefighter/Training Officer 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

1. It is recommended that:  The report from the Fire Chief dated October 13, 2016

regarding Full-time Firefighter/Training Officer BE RECEIVED; and,

2. The Full-time Firefighter/Training Officer proposed in the 2017 Fire Budget BE

CONSIDERED as part of the overall 2017 Fire Salaries/Wages and Benefits

Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

In April 2007, the Town determined that a Master Fire Plan was needed to help guide 

the Fire Department through the next 10 years. Accordingly, the firm of T.L. Powell and 

Associates was hired to develop the Master Fire Plan. Once completed, they presented 

their plan and recommendations for implementation. A number of their 

recommendations required a training component. The plan also recommended that an 

evaluation/testing process for every training lesson be developed and implemented in 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 39 of 105

mailto:areaume@amherstburg.ca


 

the Amherstburg Fire Department and the appropriate records be retained to meet the 

Section 21 Guidelines of the Occupational Health and Safety Act. The Master Fire Plan 

did not indicate how to accomplish these tasks.  

In June 2015, the Ministry of Labour issued 23 orders against the Amherstburg Fire 

Department. Several of these orders require a training component.  

In October 2015, Amherstburg Council requested that the Office of the Fire Marshall 

conduct an audit of Amherstburg Fire. The Office of the Fire Marshal and Emergency 

Management collected data from November 2nd, 2015 until November 16th, 2015. Once 

completed, the Office of the Fire Marshal and Emergency Management audit team 

came up with 27 recommendations – five (5) of which dealt with training issues. 

3. DISCUSSION:

The Ministry of Labour responded to a complaint alleging health and safety issues. The 

Ministry of Labour conducted a review of the Amherstburg Fire Department and found 

several health and safety issues:  

 Order #8 states that “an employer shall ensure that, the equipment, materials,

and protective devices provided by the employer are maintained in good

condition.”

 Order #14 states the employer shall take every precaution reasonable in the

circumstance for the protection of the worker. Order applies to WHMIS training

for all applicable workers.

 Order #15 states an employer shall provide information, instruction, and

supervision to a worker to protect the health and safety of the worker.

 Order #17 states an employer shall provide information and instruction for

Amherstburg operational guidelines and review annually.

Five (5) of the 27 recommendations that the Office of the Fire Marshal and Emergency 

Management identified dealt with training concerns: 

 Recommendation #8 states: “Ensure that all fire personnel are trained and

that competency is maintained in order to effectively, efficiently and safely

execute all responsibilities.”

 Recommendation #11 states: “Ensure the ongoing development, revision,

implementation and maintenance of policies and operational guidelines,

consistent with legislative requirements, industry standards and best

practices for all approved core services.”

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 40 of 105



 Recommendation #23 states: “Ensure that an annual training and

education program is developed and implemented to confirm that

personnel are trained and that competency is maintained in order to

effectively, efficiently and safely execute all responsibilities.”

 Recommendation #25 states: “the Municipal Council of Amherstburg

should ensure proper issue, documenting, training, care, maintenance,

inspection, storage, and replacement of personal protective equipment.”

 Recommendation #24 states: “Ensure that information, instruction, and

competent supervision are provided to the fire service to protect the health

and safety of the worker as per O.H.&. S. A., 1990.”

Amherstburg Firefighters are scheduled to attend training 48 times throughout the year. 

Station #1 training is conducted on Thursday evenings from 6:30 PM to 8:30 PM, 

Station #2 scheduled training is on Wednesday evenings from 7:00 PM to 9:00 PM, and 

Station #3 scheduled training is on Monday evenings from 7:00 PM to 9:00 PM. All 

firefighters are required to attend at least 50% of scheduled training. A large number of 

our firefighters work shift work making it difficult to meet the minimum number of training 

sessions. 

The introduction of a full-time Firefighter/Training Officer will provide continuity of 

training by ensuring that all mandatory training is completed. A dedicated training officer 

will prepare and present training between the hours of 8:30 AM and 4:30 PM for our 

firefighters that work shift work. The training officer will be responsible for maintaining 

accurate training records for all firefighters. This position will also act as a full-time 

firefighter with one 24 hour shift per week at Station 2. Currently either a full-time 

firefighter at time and half wages, or an available volunteer firefighter covers the 

Saturday shifts.  If this position is approved, the new position would work the seventh 

shift of each week reducing overtime and additional costs. 

4. RISK ANALYSIS:

Both the Ministry of Labour and the Office of the Fire Marshall and Emergency 

Management clearly identified numerous issues that require a training component and 

accurate record keeping. Should we fail to fill this position, Amherstburg Fire will have a 

difficult time fulfilling its training requirements. 

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

Amherstburg Fire currently has 3 full-time firefighters working out of Station #2. The full-

time firefighters work two 24 hour shifts per week from Sunday at 8:00 AM to Saturday 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 41 of 105



 

at 8:00 AM. The Saturday shift from 8:00 AM to Sunday at 8:00 AM is currently covered 

by our volunteer firefighters at a cost of $22,632.00 a year. Our records indicate that 

approximately 6 times a year our volunteer firefighters are unable to fill the shift so we 

use the full-time firefighters to fill the Saturday shift at an annual cost of $7,439.00. 

(Based on current wages) 

Currently our full-time firefighters are entitled to 8 weeks of vacation or sixteen 24 hour 

shifts. These shifts are covered by the 2 remaining full-time firefighters. The cost of 

having our full-time firefighters cover these shifts is $19,837.00.  

By creating the position of firefighter/training officer he or she will be able to cover the 

shift presently being covered by our volunteer firefighters. Since our full-time firefighters 

work 48 hours per week it is our intent to have the new position work three (3) 8 hour 

shifts per week as a training officer and one (1) 24 hour shift per week as a full-time 

firefighter. When one of the fulltime firefighters go on vacation, or is off on sick leave or 

WSIB, the department would have the firefighter/training officer work two (2) 24 hour 

shifts per week until the full-time firefighter who is off returns to regular duties, thus 

saving the municipality overtime costs. 

Currently we are paying $30,071.00 for Saturday coverage and $19,837.00 for 

coverage of vacation time, for a total of $49,908 annually. 

The cost of a new position would consist of a salary of $95,972 in wages and benefits 

and statutory deductions of $34,150 for a total cost of $130,122. The cost of creating 

the position of firefighter/training officer will be $130,122 minus our current cost of 

$49,908. The increase to the fire budget would therefore be $80,214 a year. 

6. CONSULTATIONS:

N/A 

This space left blank intentionally. 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 42 of 105



 

7. CONCLUSION:

The Master Fire Plan created in 2007 by T.L. Powell and Associates Ltd. recommended 

that an evaluation/testing process be developed and implemented in the Amherstburg 

Fire Department and the appropriate records of training be retained to meet the 

standards set out by the Section 21 Guidelines.  

The Ministry of Labour orders clearly identified the importance of training and 

maintaining accurate records. 

Throughout the audit conducted by the Office of the Fire Marshal and Emergency 

Management the importance of training and maintaining accurate training records 

appeared throughout the document 24 times.  

The introduction of a dedicated training officer will ensure that all Amherstburg 

firefighters are receiving quality training. One of the obstacles that prevent the 

firefighters from meeting their minimum training requirements is shift work. To help 

alleviate this problem, the training officer will introduce a daytime training session for the 

Firefighters who are unable to attend evening training. The training officer will also be 

responsible for reviewing, updating and implementing the Ministry of Labour Section 21 

Guidelines notes. 

______________________________ 

Al Reaume  

Fire Chief 

DM 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 

Name:    

Phone #:  519         ext.    

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 43 of 105



Staffing changes requested 
are highlighted in green for 
presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 44 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 

2016 to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-1001021-1010 Tax Certificates (40,000)        (40,575)        (40,000)            (27,305)              (40,000)              (35,000)            (5,000) 

10-4-1001021-1015 Administrative Charges (8,000)          (14,761)        (8,000)              (2,885) (8,000) (8,000)              - 

Total Revenue- Financial Services Department (48,000)        (55,336)        (48,000)            (30,190)              (48,000)              (43,000)            (5,000) 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-1001021-0101 Salaries - Full Time 661,372       616,510       749,822           449,366             685,000             744,579           (5,243) 

10-5-1001021-0102 Salaries - Overtime 10,004         5,590           20,007             2,902 20,007               13,500             (6,507) 

10-5-1001021-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (72,000)        (35,105)        - (2,426) (2,426) - - 

10-5-1001021-0107 Salaries - Contract Staff 50,544         41,628         - 26,523               26,000               - - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Financial Services 649,920       628,623       769,829           476,365             728,581             758,079           (11,750) 

Benefits:
10-5-1001021-0201 Benefits - CPP 22,071         22,050         24,800             18,511               23,466               24,800             - 

10-5-1001021-0202 Benefits - EI 10,618         10,375         11,633             8,784 10,222               11,633             - 

10-5-1001021-0203 Benefits - OMERS 76,554         52,840         78,321             47,232               71,865               78,692             371 

10-5-1001021-0204 Benefits - EHT 14,040         12,392         14,860             8,914 13,744               14,781             (79) 

10-5-1001021-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 54,000         53,577         65,423             37,708               63,090               59,761             (5,662) 

10-5-1001021-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 30,817         25,470         32,926             22,028               30,468               43,668             10,742 

10-5-1001021-0208 Benefits - WSIB 19,110         18,506         20,618             13,234               19,085               20,354             (264) 

10-5-1001021-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 3,975           3,135           6,825               (3,843) 6,150 7,800 975 

Total Benefits - Financial Services 231,185       198,345       255,406           152,569             238,090             261,489           6,083 

General Expenses:
10-5-1001020-0326 Audit Fees 44,000         54,085         40,000             28,048               40,000               38,000             (2,000) 

10-5-1001021-0327 Professional Fees 7,000            - 40,000             20,861               35,000               35,000             (5,000) 

10-5-1001021-0336 Contracted Services - Brinks 782 4,500 - 

10-5-1001021-0350 Memberships 5,000           2,511           4,000               2,946 3,000 3,000 (1,000) 

10-5-1001021-0351 Training and Conferences 8,500           8,402           16,000             11,111               16,000               18,000             2,000 

10-5-1001021-0352 Travel and Mileage 1,000           703              1,000               584 1,000 750 (250) 

Total General Expenses - Financial Services 65,500         65,702         101,000           64,333               99,500               94,750             (6,250) 

Total Expenses - Financial Services Department 946,605       892,670       1,126,235        693,266             1,066,171          1,114,318        (11,917) 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 45 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

EXPENSES:
Salaries & Wages:

10-5-1001025-0101 Salaries - Full Time 260,815       258,470       255,894           193,128             255,894       324,824           68,930 

10-5-1001025-0102 Salaries - Overtime 6,219           2,545           6,500 4,857 4,500           6,500 - 

10-5-1001025-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (4,530) (4,530)          - - 

10-5-1001025-0112 Salaries - Part Time 62,391         58,163         64,864             49,762 68,000         13,270             (51,594) 

Total Salaries and Wages - Information Technology 329,425       319,179       327,258           243,217             323,864       344,594           17,336 

Benefits:
10-5-1001025-0201 Benefits - CPP 10,192         10,145         10,554             9,898 10,554         10,577             23 

10-5-1001025-0202 Benefits - EI 5,045           4,937           4,972 4,830 4,972           4,839 (133) 

10-5-1001025-0203 Benefits - OMERS 29,259         29,376         28,356             21,322 28,356         35,418             7,062 

10-5-1001025-0204 Benefits - EHT 6,377           6,385           6,382 4,771 6,382           6,720 338 

10-5-1001025-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 19,200         19,418         21,591             15,028 21,591         22,841             1,250 

10-5-1001025-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 13,874         12,025         11,601             9,473 11,601         19,019             7,418 

10-5-1001025-0208 Benefits - WSIB 8,810           8,753           8,874 7,188 8,874           9,313 439 

10-5-1001025-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994 1,028           975 790 975 1,950 975 

Total Benefits - Information Technology 93,751         92,067         93,305             73,299               93,305         110,677           17,372 

General Expenses:
10-5-1001025-0301 Office Supplies 1,200           1,443           1,200 1,552 1,200           1,200 - 

10-5-1001025-0308 Photocopies 23,000         25,656         21,000             21,865 25,000         19,000             (2,000) 

10-5-1001025-0310 Computer Maintenance 225,000       219,667       230,000           145,797             238,000       238,000           8,000 

10-5-1001025-0311 Website Development and Software 15,000         11,957         12,000             7,547 12,000         12,000             - 

10-5-1001025-0312 Photocopy Lease 22,000         19,362         22,000             11,409 22,000         - (22,000) 

10-5-1001025-0315 Telephone 70,000         74,255         65,000             51,356 65,000         65,000             - 

10-5-1001025-0332 Internet Access 35,000         40,421         30,000             29,531 30,000         32,000             2,000 

10-5-1001025-0345 Cell Phone 40,000         50,308         35,000             19,123 38,000         38,000             3,000 

10-5-1001025-0350 Memberships 500 486 500 46 500 500 - 

10-5-1001025-0351 Training and Conferences 7,500           7,288           7,500 9,941 9,941           7,500 - 

10-5-1001025-0352 Travel and Mileage 4,200           2,972           4,200 1,296 3,500           3,500 (700) 

10-5-1001025-0406 GPS 14,500         9,475           14,500             5,326 14,500         14,500             - 

Total General Expenses - Information Technology 457,900       463,292       442,900           304,789             459,641       431,200           (11,700) 

Reserve Transfers:
10-5-1001025-2003 Computer Reserve 111,000       111,000       111,000           111,000             111,000       123,000           12,000 

111,000           111,000             111,000       123,000           12,000 

Total Expenses - Information Technology Department 992,076       985,538       974,462           732,304             987,810       1,009,471        35,009 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 46 of 105



 

         THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

           OFFICE OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Dave Carpenter Report Date:  October 20, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 730-2107 ext. 
Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:     
dcarpenter@amherstburg.ca  

Resolution #: 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council  

Subject:     Full-time IT Service and Support Technologist 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that:   

1. The report from the IT Manager dated October 20, 2016 regarding Full-time IT
Service and Support Technologist BE RECEIVED; and,

2. The Full-time IT Service and Support Technologist position BE CONSIDERED
as part of the overall 2017 Information Technology Salaries/Wages and Benefits
Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

In 2011, the Town determined that additional staff resources were required to support 
the ongoing and increasing use of technology and the demands placed on the IT 
department to support the IT infrastructure and needs of the end users. As part of the 
2011 operating budget, funding was provided for a part-time Service and Support 
Technologist. 

3. DISCUSSION:

The IT Service and Support Technologist specific responsibilities as stated in the job 
description are: 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 47 of 105



 

1. Position Summary

Reporting to the Manager of Information Technology, the Service and Support 
Technologist provides solutions to problems that involve a number of possible 
alternatives based on technical knowledge and understanding of affected business 
areas. 

2. Specific Responsibilities

• Troubleshoot and be familiar with hardware, software, and network operating
system

• Provide orientation to new users of existing technology
• Train staff about new and potential uses of existing technology
• Provide individual training and support on request
• Conduct software and computer use training sessions to small groups
• Maintain current and accurate inventory of technology hardware, software and

resources
• Maintain a log and/or list of required repairs and maintenance
• Research current and potential resources and services
• Install workstations
• Connect and set up hardware
• Load required software
• Responsible for the implementation of new applications
• Maintain accurate and up-to-date records on municipal systems to ensure

effectiveness and efficiency
• Respond to staff requests, follow-up on needs, coordinate with internal

departments to meet needs of staff within a timely and efficient manner
• Provide administrative support functions for the Information technology

Department
• Provide regular updates to the Manager of Information Technology.
• Provide telecommunications support
• Build, configure and trouble shoot servers, workstations and related peripheral

devices
• Identify and prepare hardware for disposal when appropriate
• Ensure hardware is stripped and secured before disposal
• Perform network diagnostics and implement resolutions
• Perform a wide range desktop support and network duties
• Place support calls with 3rd party vendors and suppliers
• Perform website content updates
• Support printers, photocopiers, and other business machines
• Troubleshoot and maintain cell phones, PDAs, and other mobile devices
• Understand and adhere to the Occupational Health and Safety Act and Town

Health and Safety policies and procedures
• Other duties as assigned

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 48 of 105



 

4. RISK ANALYSIS:

Comparison of Municipal IT & GIS Staffing: 

Municipality IT Staff GIS Staff Total Staff 
Amherstburg 2.5 1 3.5 
Leamington 3 1 4.0
La Salle 3 1 4.0 
Lakeshore 2 2 4.0
Essex 1 1 2.0
Kingsville 2 1 3.0

The IT & GIS staff comparison chart above provides details of the total full-time 
equivalent of IT staff within each of the local municipalities within Essex County. It is 
important to note that the Town of Amherstburg is currently the only local municipality 
that provides full IT support for Police Services. Amherstburg and La Salle provide a 
municipal police service while Leamington, Lakeshore, Essex and Kingsville contract 
with the OPP.  Police Services is an essential service that is supported by IT staff 24 
hours per day seven days per week. An equivalent of one full-time IT staff resource is 
required to maintain and support the Police Services IT needs and complex 
infrastructure on an ongoing regular basis.  The Police Services requires a completely 
separate and autonomous secure IT network apart from other Town services including 
the network, servers, in car computers, surveillance equipment and a body worn 
camera system. This places a significant demand on existing IT staffing levels. 

Technology is constantly evolving.  In addition to the responsibilities of this position, the 
Service and Support Technologist has become more involved as a staff resource in IT 
projects. There will be an ongoing demand placed on this position as a staff resource for 
projects in 2017. 

Several major IT projects are planned for 2017/2018 including: 

1. New recreation management software.
2. Financial system upgrades
3. Development Services –Process and software requirement review.
4. Police Services In car computer replacements
5. New data storage system
6. Migration of servers to new virtual server platform
7. New site to site data replication
8. Replace automated control system - Libro

It will continue to be a challenge to perform the duties on a part-time schedule and also 
utilize the individual as a project resource. Lack of resources may result in failing to 
meet project timelines. Administration believes it is essential that the IT Service and 
Support Technologist become a full-time position in order to meet the ongoing demands 
of the organization. Failure to do so may have a negative impact on the service and 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 49 of 105



support levels established by the department to respond to ongoing system and end 
user demands. 

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The 2016 budget for the IT Service and Support Technologist position is $61,518 
inclusive of wages and benefits (Salary $50,049 + Benefits 11,469). Finance has 
forecasted a negative variance of $6,482 ($68,000 total cost) as a result of additional 
hours required   to perform the duties assigned to the IT Service and Support 
Technologist.  Converting this position to full-time would result in wages of $63,813 and 
benefit costs of $23,480 for a total of $87,293 annually or an increase of $25,775. 

6. CONSULTATIONS:

Justin Rousseau, Director, Corporate Services/Treasurer 

7. CONCLUSION:

Administration believes that the area of Information Technology will continue to grow for 
the Town of Amherstburg. In order to meet the duties and  responsibilities of this 
position, in addition to being utilized as an IT project resource, the staff member has 
been required to work overtime on a weekly basis. Converting this position to full-time 
will better serve the Town and reduce the amount of overtime required. 

______________________________  
Dave Carpenter 
 IT Manager 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 
Name:  Justin Rousseau 
Phone #:  519  736-0012    ext.  2259 

NOTIFICATION : 
Name Address Email Address Telephone FAX

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 50 of 105



Staffing changes requested 
are highlighted in green 
for presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 51 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-2043015-2145 Lottery Licences (14,000)        (19,075)        (18,500)            (13,396)              (18,500)        (18,500)            - 
10-4-2043015-2146 Liquor Licences (100)             -  (100) (100) (100)             (100) - 
10-4-2043015-2155 Business Licences (3,000)          (5,395)          (4,000)              (4,971) (4,500)          (4,000)              - 
10-4-2043015-2156 Marriage Licences (11,000)        (11,330)        (11,000)            (11,868)              (11,000)        (11,000)            - 
10-4-2043015-2105 Animal Control - Dog Tags and Fines (16,500)        (17,585)        (17,000)            (17,990)              (17,000)        (17,000)            - 
10-4-2043015-2119 Pool Permits (3,000)          (2,750)          (2,400)              (2,875) (2,400)          (2,000)              (400) 
10-4-2043015-2130 Sign Permits (2,000)          (2,075)          (2,000)              (5,333) (5,500)          (2,000)              - 
10-4-2043015-5800 Parking Tickets (3,000)          (1,725)          (3,000)              (1,060) (2,000)          (1,500)              (1,500) 
10-4-2043015-6540 Other Revenues (4,000)          (2,698)          (8,600)              (2,345) (3,000)          (2,500)              (6,100) 

Total Revenue - Licensing and Enforcment (56,600)        (62,633)        (66,600)            (59,938)              (64,000)        (58,600)            (8,000) 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-2043015-0101 Salaries - Full Time 200,562       200,933       200,894           153,498             200,894       141,023           (59,871) 
10-5-2043015-0102 Salaries - Overtime 5,000           3,706           5,000               1,184 4,000           3,500 (1,500) 
10-5-2043015-0112 Part Time  - - - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Licensing and Enforcement 205,562       204,639       205,894           154,683             204,894       144,523           (61,371) 

Benefits:
10-5-2043015-0201 Benefits - CPP 7,277           6,281           7,440               6,936 7,440           4,960 (2,480) 
10-5-2043015-0202 Benefits - EI 3,403           2,855           3,490               3,303 3,490           2,327 (1,163) 
10-5-2043015-0203 Benefits - OMERS 20,462         17,825         20,326             15,701               20,326         14,586             (5,740) 
10-5-2043015-0204 Benefits - EHT 4,008           3,524           3,986               3,068 3,986           2,818 (1,168) 
10-5-2043015-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 18,000         19,463         20,000             14,904               20,000         11,952             (8,048) 
10-5-2043015-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 9,255           8,078           8,862               7,298 8,862           8,280 (582) 
10-5-2043015-0208 Benefits - WSIB 5,888           5,205           5,887               4,554 5,887           4,151 (1,736) 
10-5-2043015-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994              993              975 731 975 975 - 

Total Benefits - Licensing and Enforcement 69,287         64,224         70,966             56,495               70,966         50,049             (20,917) 

General Expenses:
10-5-2043015-0252 Uniforms 2,000           648              1,200               256 1,200           1,200 - 
10-5-2043015-0327 Professional Fees - L & E 1,649 1,649           - - 
10-5-2043015-0342 Meeting Expenses 300              67 300 49 300 300 - 
10-5-2043015-0350 Memberships 700              724              650 178 178 650 - 
10-5-2043015-0351 Training and Conferences 3,500           3,755           6,000               2,309 6,000           8,000 2,000 
10-5-2043015-0352 Travel & Mileage 750              508              750 403 750 750 - 
10-5-2043015-0402 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 350              502              1,800               0 1,800           1,800 - 
10-5-2043015-0420 Equipment 4,480           2,656           3,800               1,666 3,800           3,800 - 
10-5-2043015-0901 Animal Control - Tags 2,000           370              750 371 750 600 (150) 
10-5-2043015-0903 Animal Control - Contract 25,000         25,440         27,000             18,542               27,000         27,000             - 
10-5-2043015-0904 Animal Control - Other 1,500           380              5,750               1,634 5,750           5,750 - 
10-5-2043015-0910 User Fees Refunded - - - 
10-5-2043015-2156 Wedding Licences 4,800           4,800           5,760               5,760 5,760           7,200 1,440 

Total General Expenses - Licensing and Enforcement 45,380         39,850         53,760             32,815               54,937         57,050             3,290 

Expense Allocation From Building Services 75,000             75,000 
Savings to be Determined (100,000)          - - 100,000 

Total Expenses - Licensing and Enforcement 320,229       308,713       230,620           243,993             330,797       326,622           96,002 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 52 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
PLANNING DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-8010000-1905 Planning - Minor Variance & Consent (21,000)        (27,841)        (22,000)            (19,500)              (25,000)        (25,000)            3,000 

10-4-8010000-1910 Planning - Charge Reimbursement (18,000)        (21,924)        (20,000)            (46,196)              (50,000)        (45,000)            25,000 

Total Revenue - Planning (39,000)        (49,765)        (42,000)            (65,696)              (75,000)        (70,000)            28,000 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-8010000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 165,248       164,065       281,752           212,382             281,752       295,569           13,817 

10-5-8010000-0102 Salaries - Overtime 4,500           2,249           4,500               44 4,500           4,500 - 

10-5-8010000-0112 Salaries - Part Time  - 60,840             60,840 

Total Salaries and Wages - Planning 169,748       166,314       286,252           212,427             286,252       360,909           74,657 

Benefits:
10-5-8010000-0201 Benefits - CPP 4,851           4,948           7,440               7,465 7,440           9,920 2,480 

10-5-8010000-0202 Benefits - EI 2,269           2,489           3,490               3,559 3,490           4,793 1,303 

10-5-8010000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 18,246         18,281         32,131             22,527               32,131         34,148             2,017 

10-5-8010000-0204 Benefits - EHT 3,310           3,451           5,582               4,180 5,582           7,038 1,456 

10-5-8010000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 12,000         12,755         19,254             13,488               19,254         17,662             (1,592) 

10-5-8010000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 8,712           7,042           12,538             9,475 12,538         17,252             4,714 

10-5-8010000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 4,280           4,466           6,702               6,250 6,702           8,477 1,775 

10-5-8010000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994              994              1,950               731 1,950           1,950 - 

Total Benefits - Planning 54,662         54,426         89,087             67,675               89,087         101,240           12,153 

General Expenses:
10-5-8010000-0301 Office Supplies 1,500           3,634           2,500               1,258 2,500           3,000 500 

10-5-8010000-0350 Memberships 725              934              950 2,379 2,227           2,300 1,350 

10-5-8010000-0351 Training and Conferences 3,500           508              8,500               1,971 4,000           8,500 - 

10-5-8010000-0352 Travel and Mileage 2,000           -  2,000               0 500 2,000 - 

Total General Expenses - Planning 7,725           5,076           13,950             5,608 9,227           15,800             1,850 

Professional and Consulting Fees:
10-5-8010000-0325 Legal Fees 20,000         26,707         20,000             13,441               20,000         (20,000) 

10-5-8010000-0327 Professional Fees 25,000         13,635         25,000             1,331 25,000         80,000             55,000 

10-5-8010000-0338 Development Charges Study 10,173         550 - 

10-5-8010000-0339 Official Plan Review 50,000         -  - - 

Total Professional And Consulting Fees - Planning 95,000         50,515         45,000             15,321               45,000         80,000             35,000 

Reserve Transfers:
10-4-8010000-3000 Transfer from Reserve (50,000)        (10,173)        - - 

Total Reserve Transfers - Planning (50,000)        (10,173)        - - - - - 

Total Expenses - Planning Division 277,135       266,158       434,289           301,031             429,566       557,949           123,660 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 53 of 105



      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

 OFFICE OF PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

MISSION STATEMENT:

Author’s Name:  Rebecca Belanger and 

Mark Galvin 
Report Date:  October 24, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-5408  ext. 2124 

and 2137  
Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  

rbelanger@amherstburg.ca 

mgalvin@amherstburg.ca 

Resolution #: 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Part- Time Planner Position 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that: 

1. The report from the Manager of Planning Services and Director of Planning,

Development and Legislative Services, dated October 21, 2016 regarding the

request for a Part-time Planner BE RECEIVED;

2. The Part Time Planner proposed in the 2017 Planning Budget BE CONSIDERED

as part of the overall 2017 Planning Salaries/Wages and Benefits Budget

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 54 of 105

mailto:rbelanger@amherstburg.ca
mailto:mgalvin@amherstburg.ca


2. BACKGROUND:

In 2006, the Town of Amherstburg determined that a second Planner was needed in the 

Planning Division due to the workload and demands on the department at that time. 

Between 2007 and mid-2010, the Town employed a registered professional planner 

holding the position of Manager of Development Services, as well as a Planning 

Coordinator and Planning Clerk in the Planning Department.. The Manager of 

Development Services and the Planning Coordinator shared in the responsibilities of 

processing Planning Act applications as well as directing strategic policy initiatives such 

as the Official Plan review, Zoning By-law review, Town’s Development Manual, as well 

as other strategic initiatives. Also, until 2012, the Town relied heavily on Monteith, 

Brown Planning Consulting for planning opinions and planning assistance including the 

preparation of reports and maps.  

In 2012, the current Manager of Planning Services was hired by the Town and there 

was a six month overlap between the employ of the Planning Coordinator and the 

Manager of Planning Services. Once the Planning Coordinator retired, this position was 

not replaced and the current complement of one Planner and one Planning Clerk 

remains.   

3. DISCUSSION:

Since 2009, the Planning Division statistics identify that the number of applications has 

approximately tripled from 38 to over 100 in 2015. As of October 21st, 2016, there were 

more than 100 planning applications, exceeding the 2015 total with two months 

remaining in 2016. Further, the Town is required to initiate the five year review of their 

Official Plan during 2016 which was required to begin in 2015 however was delayed to 

undertake the Community Based Strategic Plan first to establish the overall policy vision 

for the municipality.  

For Council’s reference, it should be noted that the majority of the work in the Planning 

Division is legislated by the processes of the Planning Act and other pieces of 

legislation. Due to these legislated processes, the deadlines in this department are strict 

and must be adhered to at all times. Therefore, the increase in applications that has 

occurred in the last five years has created an unmanageable workload for the Manager 

of Planning Services, requiring a significant amount of overtime to meet timelines. With 

the obligations for planning administration to follow the statutory processes under the 

Planning Act for following Planning Act applications, it leaves limited time for special 

initiatives such as Urban Design Guidelines, A Heritage District Study, Official Plan 

Review, Community Strategic Plan, Community Improvement Plan, etc.  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 55 of 105



The outcome of the Community Strategic Planning process has provided direction on 

policy initiatives for the municipality including the intention to initiate Requests for 

Proposal for the following:  

 A Community Improvement Plan which will include incentives to attract a

hotel;

 A Parks and Recreation Master Plan;

 A Background Study Regarding the Proposed Exemption for non-

residential development charges; and

 Urban Design Guidelines.

The attached table provides statistics from other municipalities identifying that each of 

the municipalities in Essex County have at least two full-time planners on staff and are 

generally processing less applications then the Town of Amherstburg. There are also 

tasks that are being prepared and managed by the Planning Division that are not 

typically undertaken by Planners in municipalities which include the managing of 

securities and financial matters related to developments, preparing Site Plan Control 

Agreements, Subdivision Agreements and Development Agreements including the 

preparation of special provisions and engineering requirements and the development of 

the municipal Development Charges Study and Amending studies.   

The Planning Division has included funding for a part-time Planner in the 2017 Budget 

for the amount of $58,500. The budgeted amount is proposed to cover a part-time 

Planner for three days a week. The Planner’s specific responsibilities will be as follows:  

1. Receive, review, conduct site inspections as required, and liaise with other
municipal departments in order to appropriately process the following 
applications under the Planning Act:  
a) Amendments to the Official Plan

b) Amendments to Zoning By-laws

c) Site Plans

d) Consents

e) Plans of Subdivision

2. Will assist the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee of Adjustment with the
processing of all applications to the Committee of Adjustment, and assist in carry 
out all other duties of the Secretary-Treasurer as set out in the Planning Act.  

3. Prepare and present reports to Council as required.

4. With the Manager of Planning Services or planning consultants, as the case
may be, assist with the creation of new official plans, comprehensive zoning by-

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 56 of 105



laws, and development charges by-laws, by compiling data, holding meetings 
and liaising with all interested parties.  

5. In consultation with the Manager of Planning Services the Director of Planning,
Development and Legislative Services and/or the CAO, as the case may be, 
prepare the annual operating budget for the department and carry out all 
operations within the budgetary allocation, ensuring all funds are spent in an 
efficient manner.  

6. Prepare documentation for Ontario Municipal Board cases and liaise with the
Manager of Planning Services or town consultants, as the case may be. 

7. Assist with the development of studies which may include a parks and
recreation master plan.  

8. Compile and maintain an inventory of built heritage sites and natural features
and promote the same in planning documents as appropriate. 

9. Facilitate the development of downtown revitalization plans including a
Community Improvement Plan and urban design guidelines. 

10. Act as a resource and attend meetings of Statutory, Standing or Ad Hoc
Committees related to accessibility, parks, recreation, culture; and economic 
development, as required.  

11. Respond to inquiries or otherwise communicate with the public, developers,
local government or other agencies regarding issues related to planning. 

12. Coordinate the processing of property information reports among all
municipal departments. 

13. Other duties as assigned.

4. RISK ANALYSIS:

Given the added workload and responsibilities placed on the Planning Division it is 

difficult to provide the necessary level of oversight required to ensure there is no 

exposure to risk to the municipality.  

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The budgeted amount for the Planner position is a salary of $58, 500 with statutory 

deductions of $9,061 for a total cost of $67,561 which is proposed to cover a part-time 

position for twelve months in 2017.  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 57 of 105



Including this position as Part Time relieves the Town of benefit obligations as a 

permanent employee. It also allows the Town with the flexibility to reduce time, if so 

desired, and also allows the Town the flexibility to assess the success of this initiative 

post 2017, without the legacy cost of a full-time employee.   

6. CONSULTATIONS:

Mark Galvin, Director of Planning, Development and Legislative Services 

7. CONCLUSION:

In order to meet the added workload in the Planning Division over the past five years 

the above recommendation of a part-time Planner position for 12 months for 2017 

represents the minimum that could be deemed reasonable, while balancing the costs to 

the Town, to meet the staffing needs in the Planning Division for the upcoming year. 

______________________________ 

Rebecca Belanger 

Manager of Planning Services 

af 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 

Name:  Justin Rousseau 

Phone #:  519  736-0012  ext.  2259 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 58 of 105



Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Part Time Planner Position.docx 

Attachments: - Planning Activity Survey- 2009-October 2016.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Oct 27, 2016 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

Mark Galvin - Oct 24, 2016 - 4:00 PM 

Justin Rousseau - Oct 26, 2016 - 10:45 AM 

John Miceli - Oct 26, 2016 - 1:59 PM 

Paula Parker - Oct 27, 2016 - 2:04 PM 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 59 of 105



Number of: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016** 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016**

 Applications 53 38 60 45 62 96 79 102 109 43 25 26 57 47 45 53 N/A N/A

 Staff 2 3 2.5 2 2.5 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4

Number of: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016** 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016**

 Applications 93 108 101 79 84 100 81 85 53 142 138 135 113 110 121 121 107 134

 Staff 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4

Number of: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016** 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016**

 Applications 42 44 71 77 64 73 48 49 N/A 87 77 89 116 86 78 76 N/A N/A

 Staff 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 2 2 2 3 4 4 4 4 4

Number of: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016**

 Applications 72 44 54 72 53 86 74 66 68

 Staff 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

Essex County Municipalities Planning Summary and Application Activity

October, 2016

* As of October 31st, 2014

** As of October 27th, 2016

Lasalle Leamington

Kingsville

Tecumseh

Lakeshore

EssexAmherstburg

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 60 of 105



2009

Total # of

Applications

2010

Total # of

Applications

2011

Total # of

Applications

2012

Total # of

Applications

2013

Total # of

Applications

2014

Total # of

Applications

2015

Total # of

Applications

2016

Total # of

Applications  (as 

of 10/21/16)

Consent 10 23 12 21 47 27 26 28

Draft Plan of Subdivision / Condo 0 2 0 0
1 complete,

2 ongoing 4 ongoing 3 ongoing 9 ongoing

Part Lot Control 4 3 1 6 1 4 3 6

Deeming By-law 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Minor Variance 9 17 17 16 23 24 31 24

Zoning By-law Amendment 6 8 5 11 12 11 17 17

Official Plan Amendment 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 + 1 ongoing

Site Plan Control 8 4 8 7 7 8 16 8

Telecommunication 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Other 1 1 2 1 2 1 6 14

TOTAL 38 60 45 62 96 79 102 109

Total Staffing No. (Planning)

3
2.5 (Planner on 

staff 6 months)
2

2.5 (transition 

based on Planning 

Coordinator 

retirement)

2 2 2 2

No. Planners withinTotal 1 0.5 0 0.5 1 1 1 1

Other:  Policy Projects / Studies (i.e. Secondary Plans, Official Plan Reviews or Zoning By-law Reviews, Mapping Projects, Housing Studies, Design Guidelines, Business 

Plans etc.  Please indicate which year(s) project(s) were undertaken, i.e. 2008 OP Review, 2010 Housing Study etc.

-    2014 Development Charges Study and By-law

-    2012 Zoning Bylaw Office Consolidation

-    Official Plan Review- adopted by council April 14, 2009, OMB Approval February 3, 2010

-    2010 Interim Control By-law- former General Chemical Lands

-    2009 Development Manual

-    2016 Health Study on Wind Turbines; 2016 Community Based Strategic Plan; 2016 Community Improvement Plan (ongoing);

-    2016 Consent Agreements (2)

-    2016 ZBA Consolidation

-    2016 Additional Reports and By-laws - Road Dedications (3); DC Policy Deferral Extension; Land Swap (Richmond St); Municipal Support Resolution; 

     Housekeeping Amendments (2)

-    Planning Department is responsible for review and approval of all building permit application site plans

Amherstburg Planning Activity 2009‐ 2016

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 61 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
BUILDING DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-2043010-1015 Administrative Charges (200) (200) (200) - 

10-4-1001020-1045 Indemnity Deposit Admin. Fees (9,000)            (11,300)           (9,000)             (10,450)             (12,000)            (9,000)             - 

10-4-2043010-2115 Build Dept - Building Permits (275,000)        (331,205)         (275,000)         (330,413)           (350,000)          (275,000)         - 

10-4-2043010-2120 Build Dept - Sewer Permits (250) (250) - 

10-4-2043010-2135 Build Dept - Building Letters (3,500)            (5,125)             (3,500)             (4,575)               (7,000)              (4,000)             500

Total Revenue - Building (287,500)        (347,830)       (287,500)       (345,888)         (369,450)         (288,000)         500

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-2043010-0101 Salaries - Full Time 153,203          150,846          265,908          112,508            159,204           279,223          13,315

10-5-2043010-0102 Salaries - Overtime 1,067              1,823              1,667              1,519 1,667 3,482              1,815

10-5-2043010-0112 Salaries - Part Time - - - 

10-5-2043010-0105 CR. RE:  S.T.D. (4,167)             - - - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Building 154,270          148,502        267,575        114,027          160,871          282,705          15,130

Benefits:
10-5-2043010-0201 Benefits - CPP 4,851              4,972              9,920              4,609 5,400 9,920              - 

10-5-2043010-0202 Benefits - EI 2,269              2,284              4,653              2,173 2,438 4,653              - 

10-5-2043010-0203 Benefits - OMERS 16,488            16,565            26,816            11,978              16,743             28,760            1,944

10-5-2043010-0204 Benefits - EHT 3,008              3,032              5,218              2,229 3,137 5,513              295

10-5-2043010-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 12,000            15,486            26,916            12,030              20,000             24,436            (2,480)

10-5-2043010-0206 Benefits - Greenshield Retirees 21,751            24,200            24,911            19,191              24,911             24,911            0

10-5-2043010-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 8,070              6,534              11,695            5,486 7,128 16,397            4,702

10-5-2043010-0208 Benefits - WSIB 4,181              4,195              7,496              3,308 4,422 7,878              382

10-5-2043010-0209 Benefits - Post Retirment Benefit 1,950              0 813 975 (975)

Total Benefits - Building 72,618            77,268          119,575        61,004            84,992            123,443          3,868

General Expenses:
10-5-2043010-0252 Uniforms 1,000              573 1,500              0 600 2,000              500

10-5-2043010-0350 Memberships 700 823 1,600              323 323 1,000              (600)

10-5-2043010-0352 Travel and Mileage 500 361 500 0 500 - (500)

10-5-2043010-0351 Training and Conferences 4,500              2,147              9,000              791 1,000 12,000            3,000

10-5-2043010-0301 Office Supplies 3,650              1,176              3,650              819 2,000 2,000              (1,650)

Total General Expenses - Building 10,350            5,080            16,250          1,933              4,423              17,000            750

Professional Fees
10-5-2043010-0327 Professional Fees 60,000            72,416            47,744              80,000             12,000            12,000

Total Professional fees - Building 60,000            72,416          - 47,744            80,000            12,000            12,000

Equipment and Vehicle:
10-5-2043010-0402 Vehicle & Equipment MTCE. 1,500              461 1,500              687 - 1,000              (500)

Total Equipment and Vehicle - Building 1,500              461 1,500            687 - 1,000             (500)

Reserve Transfers:
10-5-2043010-2010 Transfer To/From Accum. Deficit (20,238)          (20,238)           (31,426)           (31,426)             39,164             (73,148)           (41,722)

Total Reserve Transfers - Building (20,238)          (20,238)         (31,426)         (31,426)           39,164            (73,148)           (41,722)

Expense Allocation to By-Law Services (75,000)           (75,000)

Total Expenses - Building Division 278,500          283,489        373,474        193,968          369,450          288,000          (10,474)

Net Expenses - Building Division (9,000)            (64,341)         85,974          (151,920)         - - (85,974)

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 62 of 105



Staffing changes requested 
are highlighted in green 
for presentation puposes

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 63 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
LIBRO CENTRE DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 

2016 to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-7017300-1410 Ice Rentals (572,500)         (527,627)         (575,000)         (287,773)          (575,000)         (580,000)         5,000                           

10-4-7017300-1420 Pro (Skate Shop) Rental (8,000)             (8,000)             (8,000)            (6,000)              (8,000)             (8,000)            -                                   

10-4-7017300-1425 Room Rentals (22,000)           (29,308)           (22,000)          (15,934)            (25,000)           (22,000)          -                                   

10-4-7017300-1473 Premier Diamond Rental (5,000)             (5,233)             (5,000)            (5,966)              (5,200)             (5,000)            -                                   

10-4-7017300-1450 Libro - Miscellaneous (5,164)             - -                                   

10-4-7017300-1474 AMHA 4 on 4 Hockey 4,853              923                  -                                   

10-4-7017300-1467 Outdoor Turf Rental (7,500)             (11,158)           (10,000)          (9,396)              (9,000)             (10,000)          -                                   

10-4-7017300-1466 Indoor Turf Rental (40,000)           (65,913)           (50,000)          (54,496)            (70,000)           (60,000)          10,000                         

10-4-7017300-5520 Solar Panel Rental Revenue (9,888)             (9,888)             (9,888)            (4,944)              (9,888)             (9,888)            -                                   

10-4-7017300-5525 Solar Panel Special Share Divident (17,112)           (17,804)           (17,112)          0 (17,804)           (17,112)          -                                   

Total Revenue - Libro Centre (682,000)         (675,242)         (697,000)         (383,585)          (719,892)         (712,000)         15,000                    

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-7017300-0101 Salaries - Full Time 379,272          354,138          382,264          251,585           356,264          528,096          145,832                       

10-5-7017300-0102 Salaries - Overtime 2,000              882                 -                     11,834             20,000            -                     -                                   

10-5-7017300-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (63,363)           -                     (25,330)            (18,850)           -                     -                                   

10-5-7017300-0112 Salaries - Part Time 278,815          281,988          193,498          264,455           300,000          308,400          114,902                       

Total Salaries and Wages - Libro Centre 660,087          573,645          575,762          502,543           657,414          836,496          260,734                  

Benefits:
10-5-7017300-0201 Benefits - CPP 27,351            22,516            24,304            21,447             28,188            32,625            8,321                           

10-5-7017300-0202 Benefits - EI 15,120            12,437            9,171              12,503             10,143            12,460            3,289                           

10-5-7017300-0203 Benefits - OMERS 56,154            46,740            51,356            29,718             47,931            82,423            31,067                         

10-5-7017300-0204 Benefits - EHT 13,554            11,382            11,227            9,958               12,757            16,264            5,037                           

10-5-7017300-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 42,000            38,828            40,747            22,708             43,799            48,871            8,124                           

10-5-7017300-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 19,759            12,213            15,719            7,695               15,347            32,020            16,301                         

10-5-7017300-0208 Benefits - WSIB 17,874            18,222            16,371            15,520             18,631            22,697            6,326                           

10-5-7017300-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 3,048              3,082              3,055              (785)                 4,095              6,110              3,055                           

Total Benefits - Libro Centre 194,860          165,420          171,950          118,764           180,891          253,470          81,520                    

Allocation of Salaries and Benefits to Facilities (149,542)         (112,157)          (149,542)         (220,000)         (70,458)                        

General Expenses:
10-5-7017300-0161 Clothing 2,500              2,195              2,500              3,569               6,500              5,000              2,500                           

10-5-7017300-0250 Health and Safety 2,500              1,966              2,000              12,456             6,000              5,000              3,000                           

10-5-7017300-0350 Memberships 1,750              1,261              1,750              1,145               1,145              1,500              (250)                             

10-5-7017300-0351 Training and Conferences 7,500              3,911              8,500              4,230               4,230              6,500              (2,000)                          

10-5-7017300-0352 Travel and Mileage 2,000              107                 1,000              759                  583                 1,000              -                                   

10-5-7017300-0301 Office Supplies 3,500              7,042              3,000              1,232               1,500              3,000              -                                   

10-5-7017300-0336 Contracted Services & Refridgeration 8,000              10,801            9,000              64,358             85,000            75,000            66,000                         

10-5-7017300-0505 Credit Card Charges 5,000              5,666              5,000              6,221               8,000              5,000              -                                   

Total General Expenses - Libro Centre 32,750            32,949            32,750            93,970             112,958          102,000          69,250                    

Building:
10-5-7017300-0316 Utilities 360,000          443,503          360,000          404,028           490,000          480,000          120,000                       

10-5-7017300-0317 Building Maintenance 87,000            123,260          87,000            132,753           170,000          125,000          38,000                         

10-5-7017300-0725 Parking Lot Maintenance 2,000                              -  2,000              501                  500                 1,000              (1,000)                          

10-5-7017300-0318 Janitorial Supplies 15,000            14,064            15,000            14,803             15,000            15,000            -                                   

10-5-7017300-0960 Outdoor Soccer (Nat Turf) 5,673               4,783              5,000              5,000                           

10-5-7017300-0961 Outdoor/Football Field Turf 519                  519                 700                700                              

10-5-7017300-0962 Premier Baseball Field 7,595               400                 8,000              8,000                           

Total Building - Libro Centre 464,000          580,827          464,000          565,872           681,202          634,700          170,700                  

Equipment and Vehicles:
10-5-7017300-0401 Propane 7,000              5,603              7,000              3,938               6,000              6,000              (1,000)                          

10-5-7017300-0402 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 10,000            8,628              10,000            6,929               10,000            10,000            -                                   

Total Equipment and Vehicles - Libro Centre 17,000            14,231            17,000            10,867             16,000            16,000            (1,000)                     

Total Expenses - Libro Centre Division 1,368,697       1,367,072       1,111,920       1,179,859        1,498,923       1,622,666       510,746                  

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 64 of 105



      THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 

OFFICE OF THE CAO 

MISSION STATEMENT: 

Author’s Name:  Giovanni (John) 
Miceli 

Report Date:  October 21, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 736-0012 ext. 
2228 

Date to Council:  November 7, 2016 

Author’s E-mail:  
jmiceli@amherstburg.ca 

Resolution #: 

To: Mayor and Members of Town Council 

Subject:  Additional Municipal Position – Director of Parks, Facilities, 
Recreation and Culture 

1. RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that: 

1. The report from the Chief Administrative Officer dated October 21, 2016
regarding the additional Municipal position of Director of Parks, Facilities,
Recreation and Culture BE RECEIVED; and,

2. The Director of Parks, Facilities, Recreation and Culture proposed in the 2017
Libro Budget BE CONSIDERED as part of the overall 2017 Libro Salaries/Wages
and Benefits Budget.

2. BACKGROUND:

On October 5, 2015, Council was presented with an organizational restructuring plan. 
As a result, Council adopted the following resolution: 

“That: 
1. That the report from the CAO BE APPROVED in principle;

2. That the position of Director of Economic and Community  Development BE
ELIMINATED and the position of Director of Planning, Development and
Legislative Services BE ADDED to the organizational structure subsequent
to Council approval;

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 65 of 105



3. That the position of Director of Parks, Recreation, Facilities and Cultural
Services BE ADDED to the organizational structure subsequent to Council
approval; and,

4. That the CAO BE DIRECTED to bring back job descriptions and costing of
each approved Director position prior to their recruitment.”

On October 14th, 2015, the CAO brought to Council the job descriptions for the Director 
of Planning, Development and Legislative Services and the Director of Parks, 
Recreation, Facilities and Cultural Services. Council subsequently adopted the following 
motions: 

 “That Council DIRECT the Chief Administrative Officer to advertise for the 
position of Director of Planning, Development and Legislative Services. 

That the recruitment of the position of Director of Parks, Recreation, Facilities 
and Cultural Services BE DEFERRED to the next Regular Council Meeting.” 

The organizational structure, presented to Council by the CAO, was approved in 
principle by Council on October 5th, 2015.  Following Council’s 2016 final budget 
deliberations, the position of Director of Parks, Recreation, Facilities and Cultural 
Services was not funded and as a result the position remains vacant in the 
organizational establishment. 

3. DISCUSSION:

As a result of the restructuring, the areas of Parks, Facilities, Recreation and Culture 
have been brought together to work cohesively. The strategic realignment of these 
divisions places the department in a position to utilize resources to produce the largest 
benefit to the Town. The services provided in this department are complimentary and 
their dependence on each other is well noted. The proposal looks to maximize success, 
efficiency and overall benefit to the Town.  

It has been suggested and recognized that Tourism is a key area of focus that must be 
nurtured to promote the future success of the Town, as identified by residents in the 
recently adopted Community Strategic Plan. Tourism and Sports Tourism are key 
growth areas for the Town of Amherstburg to capture. In 2012, the Ministry of Tourism, 
Culture and Sports indicated that tourism generated $28 billion for Ontario’s economy. 
The Ministry of Tourism reported that tourism is the largest single employer of young 
workers. It is estimated that with every $1 million spent by tourists, 14 permanent jobs 
are created, generating approximately $553,400 in wages and salaries. The Windsor, 
Essex County and Pelee Island region is a growing tourist destination.  With the 
pending acquisitions of the Belle Vue and Duffy’s properties Amherstburg is well poised 
to gain and improve its favour as a tourist destination. The favourable U.S. exchange 
rate lures many visitors from the Midwestern states in general, and Michigan and Ohio 
in particular. 

A growing Tourism sector provides the Town with an opportunity to capture the attention 
of visitors who appreciate all of the history and amenities that Amherstburg has to offer. 
The Town will have one opportunity to make a lasting impression on its visitors. In 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 66 of 105



addition those who visit may also consider making Amherstburg a location that they 
would consider calling home.   

The Town has built the Libro Centre, a premier sports facility with complimentary sports 
fields. The facility has the ability to become the hub of a sports tourism destination. It is 
believed that Sports Tourism can have a major impact on the Town going forward. The 
sport tourism industry in Canada surpassed $5 billion in spending in 2012, according to 
custom data tabulations from the Travel Survey of Residents of Canada (TSRC) and the 
International Travel Survey (ITS).  

It should also be noted that garden tourism is growing in popularity, and is now 
recognized as a significant sector of the province, and the country’s vast tourism 
offering. The Town has experienced success in the 2015 Communities in Bloom 
program. The Town is building upon this success and is awaiting results from the 
National level for 2016 Communities in Bloom program. Kings Navy Yard Park and Fort 
Malden National Historic Site are noted as outstanding Garden Tour destinations.  

It is anticipated that the amenities and services offered by this department will become a 
catalyst for those considering a move to Amherstburg. Municipal parks, recreation 
facilities and the cultural venues attract people to the Town. It is crucial that the 
amenities and services provided by this department be presented in a positive light. The 
Director’s responsibility is to ensure that this occurs. Accountability and responsibility for 
the delivery of this vision must rest with one individual. Presently, this is being done by 
the Chief Administrative Officer in addition to the CAO’s regular duties. A decentralized 
accountability structure will not produce the required results.  

It should also be noted that the vision of community and Council, as adopted in the 
Community Strategic Plan will be further developed and reinforced through the 
development of the Parks Master Plan and the Facilities Audit. These 3 important 
guiding documents will require the concentrated and coordinated efforts of a Director to 
ensure that the vision and direction agreed upon and adopted by Council is 
implemented and realized. It is this position that must be responsible for the co-
ordinated implementation of the vision.   The role of the Director will be to plan, 
organize, implement, direct and co-ordinate these areas to ensure further development 
of the Town of Amherstburg into a premiere tourism, sports tourism and garden tourism 
destination.  

4. RISK ANALYSIS:

At present there is a resource risk whereby the CAO currently performs the duties of the 
CAO and the Director of Parks, Facilities, Recreation and Culture. In this type of 
situation, the CAO is not able to review the duties and performance of the Director as 
the functions are being accomplished by the same individual. Although financially the 
Town may be benefitting from such an exercise, it may not be realizing the optimal 
potential from another individual focusing on the Parks, Facilities, Recreation and 
Culture area alone. For example, the timely response to issues surrounding these areas 
may not be possible, as the CAO has other responsibilities that require attention in the 
day to day operation of the Town. These issues may result in financial repercussions to 
the Town or political criticisms of Council.   

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 67 of 105



5. FINANCIAL MATTERS:

The anticipated compensation costs for the Director are highlighted as follows: 

Salary 1 $ 122,015 

Benefits $ 37,075 

Total Compensation $159,090 

1. The compensation for the Director of Parks, Facilities, Recreation & Culture range from

$103,712.74 to $122,014.99. For budgetary purposes the Town budgets the position at

100% of salary and benefits.

The addition of the Director of Parks, Facilities Recreation and Culture would represent 
an increase to the budget of approximately 0.79%.  

For illustration purposes, in 2016 Council approved the Director of Planning 
Development and Legislative Services and reduced the Legal Budget by $40,000 from 
$160,000 to $120,000. This reduction was done in anticipation that the new position 
would result in corporate legal savings. In addition, synergies have been realized 
through the consolidation of Planning, Building and Legislative Services under one 
Director.  Administration is anticipating cost savings and enhanced levels of service to 
customers with the addition of the Director of Parks, Facilities, Recreation and Culture.  

It is difficult to quantify the anticipated savings at the present time however it must be 
noted that there will definitely be qualitative benefits that will be measurable with one 
point of accountability.  From an Asset Management perspective, the individual would 
be accountable for approximately $45,503,521.00. This value represents approximately 
11% of the total assets of the Town and would be a significant portfolio for one to 
manage going forward to ensure the assets are maintained and preserved for others to 
enjoy. 

6. CONSULTATIONS:

N/A 

7. CONCLUSION:

Administration believes the area of Parks, Facilities, Recreation and Culture will be a 
growing area for the Town and will be key to the critical success of the Town. The 
addition of a Director will assist in the Town moving forward. This position will play a key 
role in developing and assisting the Tourism and Sports Tourism for the Town of 
Amherstburg.    

______________________________ 
Giovanni (John) Miceli 
Chief Administrative Officer 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 68 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
FACILITIES
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-7017190-1305 Facility Rentals (13,900)        (13,877)        (13,900)            (7,945) (13,900)        (13,900)            - 

10-4-1001020-1430 Rent - Municipal Bldg. & Property (59,378)        (55,330)        (59,378)            (43,699)              (59,378)        (59,378)            - 

Facility Services- Police (25,000)            25,000 

Total Revenue - Facilities (73,278)        (69,207)        (73,278)            (51,644)              (73,278)        (98,278)            25,000 

EXPENSES:
Allocation of Salaries and Benefits from Libro 149,542           112,157             149,542       220,000           70,458 

Building Maintenance:
10-5-1001020-0317 Town Hall 44,000         36,697         30,000             26,994               30,000         18,000             (12,000) 

10-5-3010000-0318 Public Works 50,000         63,310         55,000             24,993               30,000         40,000             (15,000) 

10-5-2010000-0317 Fire Hall 20,000         30,480         40,000             32,792               40,000         40,000             - 

10-5-7010180-0317 Scout Hall 2,000           - 2,000               762 1,000           2,000 - 

10-5-7017010-0317 Parks Buildings 11,500         6,957           10,000             20,861               10,000         10,000             - 

10-5-7017025-0317 3381 Meloche Road 5,000           611              5,000               0 - 1,000 (4,000) 

10-5-7017301-0317 Parks Storage Facility 5,000           2,877           288 500 - 

10-5-7017730-0317 99 Thomas Road 2,000           - 2,000               0 2,000 - 

10-5-7027510-0317 Carnegie Library 4,000           11,042         6,000               4,607 4,000           6,000 - 

10-5-7037140-0317 Malden Community 2,500           5,831           3,000               2,077 3,000           3,000 - 

10-5-7037610-0317 ACS Building 3,500           707              2,000               1,954 750 2,000 - 

10-5-7037620-0317 Gordon House 4,000           5,078           23,000             4,237 23,000         8,000 (15,000) 

10-5-7017000-1315 McGregor 5,000           5,432           30,000             0 30,000         30,000             - 

10-5-8020000-0317 North Gate Visitor Centre 2,000           4,571           2,000               173 2,000           2,000 - 

Total Building Maintenance - Facilities 160,500       173,593       210,000           119,737             174,250       164,000           (46,000) 

Utilities:
10-5-1001020-0316 Town Hall 45,000         46,220         40,000             37,595               56,000         35,000             (5,000) 

10-5-3010000-0316 Public Works 40,000         57,127         80,000             32,832               55,000         50,000             (30,000) 

10-5-2010000-0316 Fire Hall 12,000         7,645           20,000             5,269 8,000           11,000             (9,000) 

10-5-7010000-0316 KNYP Privy 8,800           16,777         15,000             13,704               15,000         18,000             3,000 

10-5-7010170-0316 Toddy Jones 38,000         43,510         38,000             42,257               38,000         40,000             2,000 

10-5-7010180-0316 Scout Hall 3,200           3,396           3,000               2,659 3,200           3,000 - 

10-5-7017015-0316 Anderdon Tennis Ct 618              500 466 500              500 - 

10-5-7017035-0316 Wigle Park Washrooms 4,400           3,737           4,000               5,808 4,000           4,000 - 

10-5-7017040-0316 Centennial Park Washrooms 7,200           5,011           5,500               4,845 4,000           5,500 - 

10-5-7017070-0316 Malden Park Washrooms 2,000           278              1,500               207 750 1,500 - 

10-5-7017301-0316 Parks Storage 27,000         16,626         826 1,000           - 

10-5-7037140-0316 Malden Community Centre 3,600           3,497           3,500               2,176 2,200           3,500 - 

10-5-7037610-0316 ACS Building 9,700           11,240         8,500               9,607 9,000           10,000             1,500 

10-5-7037620-0316 Gordon House 7,000           7,007           6,000               5,323 6,000           7,000 1,000 

10-5-7017730-0316 99 Thomas Road 5,021           (1,800) 2,400           - 

10-5-8020000-0316 North Gate Visitor Centre 3,600           5,337           3,500               5,334 3,500           5,000 1,500 

Total Utilities - Facilities 211,500       233,047       229,000           167,107             208,550       194,000           (35,000) 

Lions' Pool:
10-5-7010160-0317 Pool Building Maintenance 8,000           6,314           8,000               16,230               7,000           10,000             2,000 

10-5-7010160-0250 Health and Safety 500              141              250 821 500 1,000 750 

10-5-7010160-0316 Utilities 7,000           11,501         8,000               9,069 4,000           8,000 - 

10-5-7010160-0322 General Supplies 1,000           890              500 2,016 500 2,000 1,500 

Total Lions' Pool - Libro Centre 16,500         18,846         16,750             28,136               12,000         21,000             4,250 

Total Expenses - Facilities Division 388,500       425,486       605,292           427,137             544,342       599,000           (6,292) 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 69 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
PARKS
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-7017000-1080 Hanging Basket Program Revenue (2,500)          (3,500) (3,500)          (3,500)              3,500 

10-4-7017000-1026 Property Maintenance Income (3,500)          (2,961)          (3,500)              (1,369) (3,500)          (3,500)              - 

Total Revenue - Parks (3,500)          (5,461)          (3,500)              (4,869)                (7,000)          (7,000)              3,500 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-7017000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 206,924       197,267       207,216           144,953             207,216       585,297           378,081 

10-5-7017000-0104 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (16,583)        - - - - 

10-5-7017000-0102 Salaries - Overtime 5,000           2,393           5,000               3,011 5,000           5,000 - 

10-5-7017000-0109 Salaries - Students 42,741         42,046         52,383             71,750               55,500         95,004             42,621 

10-5-7017000-0105 Salaries - CE.RE .S.T.D (27,743)              (27,743)        - - 

10-5-7017000-0112 Salaries - Part time - - - 

10-5-7017000-0117 Salaries - Seasonal 205,208       190,781       203,731           139,986             204,025       - (203,731) 

Total Salaries and Wages - Parks 459,873       415,904       468,330           331,958             443,998       685,301           216,971 

Benefits:
10-5-7017000-0201 Benefits - CPP 19,550         17,292         20,118             14,610               20,276         27,022             6,904 

10-5-7017000-0202 Benefits - EI 9,929           9,404           8,053               7,933 8,313           11,799             3,746 

10-5-7017000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 37,247         33,979         36,319             25,685               40,000         58,439             22,120 

10-5-7017000-0204 Benefits - EHT 8,771           8,256           9,132               6,537 9,195           13,363             4,231 

10-5-7017000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 18,000         22,197         20,000             20,757               40,000         55,645             35,645 

10-5-7017000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 10,272         8,359           9,725               6,954 9,640           34,424             24,699 

10-5-7017000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 12,954         12,658         13,488             10,463               13,580         19,725             6,237 

10-5-7017000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994              994              975 1,291 4,875           7,215 6,240 

Total Benefits - Parks 117,717       113,139       117,810           94,231               145,879       227,632           109,822 

General Expenses:
10-5-7017000-0351 Training and Conferences 1,500           2,054           5,000               3,985 5,000           5,000 - 

10-5-7017000-0771 Special Events 1,920           2,232           2,000               400 2,000           2,000 - 

10-5-7017000-0352 Travel and Mileage (Parks) 480              203              500 120 - 500 - 

10-5-7017000-0404 Radio Airtime 8,000           7,614           8,000               4,863 7,500           7,500 (500) 

10-5-7017000-0336 Contracted Services 57,500         49,306         57,500             44,322               57,500         57,500             - 

Total General Expenses - Parks 69,400         61,409         73,000             53,690               72,000         72,500             (500) 

Municipal Partnerships:
10-5-7017000-1300 CO-AN Park 15,000         15,000         15,000             15,000               15,000         17,500             2,500 

10-5-7017000-1310 River Canard Community Centre 5,000           5,000           5,000               - 5,000           5,000 - 

Total Municipal Partnerships - Parks 20,000         20,000         20,000             15,000               20,000         22,500             2,500 

Materials and Supplies:
10-5-7017000-0322 General Supplies 120,079       98,255         103,500           77,717               103,500       103,500           - 

10-5-7017000-0402 Vehicle and Equip. Maint. 19,200         22,439         25,000             30,845               25,000         30,000             5,000 

10-5-7017000-0420 Parks Tools and Equip. 2,400           2,210           9,000               5,070 9,000           9,000 - 

10-5-7017000-0650 Reforestation 9,600           4,144           10,000             5,905 10,000         10,000             - 

Total Maintenance - Parks 151,279       127,048       147,500           119,537             147,500       152,500           5,000 

Total Expenses - Parks 818,269       737,500       826,640           614,416             829,377       1,160,433        333,793 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 70 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
Recreation Services
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-7010000-1306 Birthday Party (UCCU) (7,000)         (2,384)              (5,000)             (3,999)               (6,000)            (6,000)             1,000 

10-4-7017300-1415 Public Skating Program (6,000)         (4,455)              (6,000)             (3,824)               (6,000)            (6,000)             - 

10-4-7010160-1320 Lions' Pool Registration (8,000)         (5,554)              (6,000)             (6,595)               (6,600)            (6,000)             - 

10-4-7010160-1325 Lions' Pool Admittance Fee (4,800)         (2,607)              (5,000)             (4,752)               (5,000)            (5,000)             - 

10-4-7010000-1462 Preschool Programming (12,000)       (11,771)            (12,000)           (7,561)               (12,000)          (13,000)           1,000 

10-4-7010000-1463 Youth Programming (25,000)       (18,940)            (17,500)           (18,949)             (18,000)          (20,000)           2,500 

10-4-7010000-1464 Adult Programming (50,000)       (29,371)            (35,000)           (6,571)               (35,000)          (25,000)           (10,000) 

10-4-7010000-1449 Activity Guide Revenue (6,000)         (2,800)              (4,000)             0 (3,200)            (4,000)             - 

10-4-7010000-1465 Drop In Programming (4,513)              (8,207)               (9,000)            (12,000)           12,000 

10-4-7010000-1451 Day Camp (45,000)       (27,910)            (37,500)           (40,033)             (40,000)          (45,000)           7,500 

10-4-7010000-1307 Special Events (10,000)       (10,652)            (10,000)           (14,931)             (16,000)          (12,000)           2,000 

10-4-7017300-1430 Ancillary Complex Income (60,000)       (33,940)            (35,000)           (20,800)             (35,000)          (30,000)           (5,000) 

10-4-7017300-1405 Canteen Sales (Indoor) (155,000)     (148,908)          (155,000)         (88,351)             (165,000)        (160,000)         5,000 

10-4-7017300-1407 Vending Machine Sales (19,000)       (10,143)            (15,000)           (10,895)             (12,000)          (10,000)           (5,000) 

10-4-7017000-1075 Income from Memorials (Benches) (3,400)         (4,900)              (3,400)             (3,400)               (3,400)            (3,400)             - 

10-4-7010000-0626 Provincial Grants (14,742)             (14,742)          (6,318)             6,318 

Total Revenue - Recreation Services (411,200)     (318,848)        (346,400)       (253,611)         (386,942)      (363,718)         17,318

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-7010000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 85,527         84,421             83,913            63,396              83,913            144,182          60,269 

10-5-7010000-0102 Salaries - Overtime - - - - 

10-5-7010000-0107 Salaries - Contract Staff - - - - 

10-5-7010000-0109 Salaries - Students 51,199         35,419             36,749            30,760              28,000            36,749            - 

10-5-7010000-0112 Salaries - Part Time 107,622       61,626             159,305          56,089              159,305          159,305          - 

10-5-7010000-0122 Salaries - Food & Beverage Services 80,094         63,917             84,352            39,944              84,352            84,352            - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Recreation Services 324,442       245,383         364,319        190,190          355,570        424,588          60,269 

Benefits:
10-5-7010000-0201 Benefits - CPP 14,018         6,777               16,360            5,585 16,360            18,840            2,480 

10-5-7010000-0202 Benefits - EI 7,390           5,401               6,101              4,559 6,101              7,220              1,119 

10-5-7010000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 9,547           9,582               15,797            6,954 15,797            21,734            5,937 

10-5-7010000-0204 Benefits - EHT 6,147           4,839               7,104              3,752 7,104              8,279              1,175 

10-5-7010000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 6,000           8,965               6,169              4,677 6,169              7,023              854 

10-5-7010000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 4,549           3,682               4,632              2,947 4,632              9,316              4,684 

10-5-7010000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 9,070           7,118               10,492            5,516 10,492            15,029            4,537 

10-5-7010000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 994              994 975 731 975 975 - 

Total Benefits - Recreation Services 57,715         47,358           67,630          34,721            67,630           88,416            20,786 

General Expenses - Recreation Services:
10-5-7010000-0351 Training and Conferences 2,300           1,649               3,500              3,216 3,500              5,500              2,000 

10-5-7010000-0307 Advertising 12,000         13,592             17,500            10,201              18,500            17,500            - 

10-5-7010000-0352 Travel and Mileage 1,500           289 1,500              382 1,500              1,500              - 

10-5-7010000-0420 Recreation Equipment & Supplies 15,500         24,522             30,000            19,710              45,000            27,500            (2,500) 

10-5-7010000-0350 Memberships 1,650           1,492               1,650              1,584 1,584              2,500              850 

10-5-7017300-0384 Concession Product 63,000         89,272             73,000            65,044              78,000            76,000            3,000 

10-5-7010000-0349 Marketing 20,000         16,491             20,000            7,939 20,000            20,000            - 

10-5-7010000-0771 Special Events 11,798             8,000              7,917 8,000              8,000              - 

10-5-7010000-0252 Uniforms 988 1,500              2,694 2,500              1,500              - 

10-5-7010000-0301 Office Supplies 3,000              1,885 3,000              3,000              - 

10-5-7010000-0421 Concession Equipment 1,007               8,000              4,390 6,000              8,000              - 

10-5-7010000-0422 Concession Equipment Maintenance 5,000              46 5,000              5,000              - 

10-5-7010000-0740 Signage Maintenance 2,000           1,547               2,000              0 2,000              2,000              - 

Total General Expenses  - Recreation Services 117,950       162,647         174,650        125,008          194,584        178,000          3,350

Total Expenses - Recreation Services 500,107       455,388           606,599          349,919            617,784          691,004          84,405 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 71 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
TOURISM AND CULTURE DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-8020000-1840 Retail Sales - Tourism Info. Centre (10,000)        (1,454)          (5,000)              (1,269) (3,000)          (3,000)              (2,000) 

10-4-7037620-1430 Rent - Gordon House (5,500)          (5,770)          (3,000)              (4,217) (3,000)          (3,000)              - 

10-4-8020100-1306 Event Revenue (18,000)        (23,420)        (18,000)            (5,207) (6,000)          (6,000)              (12,000) 

10-4-8020000-0626 Provincial Grants and Donation (29,200)              (29,200)        (30,000)            30,000 

Total Revenue - Tourism and Culture (33,500)        (30,644)        (26,000)            (39,893)              (41,200)        (42,000)            16,000 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-8020000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 143,576       137,501       140,868           106,436             140,868       143,685           2,817 

10-5-8020000-0109 Salaries - Students 12,500         11,815         12,480             16,839               12,480         15,080             2,600 

10-5-8020000-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (11,750)        - - - 

Total Salaries and Wages - Tourism and Culture 156,076       137,566       153,348           123,275             153,348       158,765           5,417 

Benefits:
10-5-8020000-0201 Benefits - CPP 5,623           5,349           5,578               5,225 5,578           5,706 128 

10-5-8020000-0202 Benefits - EI 2,679           2,589           2,501               2,586 2,501           2,538 37 

10-5-8020000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 15,082         15,125         14,564             10,936               14,564         14,975             411 

10-5-8020000-0204 Benefits - EHT 3,104           2,763           2,990               2,405 2,990           3,096 106 

10-5-8020000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 12,000         12,093         12,338             9,354 12,338         11,421             (917) 

10-5-8020000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 7,604           6,171           6,369               5,201 6,369           8,433 2,064 

10-5-8020000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 4,472           4,418           4,416               3,568 4,416           4,561 145 

10-5-8020000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirment Benefit 994              994              975 731 975              975 - 

Total Benefits - Tourism and Culture 51,558         49,502         49,731             40,006               49,731         51,705             1,974 

General Expenses
10-5-8020000-0301 Office Supplies 1,000           841              1,000               216 1,000           1,000 - 

10-5-8020000-0307 Advertising 31,625         30,145         30,000             25,321               30,000         35,000             5,000 

10-5-8020000-0340 Community Events 53,000         46,108         50,000             48,602               65,000         65,000             15,000 

10-5-8020000-0350 Memberships 1,500           377              1,200               1,035 1,200           1,000 (200) 

10-5-8020000-0351 Training and Conferences 2,000           1,734           2,000               817 2,000           2,000 - 

10-5-8020000-0352 Travel and Mileage 1,000           955              1,000               239 1,000           1,200 200 

10-5-8020000-0355 Promotions 12,531         12,107         12,000             10,728               12,000         15,000             3,000 

10-5-8020100-0503 Bank Charges - Special Events 584              400 464 400              500 100 

Total General Expenses - Tourism and Culture 102,656       92,851         97,600             87,422               112,600       120,700           23,100 

Total Expenses - Tourism and Culture 310,290       279,919       300,679           250,703             315,679       331,170           30,491 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 72 of 105



The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 73 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-3010000-1018 Recovery From Waste Water (443,731)        (443,731)        (443,731)         (443,731)          (443,731)            (452,606)         8,875 

10-4-3010000-1019 Recovery From Water (52,530)          (52,530)          (52,530)          (52,530)            (52,530)              (53,581)          1,051 

10-4-3010000-1030 Reports (600) (825) (600) (900) (600) (1,000)            400 

10-4-3010000-1040 Service Charges (12,500)          (5,010)            (10,000)          (5,110)              (10,000)              (5,000)            (5,000) 

10-4-3010000-6500 Roads Receipts ( Sales of Equip.) (3,000)            (16,940)          (122) (122) - - 

10-4-3010000-6510 Sale of Materials - Concrete and Asphalt 2,416             - - - 

10-4-3010000-0626 Provincial Grants- Electric Vehicle Grant (65,592)            (65,592)              
Total Revenue - Public Works (512,361)        (516,620)        (506,861)         (567,985)          (572,575)            (512,186)         5,325 

EXPENSES:
Salaries and Wages:

10-5-3010000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 876,161         873,664         894,514          704,411           859,550             908,961          14,447 

10-5-3010000-0102 Salaries - Overtime 100,000         55,317           100,000          24,320             70,000 25,000            (75,000) 

10-5-3010000-0105 Salaries - STD/LTD Credit (28,000)          (34,726)          - (36,612)            (25,227)              - - 

10-5-3010000-0109 Salaries - Students 39,077           36,034           40,903            34,090             40,903 45,646            4,743 

Total Salaries and Wages - Public Works 987,238         930,289         1,035,417       726,209           945,226             979,607          (55,810) 

Benefits:
10-5-3010000-0201 Benefits - CPP 31,040           30,656           31,784            30,307             31,727 32,019            235 

10-5-3010000-0202 Benefits - EI 14,641           14,472           14,728            14,698             14,485 14,817            89 

10-5-3010000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 92,421           91,874           94,496            72,201             89,652 96,605            2,109 

10-5-3010000-0204 Benefits - EHT 19,797           18,705           20,191            14,415             19,509 19,102            (1,089) 

10-5-3010000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 68,400           75,016           80,001            60,347             80,001 72,776            (7,225) 

10-5-3010000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 43,841           33,838           39,472            29,241             37,933 53,375            13,903 

10-5-3010000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 26,523           26,158           27,754            22,345             26,747 26,382            (1,372) 

10-5-3010000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 6,029             6,374             5,980              4,877 5,980 5,980              - 

Total Benefits - Public Works 302,692         297,093         314,406          248,432           306,034             321,056          6,650 

Allocation of Salaries and Benefits to Capital (65,000)          (65,000)            (65,000)              (110,000)         (45,000) 

General Expenses:
10-5-3010000-0161 Clothing 7,500             8,412             7,500              6,009 7,500 7,500              - 

10-5-3010000-0351 Training and Conferences 7,000             7,176             7,000              10,721             7,000 10,000            3,000 

10-5-3010000-0250 Health and Safety 2,500             2,893             - 1,596 - - 

10-5-3010000-0350 Memberships 1,500             1,557             1,000              1,196 1,000 1,000              - 

10-5-3010000-0301 Office Supplies 7,000             4,884             5,000              3,702 5,000 5,000              - 

10-5-3010000-0381 Property Taxes 3,200             3,254             5,000              0 5,000 3,500              (1,500) 

10-5-3010000-0328 Professional and Engineering Fees 13,000           13,752           12,000            4,499 12,000 12,000            - 

10-5-3010000-0338 Roads Needs Study 20,940             - 

Nuisance Mosquito Program 55,000            55,000 

Total General Expenses 41,700           41,928           37,500            48,662             37,500               94,000            56,500 

Equipment and Vehicles:
10-5-3010000-0401 Gasoline 150,000         119,999         150,000          83,523             100,000             100,000          (50,000) 

10-5-3010000-0402 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 110,000         131,827         110,000          78,887             110,000             110,000          - 

10-5-3010000-0404 Radio Licenses 30,000           27,957           40,000            27,558             40,000 35,000            (5,000) 

10-5-3010000-0420 Small Equipment 10,000           12,066           15,000            12,319             15,000 15,000            - 

10-5-3010000-0425 Vehicle Licenses 11,000           10,217           12,000            206 12,000 15,000            3,000 

Electric Vehicle Charging Program 65,000 - - 

10-5-3010000-0480 Equipment Rentals 15,000           -  5,000              807 5,000 5,000              - 

10-5-3015010-0420 Mechanic's Equipment 2,500             1,744             1,500              501 1,500 1,500              - 

Total Equipment and Vehicles - Public Works 328,500         303,810         333,500          203,802           348,500             281,500          (52,000) 

Road Maintenance:
10-5-3010000-0650 Reforestation Expenses 25,000           22,265           25,000            13,977             25,000 50,000            25,000 

10-5-3010000-0735 Weedcutting and Spraying 35,000           33,879           35,000            40,878             35,000 35,000            - 

10-5-3010000-0736 West Nile Virus Prevention 12,000           2,950             9,000              2,440 9,000 4,000              (5,000) 

10-5-3010000-0765 Municipal Drain Expense 65,000           28,985           65,000            49,487             65,000 100,000          35,000 

10-5-3020000-0710 Dust Control (Summer Roads) 20,000           8,379             10,000            10,316             10,000 10,000            - 

10-5-3020000-0715 Stone (roads) 85,000           32,556           50,000            39,809             50,000 60,000            10,000 

10-5-3020000-0720 Railway Crossings 3,500             3,116             3,500              2,350 3,500 3,500              - 

10-5-3020000-0725 Street Repairs and Maintenance 40,000           54,860           50,000            38,343             50,000 50,000            - 

10-5-3020000-0726 Centre Line Painting 20,000           33,617           30,000            4,618 30,000 35,000            5,000 

10-5-3020000-0730 Culverts and Bridges 25,000           34,694           25,000            18,047             25,000 25,000            - 

10-5-3020000-0756 Cleaning and Grading of Ditches 10,000           6,067             10,000            9,530 10,000 10,000            - 

10-5-3020000-0757 Storm and Sewer Drains 25,000           51,145           30,000            55,701             30,000 35,000            5,000 

10-5-3030000-0710 Winter Control 162,000         154,346         165,000          102,695           165,000             165,000          - 

10-5-3060000-0331 Sidewalk Maintenance and Repairs 40,000           40,305           50,000            28,412             50,000 60,000            10,000 

Total Road Maintenance - Public Works 567,500         507,164         557,500          416,601           557,500             642,500          85,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 74 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

Traffic Signal Maintenance:
10-5-3010000-0740 Traffic Signal Maintenance 10,000           8,094             15,000            0 15,000 15,000            - 

10-5-3020000-0740 Traffic Signs and Devices 30,000           46,654           30,000            23,643             30,000 35,000            5,000 

10-5-3250000-0316 Utilities for Traffic Control 12,500           13,943           10,000            11,746             13,000 15,000            5,000 

Total Traffic Signal Maintenance - Public Works 52,500           68,691           55,000            35,390             58,000 65,000            10,000 

Traffic Street Light Maintenance:
10-5-3050000-0316 Utilities 165,000         231,477         190,000          209,419           240,000             190,000          - 

LED Replacement Program 50,000            50,000 

10-5-3050000-0331 General Maintenance 110,000         84,379           80,000            24,052             80,000 75,000            (5,000) 

10-5-3050000-0332 Intersection Illumination Program 12,000            455 12,000 12,000            - 

Total Street Light Maintenance - Public Works 275,000         315,856         282,000          233,926           332,000             327,000          45,000 

Total Expenses - Public Works Department 2,555,130       2,464,831       2,550,323       1,848,022        2,519,760          2,600,663       50,340 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 75 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION
2017 Budget

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

EXPENSES:
Garbage Disposal:

10-5-4057710-0602 Garbage Collection 402,348        389,005          412,000          298,913           412,000          420,000          8,000  

10-5-4057710-0603 White Goods (EWSWA) 5,000            3,813              4,000              2,032 3,500              4,000              - 

10-5-4067715-0307 Collection Calendar Expense 2,700            1,808              2,500              2,072 2,000              2,200              (300) 

10-5-4067715-0602 Refuse - Landfill Tipping Fees 615,000        609,878          655,000          437,914           655,000          667,920          12,920  

10-5-4067715-0603 Yard Waste - Hauling to Landfill 100,000        96,694            105,000          74,320             105,000          105,000          - 

10-5-4067715-0601 Yard Waste - Landfill Tipping Fees 51,000          43,992            44,000            20,138             44,000            44,000            - 

10-5-4067715-0607 PWD Yard Clean-up Expenses 10,000          1,717              5,000              747 3,500              4,000              (1,000) 
Total Garbage Disposal - Environmental Services 1,186,048     1,146,907       1,227,500       836,137           1,225,000       1,247,120       19,620 

Total Expenses - Environmental Services Division 1,186,048     1,146,907       1,227,500       836,137           1,225,000       1,247,120       19,620 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 76 of 105



The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 77 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
POLICE DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

Revenues
10-4-2020000-0630 CPP Grant (60,000)            (67,522)              (60,000)           (8,073)               (60,000)                   (60,000)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-0631 1000 Officer Program (35,000)            (35,238)              (35,000)           (11,375)             (35,000)                   (35,000)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-0750 POA Revenue (75,000)            (100,353)            (85,000)           (93,601)             (85,000)                   (96,000)                   11,000                                 

10-4-2020000-1022 Provincial Court Service Upload (35,797)            (42,960)              (35,797)           (51,910)             (35,797)                   (35,797)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-1023 Police - Guns and Gangs (108,000)          (98,398)              (20,360)             (50,000)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-1024 Paid Duty Recoverable (30,000)            (29,431)              (30,000)           (3,628)               (30,000)                   (30,000)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-1025 Police Reports (35,000)            (42,567)              (35,000)           (30,081)             (35,000)                   (40,000)                   5,000                                   

10-4-2020000-1026 Police Miscellaneous Receipts (7,500)              (9,855)                (7,500)             (6,837)               (7,500)                     (7,500)                     -                                       

10-4-2020000-1027 Ride Grant (13,500)            (13,555)              (13,500)           (21,450)             (13,500)                   (13,500)                   -                                       

10-4-2020000-1028 Other Grants (8,360)               -                                       

10-4-2020000-1029 Joint Court Services Return (40,000)            (15,324)              (40,000)           (22,106)             (40,000)                   (40,000)                   -                                       

10-4-2024010-0605 YIPI Provincial Grant (4,000)              (3,904)                (4,000)             (3,991)               (4,000)                     (4,000)                     -                                       

Total Revenues - Police (443,797)          (459,107)          (345,797)       (281,773)         (395,797)            (361,797)                16,000                           

Expenses
Salaries and Wages

10-5-2020000-0101 Salaries - Full Time 3,409,552        3,276,586          3,404,330       2,472,023         3,404,330               3,445,771               41,441                                 

10-5-2020000-0102 Salaries - Overtime 189,000           241,260             204,000          51,437              204,000                  222,000                  18,000                                 

10-5-2024010-0112 Salaries - Part Time 4,000               3,569                  4,000               3,807                4,000                      29,000                    25,000                                 

10-5-2020000-0104 Salaries - CR RE; WSIB (13,340)              (3,088)               (3,088)                     -                          -                                       

10-5-2020000-0105 Salaries - CR RE: STD (3,894)                (9,822)               (3,796)                     -                          -                                       

10-5-2020000-0108 Salaries - Shift Premium 38,000             40,662               38,000             5,462                38,000                    41,000                    3,000                                   

10-5-2020000-0110 Sick Bank Reduction 75,000             55,544              75,000                    75,000                    -                                       

Total Salaries and Wages - Police 3,640,552        3,544,843          3,725,330       2,575,364         3,718,446            3,812,771               87,441                             

Benefits
10-5-2020000-0201 Benefits - CPP 86,798             87,056               84,318             84,342              84,318                    81,838                    (2,480)                                  

10-5-2020000-0202 Benefits - EI 39,872             40,269               39,551             38,909              39,551                    38,387                    (1,164)                                  

10-5-2020000-0203 Benefits - OMERS 414,035           414,706             416,720          310,403            416,720                  427,691                  10,971                                 

10-5-2020000-0204 Benefits - EHT 66,486             68,744               72,566             50,579              72,566                    67,193                    (5,373)                                  

10-5-2020000-0205 Benefits - Greenshield 205,000           221,579             241,373          172,361            241,373                  223,147                  (18,226)                                

10-5-2020000-0207 Benefits - Life and Disability 179,096           141,463             152,695          121,079            152,695                  201,037                  48,342                                 

10-5-2020000-0208 Benefits - WSIB 107,400           71,271               87,063             76,667              87,063                    79,731                    (7,332)                                  

10-5-2020000-0209 Benefits - Post Retirement 6,100               6,651                  7,280               3,672                7,280                      7,280                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0212 Benefits - Gym Memberships 7,000               6,304                  7,000               350                    7,000                      7,000                       -                                       

10-5-2024010-0202 Benefits - EI - YIPI 100                    -                                       

10-5-2024010-0204 Benefits - EHT - YIPI 74                      -                                       

10-5-2024010-0208 Benefits - WSIB - YIPI 110                    -                                       

Total Benefits - Police 1,111,787        1,058,043          1,108,566       858,646            1,108,566            1,133,304               24,738                             

General Expenses
10-5-2020000-0252 Uniforms 36,000             37,833               36,000             30,038              36,000                 36,000                    -                                       

10-5-2020000-0253 Cleaning 250                  425                     250                  295                    250                      425                          175                                      

10-5-2020000-0254 Police Training 50,000             27,684               52,000             19,971              52,000                 50,000                    (2,000)                                  

10-5-2020000-0260 Board Expenses 2,500               3,022                  2,500               2,640                2,500                      3,000                       500                                      

10-5-2020000-0261 Board Seminars 2,500                               -  2,500               0 2,500                      2,000                       (500)                                     

10-5-2020000-0301 Office Supplies 7,000               7,721                  7,000               6,655                7,000                      7,000                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0304 Postage 1,000               607                     1,000               491                    1,000                      700                          (300)                                     

10-5-2020000-0306 Courier and Express 1,000               754                     1,000               379                    1,000                      850                          (150)                                     

10-5-2020000-0307 Advertising 500                  290                     500                  444                    500                         250                          (250)                                     

10-5-2020000-0308 Photocopier Supplies 2,000               1,156                  2,000               639                    2,000                      1,900                       (100)                                     

10-5-2020000-0309 Office Machine Maintenance 300                                  -  300                  0 300                         300                          -                                       

10-5-2020000-0310 Computer Maintenance 15,000             11,033               15,000             2,148                15,000                    13,000                    (2,000)                                  

10-5-2020000-0312 Equipment Leases 2,600               1,249                  2,600               892                    2,600                      2,600                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0313 Law Books 1,500               1,600                  1,500               1,777                1,500                      1,700                       200                                      

10-5-2020000-0320 Forensic Identification Expense 2,000               137                     2,000               275                    2,000                      2,000                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0329 Optic 33,500             37,347               33,500             33,580              39,000                    38,000                    4,500                                   

10-5-2020000-0332 Internet Access 3,000               2,469                  3,000               1,893                3,000                      3,000                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0350 Professional Memberships 3,300               904                     3,300               809                    3,300                      -                          (3,300)                                  

Total General Expenses - Police 163,950           134,231             165,950          102,927            171,450               162,725                  (3,225)                              

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 78 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
POLICE DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

Building
10-5-2020000-0314 General Insurance 17,230             17,462               17,230             11,737              17,230                    22,400                    5,170                                   

10-5-2020000-0315 Telephone 22,000             22,389               22,000             11,192              22,000                    23,000                    1,000                                   

10-5-2020000-0316 Utilities 22,000             25,874               22,000             19,595              24,000                    24,000                    2,000                                   

10-5-2020000-0317 Building Maintenance 20,000             25,863               20,000             4,699                20,000                    20,400                    400                                      

10-5-2020000-0318 Janitorial 25,000             25,530               25,000             18,918              25,000                    25,000                    -                                       

10-5-2020000-0360 Misc./ Receptions and Awards 4,500               3,535                  4,500               5,267                4,500                      4,500                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0370 Community Services 4,500               5,295                  4,500               2,543                4,500                      4,500                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0371 Prisoner Expenses 3,900               2,229                  3,900               1,746                3,900                      3,000                       (900)                                     

10-5-2020000-0506 Insurance Deductable 5,000               5,000               9,530                9,530                      5,000                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0322 General Supplies 250                  250                  112                    250                         250                          -                                       

Total Building - Police 124,380           128,177             124,380          85,340              130,910               132,050                  7,670                               

Professional and Consulting Fees
10-5-2020000-0323 Joint Court Costs 25,000             31,250               25,000             12,500              25,000                    25,000                    -                                       

10-5-2020000-0324 Dispatching 293,400           295,066             308,175          225,096            308,175                  323,584                  15,409                                 

10-5-2020000-0325 Legal Fees 50,000             83,095               50,000             23,429              60,000                    50,000                    -                                       

10-5-2020000-0327 Professional Fees 29,000             11,315               29,000             4,843                29,000                    25,000                    (4,000)                                  

10-5-2020000-0334 Investigation Expense 2,000               249                     2,000               0 2,000                      2,000                       -                                       

Total Professional and Consulting Fees - Police 399,400           420,975             414,175          265,868            424,175               425,584                  11,409                             

Equipment and Vehicle
10-5-2020000-0319 Radio Maintenance 32,000             21,600               32,000             23,745              42,000                    35,000                    3,000                                   

10-5-2020000-0401 Gasoline 71,000             56,187               71,000             51,176              71,000                    65,000                    (6,000)                                  

10-5-2020000-0402 Vehicle and Equipment MTCE 21,000             28,520               21,000             14,054              21,000                    24,000                    3,000                                   

10-5-2020000-0404 Vehicle and Radio Licences 2,500                               -  2,500               2,176                2,500                      2,500                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0405 Vehicle MTCE - Tires 8,000               4,240                  8,000               4,048                8,000                      8,000                       -                                       

10-5-2020000-0406 GPS Communications 5,500               2,689                  5,500               2,518                5,500                      3,200                       (2,300)                                  

Total Equipment and Vehicle - Police 140,000           113,236             140,000          97,717              150,000               137,700                  (2,300)                              

Reserve Transfers
10-5-2020000-2001 Transfer to Reserve - Capital 25,000             25,000               25,000             25,000              25,000                    25,000                    -                                       

10-5-2020000-2002 Transfer to Reserve - Vehicle and Equip. 109,330           109,330             109,330          105,992            109,330                  109,330                  -                                       

10-5-2020000-2003 Transfer to Reserve - Computer 15,300             15,300               15,300             15,300              15,300                    15,300                    -                                       

Total Reserve Transfers - Police 149,630           149,630             149,630          146,292            149,630               149,630                  -                                   

Total Expenses - Police Department 5,729,699        5,549,135        5,828,031     4,132,154       5,853,177           5,953,764              125,733                         

Police Services - Board Committee
10-5-1001010-0145 Police Services Board Hon. 6,000               6,000                  6,000               0 6,000                      6,000                       -                                       

10-5-1001010-0146 Police Services Board Per Diems 3,000               500                     3,000               0 3,000                      3,000                       -                                       

Total Police Services Board Committee 9,000               6,500                9,000             -                  9,000                  9,000                      -                                 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 79 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
GLOBAL EXPENSES DEPARTMENT
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016  Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

REVENUE:
10-4-1001020-1016 Administrative Charges - Water (510,788)         (510,788)            (510,788)         (510,788)          (510,788)         (521,004)         10,216 
10-4-1001020-1017 Administrative Charges - Waste Water (192,735)         (192,735)            (192,735)         (192,735)          (192,735)         (196,590)         3,855 

Total Revenue-Global Expense Department (703,523)         (703,523)            (703,523)         (703,523)          (703,523)         (717,593)         14,070 

EXPENSES:
General Expenses:

10-5-1001020-0301 Office Supplies 25,000            22,093 25,000            12,564             25,000            25,000            - 
10-5-1001020-0304 Postage 32,000            44,883 35,000            16,366             35,000            30,000            (5,000) 
10-5-1001020-0307 Advertising 25,000            22,395 25,000            22,295             25,000            35,000            10,000 
10-5-1001020-0314 General Insurance 482,842          554,550              627,695          430,669           627,695          635,000          7,305 
10-5-1001020-0325 Legal Fees 160,000          117,935              120,000          58,806             90,000            105,000          (15,000) 
10-5-1001020-0337 911 Service 12,500            12,081 12,500            6,049 12,500            12,500            - 
10-5-1001020-0348 Donations 3,000 3,000              - 
10-5-1001020-0361 Contingency Allowance 40,000            40,000            0 40,000            46,500            6,500 
10-5-1001020-0500 Cash Short/ Over (1,232)              
10-5-1001020-0501 Municipal Tax Write Offs 150,000          211,240              170,000          103,258           250,000          200,000          30,000 
10-5-1001020-0502 Interest Expense 130,640          47,788 80,000            27,613             60,000            48,000            (32,000) 
10-5-1001020-0506 Insurance Deductible 75,000            40,308 75,000            66,917             75,000            75,000            - 
10-5-1001020-0507 Claims Cost 2,322 
10-5-1001020-0550 Conservation Authority Levy 106,027          105,979              108,148          83,330             108,148          110,310          2,163 
10-5-8020600-0353 Grants to Organizations 27,500            27,250 31,500            31,500             31,500            32,500            1,000 
10-5-1001020-0580 Salary Continuances 170,850          157,859           170,850          61,315            (109,535) 

Total General Expenses - Global 1,266,509       1,206,502           1,520,692       1,021,316        1,553,693       1,416,125       (104,567) 

Reserve Transfers:
10-5-1001020-2011 Allocation to Ranta Stranded Deficit 54,800            54,800 54,800            54,800             54,800            54,800            - 
10-5-1001020-2016 Insurance Reserve 25,000            16,143 50,000            50,000             50,000            50,000            - 

Risk Management Reserve 25,000            25,000 
AODA Compliance 50,000            50,000 
Litigation Reserve 25,000            25,000 

10-5-1001020-2002 Fleet Reserve 50,000            50,000             50,000            75,000            25,000 
Capital Expenditures 28,621 - 0 - 

Total Reserve Transfers - Global 79,800            99,564 154,800          154,800           154,800          279,800          125,000 

Total Expenses - Global Expenses Department 1,346,309       1,306,066           1,675,492       1,176,116        1,708,493       1,695,925       20,433 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 80 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
RETIREE BENEFITS
2017 Budget

2015 Budget
 2015 

Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, as 
at Sept 30, 2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget Increase/(Decrease) 
2016 to 2017

EXPENSES:

10-5-1001020-0206 Benefits - Administrative Retirees 53,399          60,883          66,947             59,032 76,790          73,171             6,225 
10-5-2010000-0206 Benefits - Fire Retiree Benefits 8,868            22,583          26,163             22,496 26,538          24,967             (1,195) 
10-5-2020000-0206 Benefits - Police Retiree Benefits 111,289        114,218        130,996           105,682             126,728        130,089           (907) 
10-5-8010000-0206 Benefits - Development Services Retirees 13,160          14,362          14,785             11,364 13,621          13,967             (818) 
10-5-3010000-0206 Benefits - Public Works Retirees 120,537        127,198        130,950           97,757 117,042        119,212           (11,738) 
10-5-7017300-0206 Benefits - Arena Retirees 15,837          14,362          14,785             18,473 21,293          21,321             6,536 

Total Expenses - Retiree Benefits 323,090        353,606        384,626           314,806             382,012        382,727           (1,898) 

Total without Police 211,801        239,388        253,630           209,124             255,284        252,638           (992) 
Police 111,289        114,218        130,996           105,682             126,728        130,089           (907) 
Total All 323,090       353,606       384,626           314,806 382,012       382,727           (1,898) 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 81 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG
LONG TERM DEBT PAYMENTS
2017 Budget

2015 Budget  2015 Actuals 2016 Budget

2016 Year to 
Date Actuals, 
as at Sept 30, 

2016 Forecast 2017 Budget

Budget 
Increase/(Decrease) 2016 

to 2017

DEBT PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS

10-5-1001020-2005 IT DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 9,701             9,701              9,903 7,427 9,903              10,109           206  
10-5-2010000-2005 FIRE DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 3,039             3,039              3,168 2,376 3,168              3,301             133  
10-5-2020000-2005 POLICE DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 8,590             8,589              8,839 6,629 8,839              9,095             256  
10-5-3020000-2005 P.W. DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 985,028         985,028          989,903           742,471           989,903          592,859         (397,044) 
10-5-7017190-2005 PARKS DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 102,628         102,627          106,915           80,186             106,915          111,386         4,471  
10-5-7017300-2005 ARENA DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 129,568         129,568          135,330           101,498           135,330          141,350         6,020  
10-5-8020000-2005 TOURISM DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 40,492           40,492            42,235             31,676             42,235            44,053           1,818  
10-5-8048040-2005 DRAINS DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 6,527             6,527              6,698 5,023 6,698              6,873             175  
10-5-8058010-2005 TILE DRAIN DEBT CHARGES - PRINCIPAL 15,635           15,635            10,554             7,916 10,554            11,187           633  

NEW DEBT - PRINCIPAL 2017 - 
GENERAL TAX DEBT PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 1,301,208      1,301,206       1,313,545        985,202           1,313,545       930,213         (383,332) 

DEBT INTEREST PAYMENTS

10-5-1001020-2006 IT DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 997 913 795 596 795 589 (206) 
10-5-2010000-2006 FIRE DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 660 596 531 399 531 398 (133) 
10-5-2020000-2006 POLICE DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 2,762             2,658              2,512 1,884 2,512              2,256             (256) 
10-5-3020000-2006 P.W. DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 246,838         238,730          202,807           152,105           202,807          169,133         (33,674) 
10-5-7017190-2006 PARKS DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 18,460           17,275            14,173             10,630             14,173            9,702             (4,471) 
10-5-7017300-2006 ARENA DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 265,457         263,087          259,695           194,771           259,695          253,675         (6,020) 
10-5-8020000-2006 TOURISM DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 7,046             6,843              5,304 3,978 5,304              3,486             (1,818) 
10-5-8048040-2006 DRAINS DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 985 932 815 611 815 639 (176) 
10-5-8058010-2006 TILE DRAIN DEBT CHARGES - INTEREST 4,215             3,795              3,277 2,458 3,277              2,644             (633) 

New Debt - Interest 2017 - 
GENERAL TAX DEBT INTEREST PAYMENTS 547,420         534,829          489,909           367,431           489,909          442,523         (47,386) 

TOTAL GENERAL TAX DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST PAYMENTS 1,848,628      1,836,035       1,803,454        1,352,633        1,803,454       1,372,735       (430,719) 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 82 of 105



 

TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG 
 

 
 

2017 CAPITAL BUDGET 
 

 

 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 83 of 105



2017 CAPITAL BUDGET INTRODUCTION 

The recommended 2017 Capital Budget for the Town of Amherstburg provides 
significant capital investment in municipal infrastructure totaling $8,248,581.  

This investment was achieved by augmenting the contribution of operation funds to 
capital revenue. This is a continued step forward in realizing “the pay as you go“ 
philosophy and self-funding the Town’s capital program. In the past, the Town relied on 
grant and debt funding to complete capital projects. This practice led to unacceptable  
amounts of long term debt for the Town and a reduced level of resident confidence in 
the Town’s financial outlook. Council and Administration have made tremendous strides 
to address these issues going forward.   

In 2016, Council pre-committed the following funding sources for use on ongoing 
projects: 

 2017 contribution to capital fund for underground gas tank removal– $480,000 
 2017 contribution to capital fund for CWATS (County Rd 5) -$186,031 
 2017 Gas Tax, OCIF Grant, County of Essex, long term loans for Meloche Road 

Reconstruction-$4,250,000 

$3,332,550 remains to be allocated as a result of the pre-commitments made to the  
2017 capital budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 84 of 105



2017 CAPITAL BUDGET IMPORTANT FACTORS 

Based on audited 2015 Financial Statements of neighboring municipalities, the Town of 
Amherstburg has the highest per resident investment in infrastructure, as illustrated by 
the following table: 

Assets Per 
Capita 
(December 31, 
2015) 

TCA(COST) TCA(NBV) Population 
(Stats Can 
2011) 

Assets Per 
Capita 
(COST) 

Assets Per 
Capita 
(NBV) 

Town of 
Amherstburg 

$408,817,612 $248,677,411 21,556 $18,965 $11,536

Town of 
Tecumseh 

$339,031,907 $224,696,121 23,610 $14,359 $9,517

Town of 
Essex(2014) 

$257,498,355 $182,285,630 19,600 $13,137 $9,300

Municipality of 
Lakeshore 

$443,681,404 $320,856,062 34,546 $12,843 $9,287

Municipality of 
Leamington 

$376,283,120 $247,528,313 28,408 $13,248 $8,714

Town of LaSalle $341,653,437 $237,524,933 28,648 $11,925 $8,291

Town of Kingsville $252,485,423 $130,482,577 21,362 $11,819 $6,108

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 85 of 105



The follo
region: 

 

The follo
the high
future, th
Town’s a
more tha
than our

The diffe
municipa
municipa
significa
program

The Tow
fact that
significa
infrastru

 $50,

 $100,

 $150,

 $200,0

 $250,0

 $300,0

 $350,0

 $400,0

 $450,0

wing graph 

owing is bo
est amount
he Town ha
assets have
an the next
r peers. Thi

erence betw
ality can aff
ality to gua

ant amounts
m.  

wn of Amhe
t project cos
ant reserve 
ucture fundi

 $‐

,000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

000,000

illustrates th

th good and
t of infrastru
as the highe
e the highe
t closest) w
is is not the

ween the ca
ford, is calle
rd itself aga
s of reserve

erstburg suf
sts and nee
funds, as m
ng gap with

he total asse

d bad news
ucture for c
est amount

est amount 
hich means

e case due 

apital needs
ed the infra
ainst the gr
es, as well a

ffers from a
eds surpass
mentioned a
hout increas

ts cost, amo

s for our Mu
citizens to e
t of infrastru
of amortiza
s our replac
to our limite

s of a muni
astructure fu
rowing infra
as a signific

annual infra
s the amou
above, it is 
sed capital 

ortization and

unicipality.
enjoy, howe
ucture to re
ation in the 
cement sho
ed funding.

icipality and
unding gap

astructure g
cant self-fu

structure fu
nt of projec
hard for the
borrowing.

d netbook va

It means th
ever it also 
eplace. Curr

region, ($3
ould be taki
 

d that which
p. The best 
gap is by pla
nding infras

unding gaps
ct funds ava
e Town to m
. 

TCA

Am

TCA

alue in the 

he Town ha
means in th
rently, the 

31,000,000 
ng place fa

h the 
way for a 
anning to h
structure 

s, due to th
ailable. Wit
manage its 

A(Cost)

ortization

A (NBV)

as 
he 

aster 

ave 

he 
hout 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 86 of 105



As you w
projecte
into the 
infrastru

 

In 2016,
Million. H
Ontario 
That bei
mitigatin

The app
manage
the limits
projects
come up

 $

 

 

 

 

 $

 $1

 $1

 $1

D
o
lla
rs

Capit

Capit

Infast

Cumu

will see in th
d infrastruc
now catego

ucture gap i

 the five ye
However, s
and capital
ing said, it i
ng this gap.

proved levy’
e the emerg
s and well b
, as well as
p.  

$(2,000,000)

 $‐

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

tal Request

tal Funds Availa

tructure Gap

ulative Gap

he following
cture gap ov
ory and the
s expected

ear projecte
successful g
l programs 
is importan
  

’s will not d
gency items
beyond tha
s projects th

2017

201

$15,337

able $4,423

$10,913

$10,913

INFRAS

g chart, and
ver the nex

e constructio
 to be $13.

ed cumulativ
grant applic
the Town h
t to continu

eal with the
s. The Town
at of its usef
hat provide

2018

7 20

7,232 $5,45

,781 $4,40

3,451 $1,05

3,451 $11,9

STRUCTU

d upcoming
xt 5 years is
on costs co
7 Million by

ve infrastru
cations incre
has comple
ue the levy’s

e issue enti
n will have t
ful life, and 
operationa

20

018

56,300 $5

00,000 $4

56,300 $1

969,751 $13

URE FUN

g complete 
s still signifi
ontinue to ri
y 2021.

ucture fundi
eased fund

eted are hel
s approved

irely, but ar
to stretch it
deal with p

al efficiencie

19

2019

5,506,000

4,400,000

1,106,000

3,075,751 $

NDING G

capital listi
cant, as mo
ise. The pro

ng gap exc
ding from th
lping to red

d by Counci

re much ne
ts current in
priority and 
es and savi

2020

2020

$5,461,000

$4,400,000

$1,061,000

$14,136,751

GAP

ng, the Tow
ore projects
ojected 

ceeded $19
he province 
uce the ga
l to assist i

eded to he
nfrastructur
emergency

ings, as the

2021

2021

$4,034,000

$4,400,000

$(366,000)

$13,770,751

wn’s  
s fall 

 

9 
 of 
p. 
n 

lp 
re to 
y 
ey 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 87 of 105



A complete budget that deals with every fiscal issue a municipality would face is 
illustrated below: 

 

The Town of Amherstburg, much like other municipalities, cannot afford to budget for all 
of the above as it would be too costly to our residents. The red line indicates the level of 
items the Town is budgeting for as a municipality, this is an important concept to note as 
a community. The 2015 Audited Financial Statements of the Town showed amortization 
of general tax rate capital assets of $7,042,976. This means the Town’s asset value is 
dropping by that amount each year due to deterioration. In 2017, we have funds of 
$4,423,781, this leaves the Town well short of having a full comprehensive plan for 
dealing with this matter.  

This is the reason Administration strongly supports the Continuation 
of the Levy’s to help provide this community a more comprehensive 

plan on dealing with the Capital of the Town. 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 88 of 105



CAPITA

The 201
Town of
on heav
investme
investme

The only
Project, 

The follo
Town up

**This a
presente
Council 
determin

The only
project h
reconcile
debt will
Council 

 

 $2,0

 $4,0

 $6,0

 $8,0

 $10,0

 $12,0

 $14,0

AL BUDGET 

5 & 2016 c
f Amherstbu
vy debt finan
ent. In 2017
ent with the

y proposed 
which is sc

owing illustr
pon project 

mount is ca
ed to Counc
may fund t
ned at the t

y additional
has been co
ed and sen
l be needed
approved $

 $‐

00,000

00,000

00,000

00,000

00,000

00,000

00,000
$

T HIGHLIGHT

capital budg
urg. It  was 
ncing, and 
7, the Town
e only proje

general tax
cheduled to

rates the pr
completion

alculated ba
cil. Actual p
he project w
time of proje

l debt that m
ompleted u

nt to the pro
d for Texas 
$1,189,677

2014

13,557,246 

$

TS 

get took pro
the Town’s
more towar
n continues
ected debt t

x rate debt
o finish in la

rojected de
n of the cap

ased on the
project final
with reserve
ect comple

may occur i
nder budge

ovince at thi
Road. If ad

.  

2015

$12,256,037 

Debt 

ogressive st
s first steps
rds  a pay a
s down that 
o be $1,624

in the year
ate 2017. 

bt levels fro
pital works i

e funding m
 cost may d
es at the en
tion. 

is for the Te
et and final 
is time. Adm
dditional de

2016

$10,942,493 

Levels

teps in the 
s towards m
as you go m
path, fund

4,800 for th

r, is a result

om the gen
in 2017: 

model in the
differ and d
nd of the pr

exas Road 
grant subm

ministration
ebt is neede

2017

$10,012,222

right direct
moving away
model of ca
ing $8,248,
he Meloche

t of Meloch

neral operat

e estimates 
debt levels m
roject as we

Project how
missions are
n is hopeful 
ed it will be 

2017 With
Meloche
Road

2 

$11,637,02

tion for the
y from relia

apital 
,581 of cap

e Road Proj

e Road 

tions of the 

 

 report 
may chang
ell, this will 

wever this 
e being 
that no new
less than t

2 

ance 

pital 
ject.  

e. 
be 

w 
the 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 89 of 105



TOTAL P

The 201
the brea

 

All proje
Meloche

It is very
Provinci
funding 
governm

This is a
funding 
manage

In 2017,
improve
2014, th
prior to 2

$5,212,5

 PROJECT B

7 Budget is
akdown of in

ects will be f
e Road Rec

y important 
al and Fed
and other g

ment face th

all the more
its own cap

e its capital,

 the Town 
ment from 

here was no
2015 capita

00 

$66,749 

$625,

BREAKDOW

s proposing
nfrastructur

funded with
construction

to note tha
eral Govern
grants. The
heir own fis

e reason for
pital progra
 and less o

is now fund
years prev

o amount of
al projects u

,671 

$125,000 
$5

Capital 

WN: 

g to underta
re investme

h 2017 avai
n.  

at the major
nment prog

ese items ca
cal pressur

r the Town 
m. The Tow

on Provincia

ding $2,617
ious to 201
f self-fundin
undertaken

50,000 

$286,03

Spendin

Capital Spe

ake capital 
ent is as fol

ilable cash 

rity of the To
grams such
an be reduc
res. 

to shift from
wn must rel
al and Fede

7,576 of its 
5. It is impo

ng. More im
 by the Tow

31 

$200,000 
$630,

ng Recom

nding Recomm

works in th
lows:  

funding, w

own’s capit
 as Gas Ta
ced over tim

m past prac
ly on the co
eral grants a

own capita
ortant for C

mportantly it
wn that wer

,000 
$420,000 

$1

mmenda

mendation

he amount o

ith the exce

tal projects 
ax, OCIF fo
me as highe

ctices, to a m
ommunity a
and debt.  

al. This is a 
Council to no
t should be 
re not funde

150,000 
$160,0

ation

of $8,248,5

eption of 

are funded
rmula base
er levels of 

model of se
as a whole t

significant
ote that in 
noted that

ed by senio

00 

$149,630 

$173

81 

 

d by 
ed 

elf-
to 

 
or 

,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 90 of 105



levels of
financing

Total To

2017 CA

The 201
and “pay
municipa
long term
as the M
use long

f governme
g. 

own of Amh

APITAL BUD

7 capital bu
y as you go
ality is not i
m debt stra

Meloche Ro
g term debt

$2,200,000 , 

$1,700,00

ent (grants)s

herstburg ca

UDGET CONC

udget conti
o”. However
in a position
tegically. T
ad Recons
.   

$

$469

$123,000

27%

00 , 21%

$149,630 ,

s were und

apital fundin

CLUSION: 

nues to mo
r it is impor
n to fully se

The 2017 ca
struction pro

$1,000,000 
, 12%

$1,62

$50,000
0%,946 , 6%

0 , 1%

 2%

Fundi

ertaken wit

ng sources 

ove forward
rtant to note
elf-fund cap
apital budge
oject is the 

$80
1

24,800 , 20%

$75,000 , 1

$50,000 , 0%

0 , 

ng Sour

th the issua

for 2017 is

d with an ide
e that at the
pital works a
et presente
only projec

6,205 , 
10%

$‐ , 0%

1%

rces

Gas

OC

Dev

Pro

Fle

AO

LED

WC

Op
Bud

Gra

Op

Op
Pol

ance of mun

s as follows

eology of d
e present tim
and therefo

ed reflects th
ct recomme

s Tax

IF Formula Bas

velopment Cha

oposed Long Te

et Reserve

DA Reserve

D Replacment P

C Reserve

erating Capita
dget

ant and County

erating Capita

erating Capita
ice Budget

nicipal debt

s:  

ebt reductio
me the 

ore must us
his philosop

ended with t

sed

arges

erm Debt

Program

l Self Funded B

y of Essex

l Contribution

l Self Funded B

t 

 

on 

e 
phy 
the 

By IT

By

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 91 of 105



THE CAPITAL BUDGET FULL SCOPE OF WORK 

The following 10 pages outline the infrastructure projects that the Town of Amherstburg 
is contemplating over  the next five to ten years. The total scope of work is over $48 
Million from just the operating stream of the town’s operations. These 10 pages are a 
project by project detail of the  capital requests Council will consider.  For illustrative 
purposes those projects highlighted in purple are the capital works  administration 
recommends for 2017 based on engineering assessments, as well as priorities outlined  
brought forward by other Town departments. The report  also illustrates the 
infrastructure gap the Town will need to manage. 

It is very important for Council to consider that the infrastructure requests will continue 
to increase over time while the funding envelope for capital works will be limited. 
Therefore Council will need to manage capital works decisions in a manner the will 
maximize community benefit and extend the useful life of municipal assets.  Approving 
projects that will extend the useful life of municipal assets should be considered 
paramount for Council going forward which strategically will reduce the number of 
unexpected expenditures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 92 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Roads ‐ Information based on 2016 Road Needs Study

Engineering 

Meloche Road Reconstruction from Alma Street to Lowes 

Sideroad. Reconstruction of asphalt roadway including new 

base, drainage, installation of bike lanes and multi use trail. 

Geotechnical investigation will determine final scope of work

 $                4,324,000   $ 2,200,000   $ 2,124,000              2,124,000 

Engineering 

Pickering Drive Resurfacing. Dalhousie to King Street  Including 

milling of existing all asphalt and placement of a minimum of 

90mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 570metres.  Width = 10.2 

and 8.2 metres. 

 $ 200,000   $ 200,000                 200,000 

Engineering Pre‐Engineering for 2018 projects  $ 50,000  $ 50,000                  50,000 

Roads

Sandwich / Pickering Traffic Signal Control Cabinet 

Replacement and intersection improvements.  Upgrading 

existing controller cabinet, providing uninterrupted power 

supply module, replace poles, signals and wiring where 

required. Intersection improvements, including curbs, 

sidewalks and other amenities are also required to met AODA 

requirements

 $ 750,000   $ 750,000                 337,700               412,300 

Engineering 

5th Concession North rehabilitation from Alma to Texas.  

Pulverization, additional granular placement and installation of 

90mm of asphalt.  1850 metres in length. (alternate option 

may be CIP recycled asphalt. This would be determined with 

borehole investigation)  

 $ 575,000   $ 575,000                 575,000 

Engineering 

McLeod Avenue Rehabilitation from 3rd Concession South to 

Lakewood Drive.  Pulverization, additional granular placement 

and installation of 90mm of asphalt.  1200 metres in length.     
 $ 400,000   $ 400,000                 400,000 

Engineering

5th Concession North rehabilitation between North Sideroad 

and County Road 8.   Cold in Place asphalt recycling with 

expanded asphalt and installation of 50mm surface asphalt.  

Length = 2400 meters.  Width = 7.0 meters 

 $ 750,000   $ 750,000                 750,000 

Engineering

4th Concession North  rehabilitation between North Sideroad 

and County Road 8.   Cold in Place asphalt recycling with 

expanded asphalt and installation of 50mm surface asphalt.  

Length = 2450 meters.  Width = 7.2 meters. 

 $ 775,000   $ 775,000                 775,000 

Engineering

2nd Concession North rehabilitation from County Road 10 to 

South Riverview.  Cold in Place asphalt recycling with 

expanded asphalt and installation of 50mm surface asphalt.  

4000 meters in length.  

 $                1,150,000   $ 1,150,000              1,150,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 93 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Roads
2015 Road Repairs Program ‐ Cost to complete small repairs to 

miscellaneous rural and urban roads.
 $ 750,000   $ 750,000                 150,000               150,000               150,000                150,000           150,000 

Roads
2015 Tar & Chip Program ‐ Cost to apply tar & chip surface to 

miscellaneous rural roads.
 $                1,000,000   $ 1,000,000                 200,000               200,000               200,000                200,000           200,000 

Engineering

South Riverview Rehabilitation from Beneteau to the 2nd 

Concession.  Pulverization, additional granular placement and 

installation of 90mm of asphalt.  850 meters in length.
 $ 300,000   $ 300,000                 300,000 

Engineering

St. Therese Subdivision Resurfacing.  Resurfacing of St. 

Therese, Woodside Avenue and Durango Avenue including 

milling of existing asphalt and placement of a minimum of 

90mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 360 meters.  Width = 7.2 

meters. 

 $ 150,000   $ 150,000                 150,000 

Engineering

Point West Drive (west portion) & Wyndotte Pavement 

Replacement.    Including milling of existing asphalt and 

placement of a minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length 

= 600 meters.  Width = 8.2 meters. 

 $ 250,000   $ 250,000                 250,000 

Engineering

McLeod Avenue Resurfacing from Erie Avenue to Gravel 

transition.  Placement and installation of 50mm of asphalt.  

300metres in length.  
 $ 65,000   $ 65,000  65,000 

Engineering

Boardwalk Resurfacing.   Including milling of existing asphalt 

and placement of a minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  

Length = 475 meters.  Width = 8.2 meters. 
 $ 125,000   $ 125,000                 125,000 

Engineering

Goodview, Cooper, Lakebeach, Woodbridge, Scott, Mickle, 

McDonald Resurfacing.   Including placement of a minimum of 

50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 1580 meters total Width = 

Variable

 $ 290,000   $ 290,000                 290,000 

Engineering

Sari Lane Resurfacing.   Including placement of a minimum of 

50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 400 meters total Width = 

5m
 $ 75,000   $ 75,000  75,000 

Engineering
4th Concession South Resurfacing from South Sideroad to 

County Rd 20.  Place 50mm of asphalt.  1850 meters in length.  
 $ 375,000   $ 375,000                 375,000 

Engineering

St. James Court Resurfacing.   Including milling of existing 

asphalt and placement of a minimum of 50mm of asphalt 

overlay.  Length = 350metres.  Width = 7.6 meters. (plus 2 

bulbs) 

 $ 150,000   $ 150,000                 150,000 

Engineering / 

Development

Boblo Island placement of asphalt.  Complete removal of 

existing asphalt and place 90mm of asphalt on all residential 

roads on the island.
 $ 750,000   $ 375,000   $ 375,000                 375,000 

Roads

Tree Inventory ‐ 2015 Update.  Cost for a consultant to update 

the Town tree inventory as part of the Town's Asset 

Management Plan.  This would include road right‐of‐ways 

including trees outside of the urban area.  Last report issued in 

2004. 

 $ 30,000   $ 30,000  30,000 

TOTALS  $              13,284,000   $ 2,575,000   $ 10,709,000              8,896,700               762,300               350,000                350,000           350,000  ‐ 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 94 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Roads ‐ Due in 2018 ‐ 2021 based on 2016 Road Needs Study

Engineering 

Pickering Drive Resurfacing. Fryer to King Street  Including 

milling of existing all asphalt and placement of a minimum of 

90mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 590metres.  Width = 8.2 

meters. 

 $ 200,000   $ 200,000               200,000 

Roads

Kentucky Avenue Resurfacing from Alma to Richmond.  

Includes milling of existing asphalt and placement of a 

minimum of 90mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 405 meters.  

Width = 7.9 meters. 

 $ 165,000   $ 165,000               165,000 

Engineering 

Eggleton Court & Jones Court   Including milling of existing 

asphalt and placement of a minimum of 50mm of asphalt 

overlay.  Length = 140 meters. ( w/ bulbs) Width = 8.2 meters.  
 $ 50,000   $ 50,000                 50,000 

Engineering 

Bertrand Street between Alma Street and St. Arnaud Street.   

Including milling of existing asphalt and placement of a 

minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 215 meters.  

Width = 8.2 meters.  

 $ 60,000   $ 60,000                 60,000 

Engineering 

Murray Street between Sandwich and Brock.   Including milling 

of existing asphalt and placement of a minimum of 50mm of 

asphalt overlay.  Length = 400 meters.  Width = 8.2 meters.  
 $ 140,000   $ 140,000               140,000 

Engineering 

Brush Crescent between Illinois Street and Richmond Street.  

Including milling of existing asphalt and placement of a 

minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 520 meters 

(w/ bulbs)  Width = 8.2 meters. 

 $ 170,000   $ 170,000               170,000 

Engineering 

Gore Street between Sandwich Street and Brock.  Including 

milling of existing asphalt and placement of a minimum of 

50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 400 meters.  Width = 8.2 

meters.  

 $ 140,000   $ 140,000                140,000 

Engineering 

Victoria Street South between Hamilton and Alma Street.  

Including milling of existing asphalt and placement of a 

minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 375 meters.  

Width = 8.2 meters.  

 $ 125,000   $ 125,000                125,000 

Engineering 

Tennessee Crescent.  Including milling of existing asphalt and 

placement of a minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length 

= 380 meters (w/ bulbs)  Width = 8.2 meters.  
 $ 125,000   $ 125,000                125,000 

Engineering 

Seymour Street between Simcoe Street and Richmond Street.  

Full reconstruction including replacement of all curbs, 

sidewalks etc.  378 meters in length.
 $ 800,000   $ 800,000                800,000 

Engineering 

Gore Street between Dalhousie Street and Sandwich Street.   

Full reconstruction including replacement of all curbs, 

sidewalks etc. 285 meters in length.
 $                1,100,000   $ 1,100,000            1,100,000 

Engineering 

Marvin Gardens, Holiday Crt and Spring Court  Including milling 

of existing asphalt and placement of a minimum of 50mm of 

asphalt overlay.  Length = 380 meters (w/ bulbs).  Width = 8.2 

meters.  

 $ 140,000   $ 140,000                140,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 95 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Engineering 

Seymour Street between Park Street and Simcoe Street.  Full 

reconstruction including replacement of all curbs, sidewalks 

etc. 107 meters in length.
 $ 175,000   $ 175,000                175,000 

Engineering 

Fort Malden Drive Reconstruction from Dalhousie to Laird.  

Full reconstruction including replacement of all curbs, 

sidewalks etc. 150m in length
 $ 475,000   $ 475,000                475,000 

Engineering  Hunter Avenue.  272 meters in length. 50mm overlay  $ 60,000  $ 60,000                  60,000 

Engineering 

States Avenue between Richmond Street and Alma Street.   

Including milling of existing asphalt and placement of a 

minimum of 50mm of asphalt overlay.  Length = 515 meters 

(w/ bulbs).  Width = 8.2 meters.   

 $ 155,000   $ 155,000                155,000 

Engineering 
Concession 6 North between Texas Road and Middle Sideroad.  

1843 meters in length. CIP with 50mm asphalt overlay
 $ 430,000   $ 430,000           430,000 

Engineering 

Smith Sideroad Resurfacing from County Rd. 18 to Malden / 

Colchester Townline.  CIP recycled with expanded asphalt and 

installation of 50mm of asphalt.  4150 meters in length.  
 $ 770,000   $ 385,000   $ 385,000           385,000 

TOTALS 5,280,000$                 385,000$   4,895,000$   ‐  365,000             420,000             3,295,000  815,000          ‐ 

Roads ‐ Due in 2022 and beyond ‐Roads identified in previous budgets

Roads
Angstrom Drive Concrete Pavement Replacement.  LISTED IN 

2009.
 $ 500,000   $ 500,000                500,000 

Roads
North Street Reconstruction from Sandwich to Dalhousie.  

Complete reconstruction of asphalt surface.   
 $                1,250,000   $ 1,250,000            1,250,000 

TOTALS 1,750,000$                 ‐$   1,750,000$   ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,750,000 

Total Roads Due 20,314,000$               2,960,000$   17,354,000$   8,896,700            1,127,300          770,000             3,645,000  1,165,000      1,750,000 

Sidewalks & Pathways

Roads

New sidewalk Installation on Sandwich Street from Season's 

Retirement Home to Lowes Sideroad.  Includes 375mm storm 

drainage from Season's to Lowes.  Approximately 115 Lineal 

Meters.

 $ 85,000   $ 85,000  50,000                 35,000 

Roads
New Sidewalk on County Road 10 from Walker Road to the 

ERCA trail. 
 $ 185,000   $ 185,000                 185,000 

Roads Sidewalk Replacement Program  $ 250,000  $ 250,000                  50,000                50,000                 50,000                  50,000             50,000 

Roads
New sidewalk installation on Alma Street between Venetian 

and Fryer.  Includes placement of storm piping to fill ditch.  
 $ 160,000   $ 160,000               160,000 

Roads
New sidewalk installation on Alma Street between Venetian 

and Kentucky.  Includes placement of storm piping to fill ditch.  
 $ 340,000   $ 340,000                340,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 96 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Roads

County Wide Active Trail System (CWATS) . Paved Shoulders 

along County Road 5 between Texas Road and County Road 

10. WORK COMPLETED. Precommited funds in 2017 budget to

cover the second half of the costs.

 $ 186,031   $ 186,031                 186,031 

TOTALS 1,206,031$                 ‐$   1,206,031$   471,031  85,000               210,000             390,000              50,000            ‐ 

Traffic Signal Upgrades 

Roads

Traffic Signal Control Cabinet Replacement Annual Program.  

Program started in 2011  at the Alma/Sandwich Intersection.  

Upgrading existing controller cabinet, providing uninterrupted 

power supply module, replace poles, signals and wiring where 

required.  

 $ 450,000   $ 450,000                 150,000               150,000               150,000 

TOTALS 450,000$   ‐$   450,000$   150,000  150,000             150,000             ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Streetlight Installation and Upgrades

Engineering LED street lighting Upgrade program  $ 450,000   $ 450,000  50,000  50,000               50,000               50,000                50,000            200,000             

Engineering
Installation of streetlights On County Road 20 from North 

Sideroad to County Road 3 
235,000$    $ 235,000  235,000 

 $ ‐   

TOTALS 685,000$    $ 685,000  285,000  50,000               50,000               50,000                50,000            200,000             

Culverts and Bridges ‐ 2 year plan based on 2016 Bridge inspection

Engineering

Bi‐Annual Bridge Inspection.  Bridge Inspections are 

mandatory.   Inspections completed in 2016. Next inspection is 

required in 2018
 $ 160,000   $ 160,000  40,000               40,000                80,000               

Engineering

Sixth Concession South over Albert McGee Drain‐Upper ‐ 

Culvert No. 7.  Culvert should be partially replaced within 2 

years time.
261,671$    $ 261,671                 261,671 

Engineering

Collison Sideroad over Collison Drain ‐ Culvert No. 3.  Culvert 

should be replaced with a 3 ‐ sided precast culvert.  Natural 

gas line noted on the south side.
 $ 138,000   $ 138,000                 138,000 

Engineering

Long Marsh Bridge at Alma Street ‐ Bridge No. 3007.  

Miscellaneous concrete repairs, waterproof and pave.  

Replacement of barrier wall and approach guiderail.  Deck 

drain work required.  

 $ 199,000   $ 199,000                 199,000 

Engineering

River Canard at Concession 2 North ‐ Bridge No. 3008.  This 

iconic small bridge deserves to be preserved and is long 

overdue for a comprehensive rehabilitation sympathetic to the 

original design.

 $ 364,000   $ 364,000                 364,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 97 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Engineering

Long Marsh Drain at Concession 3 North ‐ Bridge No. 3009.  

Recommend deck condition survey in 2015 to determine 

condition of deck top.
 $ 266,000   $ 266,000                 266,000 

Engineering
Alma Street over Renaud Drain ‐ Culvert No. 33.  Review the 

need for guide rail at the north end.
 $ 24,000   $ 24,000  24,000 

Engineering

Fourth Concession North over Powers Drain ‐ Culvert No. 54.  

Rusted area is low on barrel, concrete liner over bottom of 

culvert may be suitable repair and extend the life of the culvert 

by 15 years.  Culvert should be repaired or replaced within 2 

years time.

 $ 100,000   $ 100,000                 100,000 

Engineering
Sixth Concession North over Mayville‐Jubinville Drain and 

Branch ‐ Culvert No. 57.  New concrete culvert.
 $ 124,000   $ 124,000                 124,000 

Engineering

North Sideroad over Shaw Drain North ‐ Culvert No. 67.  

Repairs are necessary to halt damage.  Interior walls and soffit 

are currently in good condition.
 $ 29,000   $ 29,000  29,000 

Engineering

Deslippe Drain over the Sixth Concession South ‐ Culvert No. 

72 Replace with concrete box culvert with  greater length and 

cover
 $ 162,000   $ 162,000                 162,000 

Engineering
Concession 8 over 8th Concession Drain North ‐ Culvert No. 

74. New steel culvert.
 $ 120,000   $ 120,000                 120,000 

Engineering
Fifth Concession North over Thrasher D&W ‐ Culvert No. 75.  

New steel culvert.
 $ 87,000   $ 87,000  87,000 

Engineering
Seventh Concession South over McGuire Branch of the North 

7th Concession Drain ‐ Culvert No. 25.  New steel culvert.
 $ 106,000   $ 106,000               106,000 

Engineering

Sucker Creek Bridge ‐ Bridge No. 3020.  Miscellaneous 

concrete repairs.  Replacement of barrier wall, expansion joint, 

approach guiderail and existing girders.
 $ 343,000   $ 343,000               343,000 

Engineering
Sixth Concession North over Sinasac Drain ‐ Culvert No. 45.  

Culvert should be renewed in the next couple of years.
 $ 117,000   $ 117,000               117,000 

Engineering
Seventh Concession South over Beaudoin Drain South ‐ Culvert 

No. 5.  New concrete culvert.
 $ 225,000   $ 225,000               225,000 

Engineering
North Sideroad over 2nd Concession Road Drain North ‐ 

Culvert No. 61.  New steel culvert.
 $ 208,000   $ 208,000               208,000 

Engineering

Fifth Concession South over the Albert McGee drain‐lower. 

Culvert No. 8. Small bridge should be replaced with precast 

concrete box culvert.
330,000$    $ 330,000               330,000 

TOTALS  $           3,363,671   $ 3,363,671              1,874,671           1,369,000  ‐                  40,000  ‐                  80,000 

Culverts and Bridges ‐ 2019 to 2026 based on 2016 Bridge Inspection

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 98 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Engineering

Long Marsh Bridge at Concession 9 ‐ Bridge No. 2003.  

Miscellaneous concrete repairs, waterproof and pave.  

Replacement of barrier wall, expansion joint, coating of 

structural steel, approach guiderail, and bearings.  Deck drain 

work required.

 $ 347,000   $ 347,000               347,000 

Engineering

Long Marsh Bridge at Concession 4 North ‐ Bridge No. 3010.  

Miscellaneous concrete repairs, waterproof and pave.  

Replacement of barrier wall, expansion joint, approach 

guiderail.  Deck drain and river channeling work required.

 $ 319,000   $ 319,000               319,000 

Engineering
9th Concession Drain Bridge at South Sideroad ‐ Bridge 2002. 

Replace with box culvert
 $ 244,000   $ 244,000                244,000 

Engineering
Long Marsh Drain Bridge over South Sideroad Bridge 2004. 

Repair deck drains, approach guiderail and asphalt overlay
 $ 116,000   $ 116,000                116,000 

Engineering
Sinisac Drain Bridge over Texas Road Bridge 3004. Deck drains 

and soffit repair
 $ 24,000   $ 24,000                  24,000 

Engineering
Big Creek Bridge No. 2 over Alma Street Bridge 3005. Concrete 

repairs, waterproofing and paving, guardrails
 $ 59,000   $ 59,000                  59,000 

Engineering

Long Marsh Bridge No. 3 over the 5th Concession North Bridge 

3013. Concrete repairs, waterproof and pave, asphalt overlay, 

barrier wall and deck drains
 $ 307,000   $ 307,000                307,000 

Engineering

Long Marsh Bridge No. 4 over the 6th Concession North Bridge 

3018. Concrete repairs, waterproof and pave, asphalt overlay, 

barrier wall and deck drains
 $ 138,000   $ 138,000                138,000 

Engineering
King Creek Bridge over the 8th Concession South Bridge 3021. 

Barrier wall and approach guardrail
 $ 140,000   $ 140,000                140,000 

Engineering
Beaudoin Drain Culvert over the 3rd Concession / North 

Sideroad Culvert No. 62. Soffit repairs required
 $ 48,000   $ 48,000                  48,000 

Engineering
Bailey Drain Culvert over South Sideroad Culvert No. 18. 

Replace with new concrete culvert.
 $ 86,000   $ 86,000              86,000 

Engineering
Beetham Drain Culvert over Middle Sideroad Culvert No. 21. 

New concrete culvert
 $ 87,000   $ 87,000              87,000 

Engineering
Cooks Drain Culvert over Texas Road Culvert No. 44. New steel 

culvert. 
 $ 86,000   $ 86,000              86,000 

Engineering
8 culvert replacements, 2 bridge replacements and 1 bridge 

repair
 $                5,208,000   $ 5,208,000            5,208,000 

TOTALS  $           7,209,000   $ 7,209,000  ‐  ‐           666,000            1,076,000           259,000            5,208,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 99 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

Municipal Drain ‐ Drainage Petition and Improvements ‐ Engineer's Reports

Municipal Drain

Culvert replacements over the Shaw Drain North, including full 

maintenance provisions for all bridges and enclosures within 

the drain
 $ 32,000   $ 32,000  32,000 

Municipal Drain

DiCecco Drain No. 1 and Branch No.1 ‐ Capital drainage project 

that includes new drain construction along and across  Creek 

Road, in addition to work to accommodate drainage for the 

private development of lands owned by Joe DiCecco.

 $ 34,200   $ 34,200  34,200 

TOTALS  $ 66,200   $ 66,200  66,200  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

PWD Programs and Engineering

PWD
Engineering for the Development of South West Quadrant of 

Town
 $ 75,000   $ 75,000  75,000 

TOTALS  $ 75,000   $ 75,000  75,000  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Vehicles & Equipment

PWD

Unit R305 ‐ 1995 8‐ton single axle dump truck with salter, plow 

and wing.  Complete replacement.  $225,000 previously 

approved in 2013 but program was not implemented in 2013.  
 $ 320,000   $ 320,000                 320,000 

PWD

New Tractor with Brushing Attachments.  Replace two existing 

units ‐ Unit 407 Massey Ferguson Tractor and Unit 207 John 

Deere tractor.  Used for ditch bank mowing.  New tractor and 

brushing attachments will maintain road sides and ditches.  

Include front end bucket for loading salt.

 $ 100,000   $ 100,000                 100,000 

Fire Funds for the Replacement of Engine 1  $ 550,000   $ 150,000  $ 400,000                150,000              150,000               100,000 

PWD New Disc mower for Kubota Tractor. Roadside grass cutting  $ 15,000   $ 15,000  15,000 

PWD
New pick‐up for drainage superintendent / engineering 

coordinator. Position created in 2016 
 $ 35,000   $ 35,000  35,000 

Building Vehicle for Building department.  $ 30,000  $ 30,000                  30,000 

PWD
Unit R210 ‐ 2000 general maintenance pickup truck.  Complete 

replacement. 
 $ 40,000   $ 40,000  40,000 

PWD
Unit R610 ‐ 1997 pickup truck used for Road Patrol.  

Replacement with new vehicle.  
 $ 35,000   $ 35,000  35,000 

PWD
Unit R205 ‐ 1996 single axle dump truck with plow and salter.  

Complete unit replacement. 
 $ 250,000   $ 250,000                 250,000 

PWD
Unit R206 ‐ 1999 13‐ton tandem dump truck with salt box and 

plow.  Complete unit replacement.  
 $ 320,000   $ 320,000                 320,000 

PWD
Unit R108 ‐ 2000 Backhoe.  Complete unit replacement.  

LISTED IN 2012.
 $ 100,000   $ 100,000               100,000 

PWD
Unit R306 ‐ 8‐ton single axle dump truck with plow and salter.  

Complete unit replacement.  LISTED IN 2012.
 $ 225,000   $ 225,000               225,000 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 100 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

PWD
New Grader. Required to maintain all gravel roads as well as 

assist in winter control.
 $ 225,000   $ 225,000               225,000 

$ ‐   
TOTALS  $           2,245,000   $ 150,000   $ 2,095,000              1,295,000               700,000               100,000  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

 $              35,613,902   $ 3,110,000   $ 32,503,902           13,113,602           3,481,300           1,946,000            5,201,000        1,524,000            7,238,000 

Parks  

Toddy Jones play surface / sign  $ 42,000  $ 42,000                  42,000 
CoAn Park Capital Improvement Program  $ 100,000  $ 100,000                  10,000                10,000                 10,000                  10,000             10,000                 50,000 
Malden Centre Park ‐ Pavilion  $ 24,000  $ 24,000                  24,000 
Centennial Park Track ‐ resurfacing  $ 250,000  $ 250,000                250,000 
Tennis Courts ‐ resurfacing  $ 150,000  $ 150,000                150,000 
KNYP Walkway to Gazebo  $ 60,000  $ 60,000                  60,000 
Canard Valley Estates Playground  $ 120,000  $ 120,000                  60,000                60,000 

Playground Equipment Replacement ‐ Beaudoin Park  $ 120,000   $ 120,000  60,000                 60,000 

TOTALS  $ 866,000   $ ‐     $ 866,000                 656,000               130,000                 10,000                  10,000              10,000                  50,000 

Facilities

New salt shed   $ 35,000  $ 35,000  35,000               

PWD Shop HVAC System Replacement.  3‐Year 

Project.  $50,000 required in 2014, 2015 & 2016.
 $ 150,000   $ 150,000  50,000                 50,000                 50,000 

Demolition of the AMA arena on Victoria Avenue  $ 150,000   $ 150,000                 150,000 

Replacement of windows in the Town Hall  $ 50,000  $ 50,000                  50,000 
Grandstands at Libro Center ( For Possible Football 

Club)
 $ 295,000   $ 295,000               295,000 

Build new consolidated Public Works/Parks & 

Facilities to house consolidated operations inclusive 

of garage and salt shed

 $ 3,000,000   $ 750,000   $ 2,250,000        2,250,000 

Consolidation of Fire Station 2 & 3  $ 3,000,000   $ 500,000  $ 2,500,000          1,250,000           1,250,000 
Town Hall Upgrades/ Relocation  $ 2,600,000   $ 600,000  $ 2,000,000           2,000,000 

EPW Asphalt paving of the Parking Lot south of Police Station  $ 95,000   $ 95,000  95,000 

Removal of underground gas tanks  $ 480,000  $ 480,000                480,000 
Gateway and Town Hall signs  $ 185,000   $ 185,000                 185,000 

TOTAL 2017 PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 101 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017

Proposed projects for 2017

Dept. Initiative
 Total

Capital Requirements 
 Subsidy/Grants/Contributions   Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026

TOTALS  $ 10,040,000   $ 1,850,000   $ 8,190,000              1,045,000           1,595,000           3,300,000  ‐        2,250,000  ‐ 

 $ ‐   

Other

HR & Facilities Health and Safety Capital Program  $ 500,000   $ 500,000  50,000                 50,000                 50,000                  50,000              50,000                250,000 

Facilities Bellevue Vendor Take Back Payment  $ 1,000,000  $ 1,000,000                200,000              200,000               200,000                200,000          200,000 
IT IT Reserve Capital Program  $ 123,000   $ 123,000  123,000 

TOTALS  $ 1,623,000   $ ‐     $ 1,623,000                 373,000               250,000               250,000                250,000           250,000                250,000 

$ ‐   
Police  $ 25,000  $ 25,000  25,000               
Police Patrol Vehicles  $ 109,330  $ 109,330  109,330
Police  $ 15,300   $ 15,300  15,300                 

TOTALS  $ 149,630   $ ‐     $ 149,630                 149,630  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐             ‐ 

TOTALS 48,292,532$   4,960,000$   43,332,532$   15,337,232$       5,456,300$      5,506,000$       5,461,000$        4,034,000$   7,538,000$      

TOTAL REQUEST 15,337,232$                

FUNDS AVAILABLE OCIF FORMULA 806,205$  

OPERATIONAL TRANSFER 1,700,000$                    

POLICE RESERVE FUNDED 149,630$  

LED REPLACEMENT PROGRA 50,000$  

AODA RESERVE FUNDED 50,000$  

FLEET RESERVE FUNDED 75,000$  

IT RESERVE FUNDED 123,000$  

2017 GAS TAX UNALLOCATE 1,000,000$                    

WC RESERVE FUND 469,946$

4,423,781$

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING GAP 10,913,451$                

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 102 of 105



THE CAPITAL BUDGET RECOMMENDATION 

The following 2 pages outline the summary of the project by project details of the 
recommended projects by administration. It also provides details on the projects that will 
span into 2018 and beyond, as well as the funding source for each project. 

 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 103 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017 ‐ DRAFT

 Gas Tax 
 Dev't

Charges 

 OCIF Funding 

Base 
 AODA Reserve   LED Program   Fleet Reserve   WC Reserve 

 Operating 

Capital Funded 

by Rate Payers 

 Funded By 

Operations in 

Police Budget 

Or IT Budget 

 Reserves 

(Capital levy 

& IT) 

 AODA 

Reserve 
 Gas Tax 

 Operating Capital 

Funded by Rate 

Payers 

Dept. Initiative  Gross Project Costs  Funding Source

 

Subsidy/Grants/C

ontributions 

 Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 & Beyond 2017

Roads 

Engineering 

Meloche Road Reconstruction from Alma Street to 

Lowes Sideroad. Reconstruction of asphalt 

roadway including new base, drainage, installation 

of bike lanes and multi use trail. Geotechnical 

investigation will determine final scope of work

 $         4,324,800 

OCIF Funding ‐ $2,000,000

CWATS ‐ $200,000

Gas Tax ‐ $500,000

Development Charge Debenture ‐ 

$1,300,000

Tax Supported Debenture ‐ $324,000

 $      2,200,000   $    2,124,800   $       2,124,800   $         500,000   $       1,624,800 

Engineering 

Pickering Drive Resurfacing. Dalhousie to King 

Street  Including milling of existing all asphalt and 

placement of a minimum of 90mm of asphalt 

overlay.  Length = 570metres.  Width = 10.2 and 

8.2 metres. 

 $             200,000  OCIF FORMULA FUNDS  $       200,000   $           200,000   $        180,534   $          19,466 

Engineering Pre‐Engineering for 2018 projects  $               50,000  $         50,000  $             50,000  $          50,000 

Roads

Sandwich / Pickering Traffic Signal Control Cabinet 

Replacement and intersection improvements.  

Upgrading existing controller cabinet, providing 

uninterrupted power supply module, replace 

poles, signals and wiring where required. 

Intersection improvements, including curbs, 

sidewalks and other amenities are also required to 

met AODA requirements

 $             750,000   Gas Tax   $       750,000   $           337,700   $      412,300   $         337,700   $     412,300 

Roads

2015 Road Repairs Program ‐ Cost to complete 

small repairs to miscellaneous rural and urban 

roads.
 $             150,000   Gas Tax   $       150,000   $           150,000 

150,000$         

Roads
2015 Tar & Chip Program ‐ Cost to apply tar & 

chip surface to miscellaneous rural roads.
 $             200,000 

 Gas Tax & Capital From 

Operations 
 $       200,000   $           200,000 

12,300$            187,700$        
TOTALS 5,674,800$           2,200,000$       3,474,800$    3,062,500$        412,300$      ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    1,000,000$     ‐$           180,534$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    257,166$        ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               412,300$      ‐$                          1,624,800$       

Sidewalks & Pathways

Roads

New sidewalk Installation on Sandwich Street from

Season's Retirement Home to Lowes Sideroad.  

Includes 375mm storm drainage from Season's to 

Lowes.  Approximately 115 Lineal Metres.

 $               85,000 
 AODA Funding for 2017 & 

Partial 2018 
 $         85,000   $             50,000   $        35,000 

50,000$          35,000$   
Roads Sidewalk Replacement Program  $               50,000   Capital From Operations  $         50,000  $             50,000  $                    ‐   $                   ‐  $                   ‐   $                      ‐  50,000$         

Roads

County Wide Active Trail System (CWATS) . Paved 

Shoulders along County Road 5 between Texas 

Road and County Road 10. WORK COMPLETED. 

Precommited funds in 2017 budget to cover the 

second half of the costs.

 $             186,031   Capital From Operations   $       186,031   $           186,031             

186,031$        
TOTALS 321,031$              ‐$                        321,031$        286,031$           35,000$         ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      50,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    236,031$        ‐$                      ‐$                  35,000$    ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

Streetlight Installation and Upgrades
Engineering LED street lighting Upgrade program  $             450,000   LED Program            450,000  50,000                 50,000            50,000           50,000           50,000              200,000$       50,000$          400,000$            

TOTALS 450,000$              ‐$                        450,000$        50,000$              50,000$         50,000$        50,000$        50,000$           200,000$       ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    50,000$          ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                     ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    400,000$             ‐$                        

Culverts and Bridges 

Engineering

Sixth Concession South over Albert McGee Drain‐

Upper ‐ Culvert No. 7.  Culvert should be partially 

replaced within 2 years time.
261,671$              OCIF FORMULA FUNDS  $       261,671   $           261,671 

261,671$         

Engineering

River Canard at Concession 2 North ‐ Bridge No. 

3008.  This iconic small bridge deserves to be 

preserved and is long overdue for a 

comprehensive rehabilitation sympathetic to the 

original design.

 $             364,000  OCIF FORMULA FUNDS  $       364,000   $           364,000   $        364,000 

TOTALS 625,671$              ‐$                        625,671$        625,671$           ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           625,671$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                     ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

 Debentures 

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 104 of 105



TOWN OF AMHERSTBURG ‐ PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET 2017 ‐ DRAFT

 Gas Tax 
 Dev't

Charges 

 OCIF Funding 

Base 
 AODA Reserve   LED Program   Fleet Reserve   WC Reserve 

 Operating 

Capital Funded 

by Rate Payers 

 Funded By 

Operations in 

Police Budget 

Or IT Budget 

 Reserves 

(Capital levy 

& IT) 

 AODA 

Reserve 
 Gas Tax 

 Operating Capital 

Funded by Rate 

Payers 

Dept. Initiative  Gross Project Costs  Funding Source

 

Subsidy/Grants/C

ontributions 

 Net Cost  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022‐2026 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 & Beyond 2017

 Debentures 

Municipal Drain ‐ Drainage Petition and Improvements ‐ Engineer's Reports

Municipal Drain

Culvert replacements over the Shaw Drain North, 

including full maintenance provisions for all 

bridges and enclosures within the drain
 $               32,000   Capital From Operations   $         32,000   $             32,000   $         32,000 

Municipal Drain

DiCecco Drain No. 1 and Branch No.1 ‐ Capital 

drainage project that includes new drain 

construction along and across  Creek Road, in 

addition to work to accommodate drainage for the

private development of lands owned by Joe 

DiCecco.

 $               34,749   Capital From Operations   $         34,749   $             34,749   $         34,749 

TOTALS 66,749$                ‐$                        66,749$          66,749$              ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    66,749$          ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

PWD Programs and Engineering

PWD
Engineering for the Development of South West 

Quadrant of Town
 $               75,000   Capital From Operations   $         75,000   $             75,000   $          75,000 

TOTALS 75,000$                ‐$                        75,000$          75,000$              ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    75,000$          ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

Vehicles & Equipment

PWD

Unit R305 ‐ 1995 8‐ton single axle dump truck 

with salter, plow and wing.  Complete 

replacement.  $225,000 previously approved in 

2013 but program was not implemented in 2013.  

 $             320,000   Capital From Operations   $       320,000   $           320,000  320,000$        

Fire Funds for the Replacement of Engine 1  $             550,000 
 WC Reserve 2016 (150,000 

put away by Council in 2016) 
 $          150,000   $       400,000   $           150,000   $      150,000   $     100,000  150,000$       250,000$            

PWD
New pick‐up for drainage superintendent / 

engineering coordinator. Position created in 2016 
 $               35,000   Fleet Reserve 2017   $         35,000   $             35,000  35,000$         

Building Vehicle for Building department.  $               30,000   Fleet Reserve 2017  $         30,000  $             30,000  30,000$        

PWD
Unit R610 ‐ 1997 pickup truck used for Road 

Patrol.  Replacement with new vehicle.  
 $               35,000 

 Fleet Reserve 2017 & 

Capital From Operations 
 $         35,000   $             35,000  10,000$          25,000$          

TOTALS 970,000$              150,000$          820,000$        570,000$           150,000$      100,000$     ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    75,000$         150,000$      345,000$        ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    250,000$             ‐$                        

Parks  

CoAn Park Capital Improvement Program  $               10,000   Capital From Operations   $         10,000   $             10,000  10,000$          

Tennis Courts ‐ resurfacing  $             150,000   WC Reserve 2016  $       150,000  $           150,000  150,000$     
TOTALS 160,000$              ‐$                        160,000$        160,000$           ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    ‐$                    150,000$      10,000$          ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

Facilities

Demolition of the AMA arena on Victoria 

Avenue
 $             150,000   WC Reserve 2016   $       150,000   $           150,000  150,000$      

Removal of underground gas tanks  $             480,000 
 WC Reserve 2016 & Capital 

From Operations 
 $       480,000   $           480,000  19,946$          460,054$        

TOTALS 630,000$              ‐$                        630,000$        630,000$           ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    ‐$                    169,946$      460,054$        ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

Other

HR & 

Facilities
Health and Safety Capital Program  $               50,000   Capital From Operations   $         50,000   $             50,000  50,000$          

Facilities Bellevue Vendor Take Back Payment  $         1,000,000   Capital From Operations  $    1,000,000  $           200,000  $      200,000   $     200,000  $      200,000   $        200,000  200,000$        800,000$            
IT IT Reserve Capital Program  $             123,000   IT Reserve Contribution  $       123,000  123,000$           123,000$      

TOTALS  $         1,173,000   $                       ‐  $    1,173,000  $           373,000  $      200,000   $     200,000  $      200,000   $        200,000   $                    ‐  $                      ‐  $           ‐  $                      ‐  $                    ‐  $                    ‐  $                    ‐  $       250,000  $       123,000   $                 ‐   $              ‐   $                   ‐   $           800,000   $                        ‐ 

Police  $               25,000   Police Reserve Contribution   $         25,000  25,000$              25,000$          

Police Patrol Vehicles  $             109,330   Police Reserve Contribution   $       109,330  109,330$            109,330$       

Police  $               15,300   Police Reserve Contribution   $         15,300  15,300$              15,300$          

TOTALS 149,630$              ‐$                        149,630$        149,630$           ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$                       ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$           ‐$                      ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                     149,630$       ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                          ‐$                        

TOTALS 10,295,881$        ‐$                                                 2,350,000$       7,945,881$    6,048,581$        847,300$      350,000$     250,000$      250,000$        200,000$       1,000,000$     ‐$           806,205$         50,000$         50,000$          75,000$         469,946$      1,700,000$    272,630$       ‐$                  35,000$    412,300$      1,450,000$         1,624,800$       

The Corporation of the Town of Amherstburg Page 105 of 105


	Agenda
	4.1 Audit and Finance Advisory Committee 2017 Budget Review.pdf
	4.2 2017 Grants to Community Groups and Organizations.pdf
	4.3 Libro Centre Financial Update - Final - GM.pdf
	2017 Proposed Operating and Capital Budget.pdf



